
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Wednesday, 22nd November, 2017

Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Rochdale Town Hall, The Esplanade, Rochdale, 

OL16 1AB

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal or 
personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those 
interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, 
by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 4 - 6

To consider the minutes of meeting of the Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 20th 
September 2017. 

6.  PRESENTATION - PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 

The Director of Neighbourhoods to report 

7.  DISCRETIONARY CRISIS FUND AND LOCAL WELFARE 
PROVISION - 6 MONTH PERFORMANCE REPORT 

7 - 21

To scrutinise the performance of the Discretionary Crisis Fund for the 
first 6 months of 2017/18 together with information with regard to the 
food bank and the community projects funded by the Innovation Fund. 

8.  HOUSING STRATEGY 2017-2020 22 - 64

Public Document Pack



To scrutinise the Council’s Housing Strategy 2017-2022 which sets out 
the Council’s housing ambitions for the next 5 years. 

9.  COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE 
PLANS 2017-18 QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

65 - 111

The report analyses the progress made at the end of Quarters 1 and 2 
(1st April – 30th September 2017) towards the achievement of the 
targets contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 and 
Neighbourhood Directorate Plan 2017-18. 

10.  ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT POLICY UPDATE 

Verbal Update to be provided 

11.  WASTE COLLECTION POLICY UPDATE 

Verbal Update to be provided. 

12.  COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 

112 - 114

To review the Committee’s work programme. 

12.  HOMELESSNESS IN THE UNDER 35 AGE GROUP 

 Verbal update to be provided

13.  GMCA SCRUTINY MINUTES 115 - 132

To note the GMCA Scrutiny Minutes as follows:
a. Police And Crime Panel - 5th June, 2017
b. Economy, Business Growth and Skills Scrutiny Committee – 13th 

October 2017
c. Housing, Planning and Environment Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee – 7th September and 18th October 2017 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Members
Councillor Neil Butterworth Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor John Hartley Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Ann Stott JP Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor June West Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Caroline Denyer, Governance and Committee Services Officer
Tel: 01706 924717 Email: caroline.denyer2@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:caroline.denyer2@rochdale.gov.uk


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday 20th September 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Butterworth (Chair); Councillors Susan Emmott, 
Hartley, Malcolm, O'Neill, O'Rourke, Stott, Wazir, Winkler and Zaheer

OFFICERS:  Mark Dalzell and Caroline Abbott (Neighbourhoods Directorate), 
Nicola Rogers (Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate) and Alison James 
(Resources Directorate)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor West

APOLOGIES
18 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor West.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
19 In accordance with the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-
Opted Members, Councillor Zaheer declared an interest in the Agenda item 
Food and Feed Service Plan and left the room during consideration of the 
item.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
20 There were no urgent items of business.

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
21 There were no items of business which required the exclusion of the 
public and press.

MINUTES
22 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 19th July 2017 be approved and signed as a correct record.

ROCHDALE SAFER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP UPDATE
23 The Head of Neighbourhood Services received a presentation on the 
Rochdale Strategic Assessment 2017. The aims of the assessment included:-

 A refresh of the Rochdale Community Safety Partnership strategic 
priorities;

 To provide greater understanding of longer term threat and risk to 
Rochdale communities;

 Not be a comprehensive review but a number of broad themes to be 
identified for strategic analysis.

The themes for the Strategic Assessment were:-
 Tackling frequent/ impactive crime;
 Protecting vulnerable people;
 Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour;
 Alcohol and drug related crime;

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 Offender Profile;
 Tackling serious and organised crime;
 Child Sexual Exploitation; 
 Community tensions and cohesion;
 Rochdale’s Town Centres;

The Committee made comments in relation to the following areas and asked 
for these to be fed into the Strategic Assessment process:-

 The inclusion of fraud and domestic violence;
 Unreported crime, for example, crime reported online in forums such as 

Facebook but not actually reported to the Police;
 The difficulties faced by residents in reporting issues to the 101 

telephone number;
The Committee agreed that they would like to invite the Greater Manchester 
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime, Beverley Hughes to a future meeting to 
further discuss police and crime matters.

DECIDED – that the update on the Rochdale Strategic Assessment 
2017 be noted.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2016/17 REGISTER PROVIDERS
24 The Committee scrutinised the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which
provided Members with an update on the performance of the Borough’s 
Register Provider (RP) Partners for 2016/17.

The Committee were advised that there were currently 14 Registered 
Providers who managed 20,948 properties across the Borough with RBH 
being the biggest stock holder with 63% of the stock. Riverside and Guinness 
were the 2nd biggest with 10% each, followed by St Vincent’s with 5%.

The report provided an update on affordable housing development, affordable
rent conversions, disposals, demolitions, welfare reform, the Housing 
Register, health partnership, property and neighbourhood investment, local 
initiatives and the Greater Manchester Memorandum of Understanding.

The main Registered Providers operating in the Borough, seven in total, were 
all members of the Rochdale Strategic Housing Partnership (RSHP). The 
seven RPs were Contour Homes, Great Places Housing Group, Guinness 
Partnership, Regenda Group, Riverside Group, Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing and St Vincent’s Housing Association

The RSHP was the Borough’s high level strategic housing group and was 
established to maximise the contribution of housing towards the Borough’s 
broader objectives and the delivery of targets contained within the Council’s 
and Partner’s Strategies.

In addition to the RSHP the main RP partners had come together with the 
Council to fund the Borough’s unique partnership company Rochdale Housing 
Initiative (RHI). The company, which was formed in 1994, had added value to 
the work in the Borough through the development of new and innovative 
projects, the securing of funding for projects, the provision of a link between 

Page 4



the RPs and other organisations within the Borough and the delivery of the 
Council’s Empty Property Programme. 

In considering the report, Members of the Committee made some comments 
about concerns they had with the performance of Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing (RBH).

DECIDED – That the Performance Monitoring 2016/2017 Registered 
Housing Providers report be noted.

FOOD AND FEED SERVICE PLAN 2017- 18
25 The Committee scrutinised the report of the Director of Public Health 
and Wellbeing which presented the Council’s Food and Feed Service Plan for 
the current year. The report identified the scope and the demands on the 
Service together with the details of last year’s performance and the way the 
Service proposed to continue to meet the Food Standards Agency’s 
mandatory guidance on inspection frequency. The report also proposed the 
introduction of two new discretionary fees and charges in relation to two 
aspects of food hygiene matters.

Members also considered a RAG rated table of performance measures 
related to the Food and Feed Service Plan.

DECIDED – that (1) the Food and Feed Service Plan for 2017/18 be noted.
(2) that the Public Protection Team be thanked for their work in raising 
the performance relating to the Food and Feed Service Plan. 

PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY
26 DECIDED – that consideration of the Playing Pitch Strategy be 
deferred.

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18
27 The Committee considered the updated Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2017/18. 

The Chair indicated that the Committee would establish two, short life task 
and finish study groups relating to Renewable Energy and New Housing 
Developments (specifically Junction 19 of the M62 proposed developments) 
and Online Safety for Children and Young People.

DECIDED – (1) that the Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18 be noted.
(2) that two, short life task and finish study groups be established 
relating to Renewable Energy and New Housing Developments 
(specifically the Junction 19 of the M62 proposed developments) and 
Online Safety for Children and Young People.

Page 5



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Housing & Environment
Report Author Helen Bellis
Public/Private Document Public 

Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local welfare Provision - 
6 month performance report

Executive Summary

1.

1.2

The report details the performance of:
 the Discretionary Crisis Fund for the first 6 months of 2017/18;
 food bank data; and
 information and case studies about the community projects funded by 

the Innovation Fund.

Section 5 advises of the funding commitment made on the 26th September 
2017, by Cabinet members to provide funding both for the shortfall in 
2018/19 to enable continued provision and beyond this financial year; this 
proposal was unanimously supported by Members of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 
21st June 2017.  

Recommendation

2. For members to note the detail included in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. It was agreed by Members of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, that officers will present a 
year-end and 6 monthly reports.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

Background

The Discretionary Crisis Fund (DCF) provides ‘white goods’ and essential 
household items and furniture, supporting vulnerable residents setting up 
home, when resettling from temporary accommodation; for example when 
fleeing domestic abuse or leaving temporary homelessness accommodation. T

The Fund also provides a mechanism to make small crisis awards for those 
who find themselves in financial difficulty; for example, to provide emergency 
household fuel, or for an emergency clothes allowance.

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

The local welfare provision also funds, alongside the DCF, small contributions 
to a number of Food Banks within the borough (see paragraphs 4.19 to 4.24) 
and grant funds a number of community based projects (see Paragraph 3.17 
and Appendix 1 of this report)

Applications to the DCF – 1st April to 30th Sept 2017/18

The DCF received 593 applications in the first half of 2017/18; 54% of these 
were made via the telephone, with the remainder being submitted online. 62% 
of applications were successful and 33% were refused. 11 of the applications 
were withdrawn or cancelled by applicants, or were pending a decision at the 
time of this report. 

The following table compares applications received, successful and refused 
for the first two quarters of 2016/17, and 2017/18. The data shows the 
scheme is receiving less applications compared with this time last year, and is 
likely due to an increase in applications due to the Boxing Day floods at the 
start of that year, however; the number of applications that have been 
successful has seen little change.

Table 1 -  Applications received, successful and refused 2017/18 compared 
with 2016/17 (please note 2016/17 is a data for the full year)

The 3 main reasons for applications being refused were:

 when an applicant does not have a live benefit claim and therefore 
cannot be means tested to ensure they do not have the means to 
address their own needs (28%)

 when an applicant has not met with criteria as set out in the DCF 
policy (23%)

 when an applicant has submitted an application for a resettlement 
award but is not being supported by one of the verifying partners 
who supports applicants to resettle and assists in making an 
application to the DCF (19%)

2,417 individual items were awarded over the first 6 months of 2017/18, with 
the following being the most requested items, when supporting those 
resettling:

  108 single bed with mattress
  886 bedding items
  219 energy payments
  365 crockery and cutlery Page 7



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

Unredeemed awards

There are a number of occasions when awards have been made and 
applicants do not redeem the award. So far this year, 21 awards with a total 
value of £5,298 were not redeemed by applicants. Cancelled awards are 
usually due to the item no longer being needed, or on delivery it is found that 
the applicant already has the item. An Emergency Energy award expires if it 
has not been used within a month of allocation, as it is no longer considered 
to be an emergency need.

Fund Spend

The total fund spend on awards for the first 6 months of the 2017/18 scheme 
was £126,665 compared with £131,636 for the same period in 2016/17. 
However, at the start of 2017/18 there was an increase in spending due to 
Rochdale Councils response to the Boxing Day floods, where support was 
offered for replacement of damaged essential household items through the 
DCF totalling £9,962.

The following table shows the fund spend across the Q1 and Q2 2017 and 
compared with the previous year. The last two columns show the percentage 
of spend broken down in to resettlement and emergency awards (these are 
predominantly emergency household energy awards). Resettlement and 
emergency awards have seen very little change compared to last year.

Table 2 - Fund spend across Q1 and Q2, comparing 2017/18 and 2016/17 
(please note the data for 2016/17 is for a full year)

Ward Information

The following table shows the applications submitted to the DCF for the first 6 
months of 2017/18 and the successful and refused applications by ward 
areas. 

Page 8



4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

Table 3 - applications submitted to the DCF for Q1 and Q2 2017/18 by ward 
areas. 

Wards Received

Central Rochdale 93 58 (66%) 30 (31%) 1 (2%)
Kingsway 53 36 (66%) 17 (29%) 1 (5%)
Milkstone and Deeplish 53 35 (64%) 17 (29%) 2 (7%)
Balderstone and Kirkholt 48 34 (71%) 13 (25%) 1 (2%)
Smallbridge and Firgrove 45 32 (72%) 12 (26%) 1 (2%)
Spotland and Falinge 45 30 (68%) 15 (32%) 0 (0%)
North Heywood 45 30 (68%) 14 (30%) 0 (0%)
Hopwood Hall 30 19 (68%) 7 (23%) 1 (3%)
West Middleton 32 17 (58%) 13 (39%) 1 (3%)
West Heywood 28 16 (62%) 9 (31%) 1 (3%)
East Middleton 26 15 (63%) 10 (37%) 0 (0%)
North Middleton 25 13 (58%) 9 (35%) 1 (8%)
Castleton 20 10 (57%) 9 (43%) 0 (0%)
Bamford 15 8 (60%) 6 (40%) 0 (0%)
Healey 11 6 (55%) 5 (45%) 0 (0%)
South Middleton 10 5 (50%) 3 (30%) 1 (10%)
Wardle and West Littleborough 8 3 (38%) 5 (63%) 0 (0%)
Milnrow and Newhey 4 2 (50%) 2 (50%) 0 (0%)
Littleborough Lakeside 1 0 (0%) 1 (100%) 0 (0%)
Norden 1 0 (0%) 1 (100%) 0 (0%)
Total 593 369 (62%) 198 (33%) 11 (2%)

Successful Refused
Withdrawn, 
cancelled, 
incomplete

The above data shows that more applications are received from the Central 
Rochdale, Kingsway and Milkstone and Deeplish Wards than other areas of 
the borough. Applications received from Central Rochdale make up 16% of 
the total applications received by the DCF; with Kingsway Ward making up 9% 
of the total, and another 9% from Milkstone and Deeplish Ward. This is 
comparable to previous years.

66% of applications received from Central Rochdale were successful, with 
66% being successful from Kingsway, and 64% from Milkstone and Deeplish. 
It is worth noting, if a Ward area has a higher number of applications made by 
verifying partners (applications for resettlement), the quality and quantity of 
information included in the application is likely to result in a successful 
application. Therefore the percentage of successful applications for a Ward 
area may depend on the type of application being made to the scheme.

Equality and Diversity 

The DCF invites applicants to complete an Equality and Diversity Section 
within the application; although this is not a mandatory section of the 
application. From the information gathered from 575 applicants, the data 
shows that the fund is mainly accessed by applicants aged between 36 and 
64 (47%). Applicants aged 22 and 35 years old is the next biggest group to 
access support (44%); these two groups had previously been in the opposite 
order (52% and 41% respectively). Applications to the scheme from people 
over the age of 65 years and between 16 and 21 years total just 9%.

The fund continues to have a fairly equal split across male and female 
applicants applying to the DCF; 51% female and 49% male, which is 
consistent with the life of the scheme.Page 9



4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

Of the 575 applicants who have completed the diversity section of the 
application, 371 (65%) were single and 194 (34%) were lone parents; again 
this is comparable to information collected throughout the life of the scheme. 

The Innovation Fund 2017/18

The Bond Board, Petrus, Citizens Advice Bureau and The British Legion all 
provide 6 monthly reports to the Council, detailing the project outcomes to 
date. Please refer to Appendix 1.

Rochdale Food Bank

1,634 vouchers were presented to Rochdale Food Bank in the first 6 months 
of 2017/18. The emergency food packages provided meals for a total of 3,229 
residents; 2,120 adults and 1,109 children. There has been a small decrease 
in people accessing the food bank compared with the same period in 2016/17, 
as the food bank fed a total of 3,349 people (-4%); 2,182 adults (-3%) and 
1,167 children (-5%) in that year.

Bar Chart 3 – Food Vouchers and Meals Provided for the period April to 
September 2016/17 and 2017/18

Benefit delays, benefit changes and low income were the main reasons 
residents gave when accessing the food bank. This is comparable to the data 
collected throughout last year.

Residents from ‘Central Rochdale’, ‘Milkstone and Deeplish’ and ‘Smallbridge 
and Firgrove’ accessed the food bank more than residents of other areas. 

Heywood Food Bank

From April to the end of September 2017, Heywood Food Bank provided 
meals for a total of 7,068 people; 4,445 adults and 2,623 children. Feeding a 
total of 640 individuals, 390 adults and 250 children.

Page 10



4.24 Low income was the main reason residents gave when accessing the food 
bank; 717 people stated this as the reason for their need to access 
emergency food, whereas benefit delays accounted for 127 people and 
Homelessness 31 people.

Alternatives Considered

Not applicable.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.

5.1

On the 26th September 2017, Cabinet members agreed the following funding 
proposal:

 the requirement for a £130,000 increase to the recognised budget 
pressure for 2018/19, from £220,000 to £350,000; and,

 a £600,000 (per annum) funding commitment from 2019/20 onwards, 
to maintain and keep pace with the support provided by the 
Discretionary Crisis Fund (DCF) and the community based projects, 
thereby increasing the currently recognised budget pressure of 
£420,000 by £180,000 per annum.

The above funding commitment enables the current provision to continue, 
but also allows the scheme to flex and meet future demand.

Risk and Policy Implications

No risk or policy implications arise from this report.6.

Consultation

7. Not required – report for information only.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. DCF Policy www.rochdale.gov.uk/crisisfund

For Further Information Contact: Helen Bellis, Tel: 01706 924460, 
helen.bellis@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 11

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/crisisfund


Appendix 1 – Innovation Fund Community Projects

Rochdale Council’s Local Welfare Provision Innovation Fund 
Mid Year Financial Education Group work Report 2017-18

Funding from the Innovation Fund in April 2017 has enabled us to further our 
objectives to support private-rented sector households in the borough of Rochdale:

 to improve their well-being by maximising incomes and benefit entitlement;
 to access available grants;
 to access cheaper energy tariffs;
 to deal with disrepair in their private rented home; and
 in accessing bank accounts and latterly opportunities for borrowing and 

saving.  

We have built and developed the format from our successes and experiences from 
the previous year, and have to date delivered 13 workshops.

Reaching Private Rented Sector Tenants 
Anyone accessing help from the Bond Board are invited to attend the ‘Quid’s in’ 
Workshops. We’ve promoted the workshops to Local Letting Agents who now 
promote the workshops to their customers and also refer tenants to us when they 
are in crisis; which works well for both tenant and letting agent as they can access 
advice promptly. This approach has enabled us to reach and assist tenants who 
have not previously been known to the Bond Board. The good experience of 
people using the group has led to users of the services to bring friends and family 
to the group, who are also experiencing problems in the private rented sector, 
which in turn extends our contacts in the community. We have also helped some of 
these tenants move out of the private rented sector and into social housing, which 
is ultimately both more secure and affordable for them.

‘Quids In’ Financial Education Workshops 
In the 13 workshops delivered since April 2017; we have covered topics around 
financial inclusion, budgeting in the private rented sector, money saving apps and 
websites, income maximisation, accessible bank accounts. 

We offer a home-finder service at the group for applicants at the beginning of their 
journey with us, as we support them to look for properties and book viewings, 
ultimately resulting in reducing homelessness in the borough

We have a full time Welfare Rights Advisor who is available at the groups for 
benefit queries; they are able to assist with tribunals, ESA appeals and appeals 
more recently for Discretionary Housing Payments. 

An advisor from the Council’s Revenues and Benefits Team, continues to attend 
every workshop. Every alternate workshop two officers attend from Council Tax. 

Page 12



We have contacted Manchester Credit Union and are making plans for them to 
attend our workshops to explain and promote their service to our attendees. This 
would assist families and individuals to move away from both licensed and 
unlicensed door step lenders and high interest furniture sales companies, which 
they tell us they are currently using.  

We have developed new consultation forms asking our attendees about what other 
practical services they would benefit from; a large number opted for free van hire 
for moving furniture, which is an avenue we are now pursuing. 

Outcomes 
 270 individuals have attended financial education group-work through this project 
between 5th April 2017 and 30th September 2017.  In addition to the topics covered 
at the 13 Workshops, we have completed 198 Financial Health Checks for 
individuals in private-rented accommodation.  
  
Since 5th April 2017 the Bond Board have helped 299 private tenants to apply for a 
total financial gain of £279,122.21 this equates to an average gain of £933.51 per 
person in this financial year.
 
Case Study A
Andrew was referred into us by his letting agent, as a family member was ill and 
the letting agent believed they were not receiving the appropriate benefit. Andrew 
was invited to the group two days later and explained that he’d had residence 
orders for his niece and nephew since they were very young. They were now 
twenty and sixteen years old. His twenty year old nephew had been recently 
diagnosed with rapidly evolving severe multiple sclerosis and they were currently 
living in a two bedroom terrace, which would be unsuitable for his future needs. He 
also needed assistance to apply for Personal Independence Payment and 
assistance with his ESA claim.

A home visit was arranged at which we contacted Albert Bridge House saying he 
was not fit to attend a medical assessment for his ESA, after much information 
sharing between the GP, Hospital and ourselves he was awarded ESA without the 
need for a medical and is now in the support group.

He has also been awarded PIP enhanced mobility and standard daily living until 
2020. Andrew has now applied for Carers Allowance. The family have moved into a 
three bedroomed ground floor flat with RBH which is currently being adapted for his 
nephews needs. We have assisted by applying for a four week overlap of housing 
benefit to cover notice period 

We also applied to the DCF for some essential items. We have also introduced the 
family to the Rochdale Branch of the MS Society and they are attending their social 
events once a month and are being offered telephone support by the Branch 
Secretary around aspects of living with MS.

Total household financial gain:  £16,138.30 

Page 13



What have we learned, that will help us provide the right kind of support in 
the future? 
We have an ongoing research project, working with Edge Hill University, exploring 
Sustainable Livelihoods and individuals’ resilience. We have been collecting 
information using an asset based approach, which builds on the skills, knowledge 
and relationships that our service users already have within their community prior 
to accessing formal support. 

The aim of this work is to enable a better understanding and create a greater 
resilience for people using the workshop and the services locally. At the last 4 
workshops we have asked the following questions:

 Where do you get help?
 Who do you help?
 Who helps you?
 Where do you get your cash from? 

People have been very open with us in their answers to these questions and it has 
highlighted the challenges they face, but also how resourceful they can be too. The 
following charts show where people source their money.

  

Page 14



Half year report on Citizens Advice complex Welfare Benefits and Debt 
Advice for people with life changing or long term health conditions Project

Introduction

The complex Welfare Benefits and Debt Advice for people with life changing or 
long term health conditions Project (“the project”) has the stated aim of:

Delivering a free, confidential, impartial and effective debt and benefit information 
and advice service to help people to help themselves to keep independent, safe 
and well

The bulk of clients referred to the project are from our Advice line where their 
problem has not been able to be resolved after an initial telephone call. All referred 
clients have a long term or life changing health condition. Where possible, clients 
are provided with information and advice in order to resolve their problem 
themselves but, if necessary, more supportive action is provided either over the 
phone or face to face.   

Outcomes

 During the period April-September 2017 the project has advised and 
supported a total of 107 individual clients - this exceeds, pro-rata, the 
projected target of a total of 150 to the end of March 2018. 

 For the same period, April-September 2017, the project has secured an 
extra £110,232 in welfare benefit entitlements for the clients advised. 

 The in-house debt team has, during the period April to September 2017 
managed to re-schedule £358,960 of debt on behalf of clients. 

Case Study 

The following case is provided to give an idea of the type of enquiry and its 
outcome that the project has been able to deal with:

Mr J was referred to the project because he was struggling to pay his bills and 
make ends meet. He was in his 60’s, married and living in a mortgaged property. 
He was disabled and receiving Employment and Support Allowance (ESA) and 
Personal independence Payment (PIP).

When we checked his benefits it came to light that he was in receipt of contribution 
based ESA only (£73.10 per wk). His wife was not working and did not have an 
income of her own. Also, on checking his PIP entitlement we ascertained he was in 
receipt of the mobility component only (£58 per wk). 

104/106 Drake Street
ROCHDALE
OL14 1PQ

Adviceline: 0300 330 1153
Fax: 01706 758380

www.rochdalecab.org

Page 15



We were able to advise Mr J that he was entitled to income related ESA on top of 
his Contribution based ESA. This lead to an extra £41.75 per week ESA and was 
backdated for a month. 

Secondly, because his condition had deteriorated since his PIP was last assessed, 
and that he now appeared to satisfy the criteria for the daily living component of 
PIP, Mr J was advised he could ask for his PIP entitlement to be looked at again. 

Although his application to have his PIP entitlement looked at again is still on-
going, he should qualify for an extra £55.65 per week PIP in the form of the Daily 
living Component. 

In addition, once the daily living component of PIP is awarded to Mr J, his wife 
would then be able to claim a benefit in her own right, Carers Allowance which is 
currently payable at £62.70 per week and would result in an extra £34.95 net per 
week after the means test had been applied.  

In total, as a result of our advice, the couple should qualify for an extra 
£132.35 per week in welfare benefits. 

Page 16



Volunteer Coordinator Report 
April 2017 – October 2017

Funding from the Innovation Fund has enabled our Volunteer Coordinator to 
establish new volunteer ventures and develop them into successful projects and 
initiatives including:

Petrus Pedals
This has grown from strength to strength and has successfully engaged volunteers, 
service users and the local community in to all aspects of cycling maintenance, 
cycling for wellbeing, training as well as access to affordable bicycles. 

Several training sessions have taken place upskilling volunteers to deliver sessions 
on general bike maintenance in the community. These have been hugely successful 
and engaged over 50 people across Rochdale. There are plans to use to shopping 
exchange venue to host further activities, which promote the benefits of cycling and 
upskilling local residents.

Hidden Tales of Rochdale
A digital arts project in partnership with community Arts Northwest and funded by 
Arts Council England has given voice to the Hidden stories of service users, 
volunteers and staff of the Petrus community. The project forms part of the Rochdale 
festival for literature and ideas by creating a digital trail around Rochdale town 
centre. The trail consists of 8 short films based on the lives, hidden strengths and 
resilience of people. The project is inspirational and supports Petrus to promote the 
variety of work we do across the borough as well as raising the profile of our 
volunteer led activities. The contribution of volunteers has been paramount to its 
success and we are continuing to engage people into volunteering, as part of this 
project. 

Positive Vibes café
This new innovative is a partnership between Petrus and the Vibe youth and music 
project. Petrus and the vibe volunteer group are working together to develop the 
skills and confidence of this group to deliver a late night listening service to those 
with complex needs who may present at A&E due to social isolation. The project has 
been working to provide the team of volunteers who have previous experience of 
accessing services with the necessary skills and training to lead this peer support 
model.  

Candlelight café
Part of our partnership within the Greater Manchester Women’s support alliance we 
are currently working to provide a ‘candlelight café’. This is a venue for women 

Page 17



offenders and those at risk of offending to access support in a way that 
is informal, comfortable and safe. The project is led by volunteers who 
have experience of accessing the service and we are working together 
to develop their needs.

Rochdale shopping exchange enterprise
In partnership with the Rotary club of Rochdale we have acquired the 
use of two units within Rochdale shopping exchange. These have allowed us a 
central base to promote the work we do and encourage more volunteers from the 
wider community. To date the venue has been used to host an art exhibition, provide 
a venue for Hidden tales, support the Grow wild sculpture project with PIER (Petrus 
Incredible Edible Rochdale), Cycling UK promotional events including Spokes 
dancing troupe, cycle maintenance training and workshops for customers to either 
learn how to repair their bike or get it repaired by a volunteer. We are currently 
working alongside the British Legion in preparation for Remembrance Sunday as 
well as digital support for the over 50’s. We hope to use the venue as the Petrus 
centre for volunteering offering a variety of activities and opportunities for anyone 
who is interested in volunteering to take part in.

Over the past 6 months, we have worked with an additional 87 volunteers across a 
variety of projects including new and current initiatives. We continue to provide 
supportive placements through Mencap, Hopwood Hall College, the NCS challenge 
and Talent Match for young people some of whom have significant barriers to 
opportunities. We are working alongside Motiv8 and the community mental health 
team to provide supportive volunteer placements for those who may have been out 
of work or activities for long periods due to health issues. 

RBL PRO 006 (070815)
Page 18



The Royal British Legion
(ROCHDALE (BR1551) BRANCH)

Registered Charity No:  219279

Patron:  Her Majesty The Queen

‘LIVE ON’
To the Memory of the Fallen and the Future of the Living

President:  Wg Cdr David FORBES DL FILE RAFVR (T)  (Ret’d

********************************************************************************

Rochdale Veterans breakfast Club - May 2017 to September 2017
The Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club started in June 2016.  The club is managed 
by members of the Rochdale Branch of the British Legion in partnership with 
Rochdale Borough Council. In 2016 it was estimated that 22 veterans would attend, 
but during 2016/17 an average of 27 veterans came through the doors each week; 
this year it has risen to an average of 36.

The Breakfast Club was formed as in informal approach to welfare. A veteran 
helping a veteran approach has reaped many rewards that would not be achievable 
anywhere else. It has been well documented how Rochdale have been one of the 
lead Boroughs regarding the work done under the military covenant umbrella.

Charities & Support Agencies
The Breakfast Club works with all local Armed Forces Charities and various support 
agencies, acts as a central hub bringing together multiple organisations and veterans 
in a single location.

Veterans will attend because of the camaraderie aspect, where they would not 
normally attend a workshop designed to offer support. The breakfast club breaks 
down these barriers and allows outside organisations to engage. This platform 
allows a number of agencies access on a weekly basis to between 20 and 48 
veterans in need of support.

Summary
The Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club now forms the backbone of the Rochdale 
Armed Forces family network. For two hours on a Thursday morning veterans, 
dependants, widows, wives, husbands, charitable organisations and the MOD come 
together and are able to benefit from the support it offer.

Page 19



Page 20



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Housing & Environment
Report Author Helen Bellis 
Public/Private Document Public

Housing Strategy 2017-2020

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

This report accompanies the Council’s Housing Strategy 2017-2022; the 
strategy sets out the Council’s housing ambitions for the next 5 years.

The strategy is closely linked to the Council’s Corporate Plan and the Greater 
Manchester Housing Strategy, to ensure that there is a consistent approach 
across Greater Manchester and that Rochdale is contributing to the wider 
housing context.

The strategy contains 5 key strategic objectives including; increasing the 
supply of new homes; making better use of our existing properties; developing 
a range of housing options; protecting the most vulnerable; and contributing to 
health & wellbeing.

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that the Members note the content of the report and the 
strategy. 

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

It is vital the Council has a strategy in place that details the housing ambitions, 
goals and actions for housing delivery across the Borough.

The previous Housing Strategy expired in 2015. It is important to revise and 
replace with an up to date document which is monitored and evaluated 
annually.

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

To develop and publish a Housing Strategy is no longer a statutory duty for 
the Council. However it is imperative the Council has a document which 
clearly states its housing ambitions and goals for the future.  

Vision

“We want a mix of property types and tenures that meet the housing 
requirements of current and future generations, that supports economic 
growth, regeneration and health & wellbeing across the Borough”

Strategic Objectives

The strategy details each of the strategic objectives, the Council’s goals for 
2022, where we are now and what we need to do to reach our goals. The 
objectives are as follows:

1. New homes - Increase the supply of new homes to meet need and 
aspirations of our residents across the Borough.

2. Making best use of all our homes  - Make better use of the existing 
homes in the Borough including bringing empty properties back into 
use and addressing climate change issues.

3. Develop a range of housing options and pathways to home ownership 
- Ensuring a range of housing options is available across the Borough 
including pathways to affordable home ownership.

4. Informed Choice for all – Ensuring people have the information and 
advice so they can take responsibility for their own housing and 
employment choices.

5. Protect those households most at risk - Safeguard and protect our 
most vulnerable residents to prevent homelessness and increase 
tenancy sustainability.

6. Contribute to health and wellbeing through the provision of housing 
and support - Ensure alternative housing provision and support is 
available through effective partnership working with health and social 
care providers for those residents with specific requirements.

Partnership Working

Partnership working will be key to the success and delivery of the strategy. It 
is vital that all our partners, including Registered  Housing Providers, 
Developers, House Builders, Investors and Neighbouring Authorities work 
together to achieve the overall goals.

Page 22



4.5

4.6

4.7

Review 

The strategy and the actions will be closely monitored by the Rochdale 
Strategic Housing Partnership. It is proposed that ‘Task & Finish’ groups are 
established to work on a particular objective and undertaken the actions 
contained within the strategy.

As we are working in times of unprecedented change, it will be necessary to 
review the strategy and annually and produce a ‘Housing Statement’ which 
will detail the current position and ensure the strategy is in line with relevant 
government guidance and legislation. 

Next Steps

An electronic version will be published on the Council’s website.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. No costs or budget implications arise from this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

No risks or policy implications arise from this report.6.

Consultation

7. The strategy has been circulated to internal Council departments for 
consultation. In addition, it has been distributed to the Rochdale Strategic 
Housing Partnership and a presentation was delivered to all housing 
partners.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 Housing Strategy 2017-2022

8.2 Housing Strategy 2017-2022: 
Equality Impact Assessment

For Further Information Contact: Helen Bellis
Housing Strategy 
Managerhelen.bellis@rochdale,gov.uk

Page 23



Housing 
Strategy
2017-2022

Page 24



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 1
Page 25



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 2

Document Control
Document Title: Housing Strategy 2017-2022

Summary
Publication Date October 2017

Related Legislation / Applicable 
Section of Legislation

Localism Act 2011
Welfare Reform Act 2012
Housing & Planning Act 2016
Homelessness Reduction Bill 2017

Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline 
Documents

Corporate Plan
Place Strategy
Allocations Policy
Homelessness Strategy

Replaces Housing Strategy 2012-2105

Joint Strategy (Yes/No) No

Name of Partner(s) if joint n/a

Strategy Owner (Name/Position) Assistant Director, Place

Strategy Author (Name/Position)

Housing Services Manager
Strategic Housing Manager
Strategic Homelessness Manager
Housing Project Officer

Applies to

Review of Strategy – Housing Statement (Annual)
Next Review Date October 2018

Review undertaken by Housing Project Officer

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.
Name Title Date of Issue Version Number

Page 26



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 3

Contents
1.0    Introduction................................................................................................................................................3

1.1 Our Place – Our Plan ...........................................................................................................................3
1.2 The Role of Housing............................................................................................................................3
1.3 Our Housing Vision .............................................................................................................................3

2. Strategic Outcomes......................................................................................................................................3
3. The Story So Far…......................................................................................................................................3
4. Achievements ..............................................................................................................................................3
5. Challenges & Opportunities ........................................................................................................................3

5.1 Challenges............................................................................................................................................3
Reduction in Local Government Funding...................................................................................................3
Welfare Reform...........................................................................................................................................3
5.2 Opportunities .......................................................................................................................................3
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework......................................................................................................3
Greater Manchester Housing Investment Fund...........................................................................................3
Greater Manchester Land Commission.......................................................................................................3
Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) Funding Programmes ...............................................................3
New Homes Bonus......................................................................................................................................3

6. Wider Strategic Context ..............................................................................................................................3
6.1 The Greater Manchester Strategy .......................................................................................................3
6.2 Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA)............................................................................3
6.3 Devolution ...........................................................................................................................................3

7. Delivery through our partnerships...............................................................................................................3
Priority 1: New homes ........................................................................................................................................3
Priority 2: Making best use of all our homes......................................................................................................3
Priority 3: A range of housing options and pathways to home ownership .........................................................3
Priority 4: Protect those households most at risk................................................................................................3
Priority 5: Contribute to health and wellbeing through the provision of housing with support .........................3
8. Process for Monitoring Compliance and Effectiveness  of the Strategy Document ...................................3
9. Strategy Governance ...................................................................................................................................3
10. Strategy Review Date ..................................................................................................................................3
11. References ...................................................................................................................................................3
12. Appendices ..................................................................................................................................................3

12.1Equality Impact Assessment ................................................................................................................3

Page 27



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 4

1.0    Introduction 

1.1 Our Place – Our Plan

This plan for the Borough sets out our vision for the next five years and confirms what we intent to achieve 
through partnership working over the next two years. It confirms our agreed strategic priorities, which 
underpin everything we do and the high-level outcomes or impacts that we intend to deliver which will help 
space our place and improve the lives and condition for the people who live, visit and invest here.

The plan is owned, by the Borough’s Partnership Board and is delivered through a range of plans and 
strategies, which are managed and monitored through a number of partners. 

Three priorities keep us focused on delivering our vision. Each has a set of objectives and outcomes that 
describe success. Details on how we will achieve these outcomes are contained in our five key partnership 
plans.

Each priority will be delivered within the context of the emerging plans for devolution, the Northern 
Powerhouse, the Greater Manchester Strategy, the GM Growth and Reform Plan and Taking Charge of our 
Health and Social Care in Greater Manchester. 

Our Housing Strategy embraces the three priorities detailed within the Corporate Plan and links them to our 
key housing priorities:

 People – Safeguard and protect our most vulnerable residents, ensuring equal access to housing 
within the Borough.

 Place - Increase the numbers of high quality and aspirational homes, ensuring the right types of 
housing are available in the right areas.  Make better use of the existing homes and ensure 
sustainability in terms of flood resilience and energy efficiency. 

 Prosperity – Build new homes and regenerate areas that increase prosperity and empower 
communities. 

This Housing Strategy sets out our ambitions for the next five years and forms the basis of the housing 
sector’s contribution to achieving the aims of the Place Plan.

PEOPLE
We will safeguard and 

protect our vulnerable people 
and support people of all ages 
to be healthier, confident, and 

resilient, in control and 
successfully managing their 

lives. We will enable 
communities to thrive and 

develop.

PLACE
We will create safe, 

resilient, flourishing and 
high quality places where 

people choose to live, work 
and invest.

PROSPERITY
We will encourage business 

growth and enterprise; 
increase our skills levels and 
create the conditions for the 

creation of good quality 
jobs.

Page 28



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 5

To secure economic growth for the Borough that benefits its residents, it is essential that we continue to 
attract and retain working households. We must deliver more housing in places that are best-connected to 
future employment opportunities. A diversity of housing that is close to areas of expected employment 
growth and linked by available transport capacity will offer growth that can be sustained.

We will continue to build and invest in the Borough by working with our partners to drive forward growth. 
Over the next five years we will work in partnership with our housing providers to continue to regenerate 
key neighbourhoods and expand housing and employment. Major change will be well underway in areas 
such as Kirkholt, Langley, College Bank, Lower Failinge and Rochdale Riverside Town Centre. 

1.2 The Role of Housing

Creating more homes to meet the needs of a growing population and economy is our 
highest priority.

A good-quality home that supports access to work, health, care, family and community underpins all the 
objectives within ‘Our Plan – Our Place’.

The role of housing within Local Government has changed significantly over the past 5 years, from a 
Statutory Provider of housing to a Delivery Enabler.  
We have a primary responsibility to assess and meet the housing needs of the local population and drive 
housing activity and delivery in these areas and for our residents. 
It is crucial in our new role that we work with our partners to ensure growth and delivery of new housing in 
the Borough.

We need to work with businesses and other partners to identify opportunities to work together. Actively we 
need to use their assets to create and unlock housing opportunities. 

1.3 Our Housing Vision

Rochdale is the birthplace of co-operation, and the Council is committed to retaining this distinction by 
working with partners, local people and communities to improve the lives of our residents.

Our vision for housing is…

‘We want a mix of property types and tenures that meet the housing requirements of current 
and future generations and support economic growth, regeneration and health and wellbeing 

across the Borough’

Page 29



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 6

2. Strategic Outcomes 

1. New homes

Increase the supply of new homes to meet need and aspirations of our residents across the Borough.

2. Making best use of all our homes 
Make better use of the existing homes in the Borough including bringing empty properties back into 
use and addressing climate change issues.

3. Develop a range of housing options and pathways to home ownership

Ensuring a range of housing options is available across the Borough including pathways to affordable 
home ownership.

4. Protect those households most at risk

Safeguard and protect our most vulnerable residents to prevent homelessness and increase tenancy 
sustainability.

5. Contribute to health and wellbeing through the provision of housing and support

Ensure alternative housing provision and support is available through effective partnership working 
with health and social care providers for those residents with specific requirements.

Page 30



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 7

3. The Story So Far…

Rochdale Borough is located within the North West of England covering 62 square miles and with a 
population of 213,000 (2014 ONS mid-year estimate).  
Rochdale is ethnically diverse with 21% of the total 
population being from a black and ethnic minority 
background.  

There has been an increase in over 75’s and over 80’s 
between 2001 and 2014 and our older population is 
growing and is expected to increase by 25% between 2012 
and 2024. 

Rochdale Borough has a relatively youthful population, 
with 52% of residents aged under 40. However, over the 
period 2012 to 2028 the number of residents under the age 
of 40 and between 40 and 64 is expected to reduce.

Deprivation is becoming more widespread in the Borough with an increasing proportion of the population 
living in the most deprived 10% of the country. 

We are living longer, but compared with the rest of England and Wales we live shorter and less healthy lives 
and a ten year difference exists for some people in some of our most deprived areas. Men in Rochdale live to 
be 77.2 years compared with those in England and Wales who reach 79.5 years. Women live to be 80.8 years 
compared with 83.2 years. 

The Borough includes the main towns of Rochdale, Heywood and Middleton; and a network of smaller 
towns and villages particularly in the Pennine area of the Borough.

The variety of locations and the proximity to good public transport links and attractive countryside provides 
opportunities for high quality housing development. There are currently a number of attractive and popular 
residential locations particularly in the north of the borough and in the south of Heywood and Middleton.

The Census 2011 reported 87,552 households in the Borough, 61% owner occupiers, 23% social rented 
tenants and 13% in private rented accommodation. The highest concentrations of social rented properties are 
based within Middleton and Rochdale Townships. 

The majority of house sales in Rochdale during the last year (2016) were terraced properties, selling for an 
average price of £97,462. Semi-detached properties sold for an average of £133,530, with detached 
properties selling for £239,8011. 

1 http://www.rightmove.co.uk/house-prices/Rochdale.html 

Page 31

http://www.rightmove.co.uk/house-prices/Rochdale.html


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 8

Rochdale Borough has an overall average price in March 2017 of £120,196 which is an increase of 
2.6%%from the previous year2. In Heywood the average house price is £126,563, Middleton is £128,151and 
Pennies is £148,972 (April 2016 – March 2017, Land Registry Data3).

Rochdale Borough when compared to the other nine Greater Manchester Authorities average house prices, 
gross income of full-time workers and a ratio of lower quartile incomes to house prices. Rochdale and 
Bolton are the same in terms of Income to House Price Ratio (4.9). 

Compared to other housing markets in the North West and Greater Manchester, Rochdale and North East 
Manchester housing markets are generally less attractive. The housing on offer in the Borough has stark 
differences in terms of quality and price and it fails to address the needs of existing or future residents. An 
oversupply of older terraced housing and a lack of high value housing across the Borough means that it is 
failing to attract and retain residents with higher incomes.

An ambitious target of providing 460 additional homes per year is considered necessary to meet demand and 
to help regenerate the Borough. The latest Housing Land Availability Assessment indicates that there is 
considerable scope to meet its housing target using previously developed sites, especially in the south, and 
with limited use of Greenfield sites.

Housing provision on its own will not create successful communities that retain and attract residents. We 
need to focus the right type of housing in the right areas, maintain the regeneration of older areas of housing 
and social housing estates and ensure that the community infrastructure, necessary to support areas of 
housing growth are provided.

In 2015, Rochdale Council commissioned a Strategic Housing Market Assessment4 (SHMA) of the 
Borough. The assessment indicated an annual imbalance of 204 affordable dwellings across Rochdale.

At the time of publication of the SHMA there were 90,015 dwellings in the Borough, of these:

 77% of occupied properties are houses, 14% are flats/maisonettes, 8% are bungalows and 1% is other 
property types (e.g. caravans). 

 17% of occupied properties were built pre 1919, 18% between 1919 and 1944, 23% between 1945 
and 1964, 25% between 1965 and 1984 and 17% since 1985. 

 62% of properties are owner-occupied, 24% are affordable (social/affordable rent and intermediate 
tenure) and 15% are privately rented. This compares with regional figures of 65% for owner 
occupation, 19% affordable tenures and 17% private renting. 

The findings from the SHMA indicated a requirement for affordable housing in all townships, to address 
shortfalls across a range of property sizes, including older person’s accommodation. The figures confirmed 
there is a great need for new affordable housing provision in the Pennine Township. 

2 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-house-price-index-england-february-2017/uk-house-price-index-england-
february-2017 
3 http://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ppd  
4 http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2015-03-31_ldf_cs_eip_rc021_final_shma.pdf 

Page 32

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-house-price-index-england-february-2017/uk-house-price-index-england-february-2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-house-price-index-england-february-2017/uk-house-price-index-england-february-2017
http://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ppd
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2015-03-31_ldf_cs_eip_rc021_final_shma.pdf


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 9

The shortage of development opportunities within this Township means that meeting this need will be 
difficult to achieve and is likely to mean delivering homes on sites elsewhere across the Borough, or through 
bringing empty properties back into use and making better use of our existing stock

Page 33



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 10

4. Achievements 

Key achievements from the previous Housing Strategy 2012-2016

Since 2012/13 
1,952 Empty 

Properties have 
been brought back 
into use following 

interventions.

388 new affordable 
homes have been built 
through the Affordable 

Homes Programme 
since 2012.

Since 2012, we 
have built 343 

high value homes 
(Council Tax E 

and above)

94 properties have 
benefited from £5k 

Flood Reliance 
Funding in 
2015/2016.

452 properties in 
the Private Rented 
Sector have been 

improved by 
Council 

intervention since 
2012

£17.4m of New 
Homes Bonus 
received by the 

Council and 
Invested into 

Rochdale 
Borough since 

2012.

3,825 energy 
efficiency 
measures 

provided by the 
Council since 

2012

Since 2010/11 a 
total of 6,988 

households have 
been prevented 
from becoming 

homeless.

1,915 New Build 
properties built 

since 2012.

Number of households 
living in temporary 
accommodation has 

decreased by 20since 
2012. 

7,035 of people re-
homed in since 

2012 via 
Rochdale’s Home 
Choice Scheme 

731 adaptations 
installed through 
Disabled facilities 

Grants (DFGs) since 
2012. 

Page 34



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 11

5. Challenges & Opportunities

5.1 Challenges

Reduction in Local Government Funding
Since 2010, Central Government Grant support to local authorities has been subjected to significant cuts as 
part of national austerity measures intended to help address budget deficit.

Rochdale Council has faced a reduction of £103m in the amount of Government funding received since 
2010. The Council is required to make further £51m of savings over the next two years. 

These significant savings mean that the Council has to be more creative about how services are delivered 
and funded. This involves undertaking regular service reviews and continuing to strengthen our approach to 
deliver strategic priorities and to minimise the impact on the Borough’s vulnerable residents. 

Welfare Reform
The impact of Welfare Reform has presented significant challenges to housing providers with the effect that 
the under occupancy charge and Universal Credit have had on tenants’ capacity to pay their rent. 

A number of changes have already been implemented, details of these are below:
 The Benefit Cap - From December 2016 a reduction in the Benefit Cap was introduced for existing 

capped claimants and anyone new to the Benefit Cap. In Rochdale Borough, as of February 2017, 
287 households were affected with the majority residing in the Rochdale Township. 

 Universal Credit - from April 2016 the amount of Universal Credit received will gradually reduce 
when the claimant earns more money, but unlike Job Seekers Allowance the payment will not just 
stop. 

 Under Occupancy Charge is a change to Housing Benefit Entitlement that means claimants receive 
less in housing benefit if they live in a registered provider property that is deemed to have one or 
more spare bedrooms. This change has had a huge impact on the Borough.  In April 2013 the DWP 
predicted 3,285 households in the Borough would be affected by the under- occupancy rate, by 
December 2014 this had reduced to 2,212 households. 

We will continue to work closely with registered providers and other agencies to monitor and better 
understand the impact of welfare reforms so that we can work together to mitigate negative consequences.  
Registered providers in the Borough have introduced financial assessments and rent in advance since the 
introduction of the reforms in 2013.

5.2 Opportunities

Greater Manchester Spatial Framework5

Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) has produced a draft joint plan ‘The Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework (GMSF)’ to manage the supply of land for jobs and new homes across Greater 
Manchester. The purpose of the GMSF will ensure that the right land is in the right places, to deliver the 

5 https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20018/greater_manchester_spatial_framework 

Page 35

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20018/greater_manchester_spatial_framework


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 12

homes and jobs Greater Manchester need up to 2035, along with identifying the new infrastructure (such as 
roads, rail, Metrolink and utility networks) required to achieve this.
 
This GMSF is a draft overarching development plan within which Greater Manchester’s ten local planning 
authorities can identify more detailed sites for jobs and homes in their own area.  As such, the draft GMSF 
will not cover everything that a local plan would cover and individual districts will continue to produce their 
own local plans. 

The draft GMSF states a total housing requirement of 15,500 over the next 18 years up to 2035, with average 
annual requirement of 775 (90% houses and 10% apartments). 7% of all new housing developments in 
Greater Manchester will be in Rochdale. 

Rochdale has been included within the Northern Gateway section of the draft GMSF along with neighboring 
Authorities Bury and Oldham. A number of large development sites have been identified in this area, 
primarily on Greenbelt land, which has caused a great deal of contention with the local community. Strategic 
Housing and Planning will be working closely together to ensure the targets identified within the final 
version of the GMSF are achieved.

The annual requirement in GM is 11,360 new homes, with 775 being in Rochdale. This is an increase of 315 
units per year from the Core Strategy requirement. 

Greater Manchester Housing Investment Fund6

This Greater Manchester Housing Fund is designed to accelerate and unlock housing schemes. It will help 
build the new homes we need to support our growth ambitions across Greater Manchester.

The £300million Greater Manchester Housing Fund will be used primarily as development finance, to 
support housing growth across Greater Manchester and increase the number of new homes being built. 
Funding will be made available to accelerate or unlock fundamentally viable housing schemes. Access to the 
fund is on a recoverable capital investment basis and for private sector-led schemes.

Development finance will usually be in the form of a loan offered with an appropriate state aid compliant 
interest rate applied. Final offer rates will depend on the specifics of the project, the creditworthiness of the 
borrower, the nature of the proposed investment, and the security offered. 

The amount of funding available for each scheme will be based on an assessment of the minimum level of 
finance needed to unlock the project’s delivery.

Greater Manchester Land Commission
GMCA has created the Greater Manchester Land Commission. The Commission has an overview of all 
publicly-owned land in the sub region, including that owned by Government and other public sector bodies. 
Its role is to look at and co-ordinate how that land can be used to support Greater Manchester’s wider 
ambitions - including the need for 10,000 new homes a year to support its growing economy and 
communities - and address any barriers to such land being developed. The Commission is jointly chaired by 
the Mayor and Housing Minister and will include Ministers from other key landowning departments.

6 http://www.manchester.gov.uk/downloads/download/6252/greater_manchester_housing_fund_prospectus
 

Page 36

http://www.manchester.gov.uk/downloads/download/6252/greater_manchester_housing_fund_prospectus


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 13

Greater Manchester Memorandum of Understanding
This MoU is an agreement between GMCA and Greater Manchester Housing Providers (GMHP) to establish 
a single strategic partnership at GM level. The MoU provides clarity around how partnership arrangements 
between GMHP and the GMCA will be structured to limit the duplication of effort and simplify 
communication. GMCA approved the MOU with the Greater Manchester Housing Providers Group in 2016, 
and work on the action plan is currently ongoing. 

The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) recognises the GM housing providers’ track record of 
delivering positive change, will enable them to play a pivotal role along with the ten local authorities in 
further developing new approaches to growth, public service reform and the management of place as the 
Combined Authority’s strategy is rolled out. 

Greater Manchester Joint Venture
The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) and the GM Housing Providers (GMHP) are 
proposing a Joint Venture, which will be a 50:50 partnership arrangement combining Local Authority land 
with GMHP financial resources, to fund a JVCO to build out a programme of sites. 

The Joint Venture will provide above and beyond the HCA Affordable Homes Programme, with an 
estimated 4,000 new affordable homes over the next 10 years across GM.

The Council will be able to sell the land or invest as equity depending on the objectives of the development. 

It is crucial that Rochdale Council is part of this arrangement to accelerate growth and increase affordable 
residential development.

Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) Funding Programmes
The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) supports the Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
(GMCA) in the delivery of its Housing Investment Fund. The HCA works with Housing Associations to 
deliver affordable housing including a new target of 400,000 new homes in England by 2021. The HCA also 
manages the Government’s Help to Buy scheme.

Help to Buy (equity loan) is available to eligible purchasers and is paid directly to registered house builders. 

The Government announced an extra £1.4 billion for the Affordable Homes Programme in October 2016, 
taking total investment in this programme to over £7 billion to build around 225,000 affordable homes. This 
investment will help families to find a decent home that is right for them. The 2016 to 2021 Shared 
Ownership Affordable Homes Programme was originally designed to focus on delivering affordable homes 
for sale i.e. shared ownership and Rent to Buy. Now the Government has opened up the programme, 
relaxing restrictions on funding, so providers can now build affordable homes for both rent and sale.

Since 2012, there have been 388 new affordable homes built through the Affordable Homes Programme 
(AHP) in the Rochdale Borough.

New Homes Bonus
The New Homes Bonus (NHB) was introduced by the Coalition Government with the aim of encouraging 
local authorities to grant planning permission for the building of new houses in return for additional revenue. 
It is a scheme to incentivise house building.  

Page 37



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 14

Since 2012, Rochdale Council has benefited from £17,366,071 from the NHB and this opportunity for 
additional revenue will continue over the next 5 years. We need to ensure that new build properties continue 
to be developed in Rochdale to enable additional funding through the NHB to continue.

We need to ensure we take advantage of these opportunities to accelerate growth, assist with the 
development of new affordable homes and provide additional revenue for the Council.

Page 38



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 15

6. Wider Strategic Context

The Greater Manchester Strategy 7 
This strategy establishes the priorities for Growth and Reform for the city region. It prioritises the growth of 
the economy and underlines the importance of helping local people access the opportunities from this 
growth. It recognises that our homes, neighbourhoods, transport links and services all work together to 
attract and keep the workforce we need to achieve greater prosperity.

6.1 Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
(GMCA)8

Greater Manchester is one of the country's most successful 
city-regions. It is made up of the ten Greater Manchester 
councils. An elected Mayor will work with other local 
services, businesses, communities and other partners to 
improve the city-region.

The ten councils (Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Oldham, 
Rochdale, Salford, Stockport, Tameside, Trafford and Wigan) 
work together on issues that affect everyone in the region, 
such as transport, regeneration, housing and attracting investment. 
  
6.2 Devolution

Greater Manchester is the first city-region to be given substantial devolved powers, gaining control over 
much of the health, transport, planning, adult social care and housing budgets, previously controlled 
centrally by the Government. 

The region's new powers include:
 more control of local transport, with a long-term Government budget to help plan a more modern, 

better-connected network;
 new planning powers to encourage regeneration and development;
 a new £300m fund for housing: enough for an extra 15,000 private new homes over ten years;
 extra funding to get up to 50,000 people back into work;
 incentives to employers to develop more local work-related training;
 extra budget to support and develop local businesses;
 the role of the Police and Crime Commissioner merged with the elected Mayor; and
 greater control over health and social care to enable Greater Manchester to have a bigger impact, 

more quickly on the health, wealth and wellbeing of people in the sub region.

7. Delivery through our partnerships

Partnership working is at the heart of the development and delivery of this housing strategy, so ‘we’ means 
all of us who work together, so that our homes and neighbourhoods can benefit the city and its residents:

 The residents of the Borough of Rochdale

7 https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20067/greater_manchester_strategy 
8 https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/ 

Page 39

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20067/greater_manchester_strategy
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 16

 Rochdale Borough Council
 The Greater Manchester Combined Authority
 Rochdale’s Development Agency
 Homes and Communities Agency
 Registered Providers
 Private Landlords
 Health Services
 Developers and House Builders
 Investors
 Education Providers
 Local Businesses

and many more… 

Our Housing Provider partners can:

 Make sure there are the right homes in the right places
 Ensure access to housing for the most vulnerable and tackling homelessness
 Provide advice and information about housing opportunities to support health outcomes
 Provide opportunities for home ownership to create sustainable communities
 Manage homes and neighbourhoods to provide safe and secure environments
 Support independent living through specialist accommodation and equipment and adaptations 
 Use their experience of engaging with communities to promote healthy lifestyles
 Work with residents to foster behavioural change
 Provide volunteering opportunities to encourage community involvement and support neighbourhood
 Bring knowledge of residents and neighbourhoods to inform evidence to support planning of services
 Engage with health and care services at a local level

Through the day-to-day contact with tenants and residents in our neighbourhoods, our housing providers are 
uniquely placed, to make a significant contribution to achieving the following: 

 Reducing dependency
 Tackling worklessness
 Supporting improved health outcomes
 Promoting financial inclusion
 Fostering aspiration
 Encouraging community cohesion
 Organising youth interventions
 Providing effective neighbourhood management
 Tackling antisocial behaviour
 Maintaining good environment management
 Offering opportunities for resident engagement and contribution

We will continue to work in partnership with our providers to ensure that this close working continues with 
our residents across the Borough.

Page 40



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 17

The delivery and success of our strategy will be taken forward through our partnership structures including 
Rochdale’s Strategic Housing Partnership (RSHP).

The RSHP will retain an overview of the different elements of the delivery and maintain a suite of indicators 
that capture the high-level outcomes.

Linked to the RSHP will be task and finish groups that work at an operational level to tackle some of the 
individual tasks required to achieve the overall priority.

Our Registered Provider partners in the Borough include:

Page 41



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 18

Priority 1: New homes 

Increase the supply of new homes to meet the needs and aspirations of our residents 
across the Borough.

Our goals for 2022

1. Have 2,300 more new build homes across the Borough.

2. Provide good-quality homes that attract people to live in the 
Borough.

3. Support the housing aspirations of the new and existing residents 
to ensure there is a wide choice of homes in a range of different 
tenures.

4. Increase the number of high value homes (Council Tax E and above).

5. Maximise the development of new build homes on Brownfield land.

Where are we now?

 The Councils Core Strategy identifies a target to bring forward 80% of its housing requirement up 
to 2028, i.e. 7,360 additional new homes from Brownfield sites. The Council is working with 
landowners, housebuilders and the Homes and Communities Agency through Government 
initiatives and funding streams to accelerate the delivery of homes from sites within the urban area.  

 Since 2012, they have been 1,915 new build properties built in the Borough, which is an average of 
383 units per annum, 77 units less than the target figure contained within the Core Strategy. 

 At present we do not have enough high value housing in the borough, with only 7% of homes in 
Council Tax Bands E and above, compared to the national average of 19%. The provision of high 
value housing could increase the wealth profile of the Borough by retaining existing, and attracting 
new, higher income earning households and skilled workers to underpin the local economy.

 The regeneration of the Boroughs town centres is a key priority for the Council. Housing has a key 
role to play in this regeneration, by encouraging people to move into the town centres. The Council 
is currently developing Masterplans for Rochdale, Heywood and Middleton Town Centres and 
these masterplans will include a commitment to improve the housing offer in these town centres, by 
bringing underutilised properties and sites back into use, assisting in the conversion of commercial 
properties into residential uses and building new accommodation to increase choice.

 Rochdale Council has a self-build register in place that records the demand across the Borough, 
currently (April 2017), there are 6 people on the register who have expressed an interest. The 
Council is looking at potential sites for self-build initiatives to meet this need.

Page 42



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 19

What do we need to do next?

 Increase housing supply to meet demand by exceeding the Core Strategy target of 460 units per 
annum.

 Work pro-actively with developers and registered providers in the Borough, to ensure new 
developments meet the demand requirements and Core Strategy target.

 Develop a Residential Growth Strategy for Rochdale in partnership with planning linked to the 
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework to publicise land and accelerate growth.

 Work closely with the Homes and Communities Agency and private developers to bring forward 
sites for development.

 Explore potential opportunities for new and innovative investment, to support new housing delivery 
across the Borough.

 Support the development of new homes, as part of Rochdale Borough’s Town Centre regeneration 
initiatives.

 Explore opportunities to develop co-operative and community led housing initiatives in the 
Borough

 Support Self-Build initiatives in the Borough by identifying sites for development.

 Ensure partnership working with Health, Education, Planning, Estates and Highways exists with all 
new housing developments to provide a holistic approach.

 Continue to review and update Housing Market data, to ensure Rochdale Council has up to date 
information relating to need, demand, affordability and future requirements to inform decisions.

Figure 1: Taylor Wimpey                                
Pennine Gate, Rochdale

Figure 2: Barratt Homes                                         
St Martins View, Castleton

Page 43



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 20

Priority 2: Making best use of all our homes 

Make better use of our existing homes in the Borough including bringing empty 
properties back into use and addressing climate change issues.

Our goals for 2022

1. Bring long term empty properties back into use and prevent occupied 
properties from becoming empty.

2. Purchase derelict buildings and sites back into the Council’s 
ownership to accelerate new development or renovation.

3. Reduce fuel poverty and ensure new and existing properties are more 
energy efficient.

4. Reduce Carbon Emissions from domestic properties across the 
Borough.

5. Alleviate water damage to properties in flood risk areas.

Where are we now?

 Since 2012 the Council have assisted owners of 2,119 empty properties to bring them back into use.  
We need to continue this work to ensure the number of empties remains at a minimum. 

 The Council has highlighted several vacant properties and sites in prominent locations where the 
owners have either refused to engage or have rejected all offers of assistance, including offers to buy 
the asset from them at a reasonable market value. The Council will develop a programme of 
compulsory purchases orders. It is intended that once acquired, these assets will be transferred to 
owners that will bring them back into use. 

 Residents within Rochdale have been faced by two main issues due to climate change; the older 
housing stock within the Borough preforms very poorly in terms of energy efficiency and in addition 
several residential areas within the Borough are within flood zones 2 and 3. In partnership with 
Greater Manchester, we have been working with EON to provide boiler replacements to eligible 
residents living in the private sector. 20 residents have benefited from this scheme.

 The issue regarding residential properties within flood zones 2 and 3 remains a concern for the 
Council and plans are underway to mitigate the impact of future extreme weather situations with 
some strategic work completed and future measures in the pipeline. 

What do we need to do next?

 Continue to bring empty properties back into use, by utilising enforcement mechanisms including 
Empty Dwelling Management Orders, Enforced Sales, Section 215 notices or Compulsory Purchase 
Orders.

Page 44



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 21

 Undertake a programme of Compulsory Purchase Orders to bring back into use privately owned 
properties and sites where the owners have refused to engage or rejected all offers of assistance.

 Work with developers to raise energy efficiency and installation standards in new build properties to 
reduce the number of retrofits required in the future.

 Work with GM partners to reduce carbon emissions within the Borough of Rochdale.

 Explore new energy supplies such as heat pumps to reduce the reliance on gas within new build 
properties.

 Ensure new build properties have a certain standard of installation and energy efficiency measures 
that go above and beyond the standard planning requirements. 

 Continue to seek partner-funders to address the large remaining number of uninsulated, solid-wall 
private sector properties within the borough.  

 Identify properties at risk of flooding and work with the Environment Agency and other agencies to 
implement schemes to lessen the risk. 

Figure 4: Empty Property in Rochdale – Before & After

Page 45



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 22

Priority 3: A range of housing options and pathways to home 
ownership

Ensuring a range of affordable housing options are available, including pathways to 
affordable homeownership

Our goals for 2022
Key Actions:
1. Improve standards in the private rented sector.

2. Increase the number of good quality new built private rented 
properties in the Borough.

3. Increase the number of affordable new build dwellings including 
shared ownership. Rent to Buy and Affordable Rent products

4. Promote existing Home Ownership Schemes including Shared Ownership, 
Rent to Buy, ‘Help to Buy Products’ and ‘Starter Homes’ throughout 
the Borough.

Where are we now?

 The private rented sector is an important housing choice in Rochdale to meet needs. Census 2011 
reported 11,556 private rented properties in the Borough of Rochdale. Since 2012, there have been 
200 new build private rented properties built in the Borough. The rapid growth of the private rented 
sector brings with it a broad range of issues relating to standards of both property condition and 
management. Ensuring standards within this sector is an important priority for the council and we are 
currently resolving 100% of the emergency ‘Category One Hazard’ property issues within one week 
and have issued 13 Improvement Notices to landlords who were not willing undertake property 
works.

 Rochdale Borough is becoming the area of choice for investment in the development of new homes 
for private rent. The Council has in recent times been approached by several developers and investors 
regarding opportunities for new private rent developments in the Borough.  The provision of new 
homes for private rent will help widen housing choice in the Borough which is priority for the 
Council.

 The Government is committed to building more affordable homes to boost house-building and 
support households who are locked out of the market. An extra £1.4 billion for the Affordable Homes 
Programme was announced in October 2016, taking total investment in this programme to over £7 
billion to build around 225,000 affordable homes. Since 2012, there have been 388 new affordable 
homes built through the Affordable Homes Programme (AHP) in the Rochdale and we want this to 
continue and grow as demand becomes more apparent.

 The Government is supporting homeownership through Help to Buy initiatives with a significant 
number of developers across the Borough offering these products as a way to assisting first time 

Page 46



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 23

buyers to acquire new homes. From 1st April 2013 to 30th September 2016, 6329 Rochdale Borough’s 
first time buyers were assisted by an Equity Loan through the Help to Buy Scheme. In addition, 4910 
received help through the Mortgage Guarantee Scheme.

What do we need to do next?

 Encourage private developers and investors to build new private rented accommodation in the Borough.

 Work with the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) to identify potential sites for development of 
starter homes in the Borough.

 Work with the HCA and Registered Providers, developers and investors to deliver additional affordable 
homes in the Borough.

 Work with Registered Providers and developers in the Borough, to promote the various schemes and 
initiatives that are currently available to support people into affordable home ownership.

 Explore the opportunities for bringing forward alternative products and funding to facilitate the delivery 
of new affordable housing in the Borough. 

9 http://opendatacommunities.org/data/housing-market/help-to-buy/num-loans/loan-type-postcode-dis 
10 http://opendatacommunities.org/data/housing-market/help-to-buy/num-loans/mortagegaurantees/completed-loans-ons 

Figure 5: Birch Hill Gardens, Rochdale Figure 6: The Waterside, Rochdale

Page 47

http://opendatacommunities.org/data/housing-market/help-to-buy/num-loans/loan-type-postcode-dis
http://opendatacommunities.org/data/housing-market/help-to-buy/num-loans/mortagegaurantees/completed-loans-ons


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 24

Priority 4: Protect those households most at risk

Safeguard and protect our most vulnerable residents and to prevent homelessness and 
increase tenancy sustainability.

Our goals for 2022

1. No child subjected to sexual exploitation.

2. No rough sleepers across the Borough.

3. Reduction in homelessness through effective preventative working.

4. Reduction in the number of households accessing temporary 
accommodation.

5. Increased provision of Gypsy & Traveller sites to eradicate the use 
of unauthorised encampments.
 

Where are we now?
 Child Sexual Exploitation is a major child protection issue across the UK and in particular within the 

borough. The Sunrise Team11 was established to reach out to young people at risk in the community. 
We work closely with our Registered Providers and accredited private landlords to ensure that are 
aware of the Sunrise Team and the process in which to report any safeguarding issues that arise 
within their properties. 

 The number of people recorded as sleeping rough increased significantly in 2014 when 17 were 
reported. The Council undertook a further Rough Sleeper headcount across the Borough in 2015 
where 2 individuals were reported, which is the lowest figure since 2003. We need to ensure that the 
number of rough sleepers is reduced to zero.

 Rochdale Council operates an inclusive Housing Options service. The Council recognises that 
homelessness can be prevented by assisting people to address issues that have placed them at risk of 
homelessness. Since the last review in 2012, demand for assistance has increased the numbers of 
people contacting the service has risen from 5,000 in 2013/14 to nearly 16,000 in 2015/16. 

 Domestic abuse continues to be one of the main reasons for households being assessed as statutorily 
homeless. Preventing domestic abuse and supporting victims of abuse is a primary priority for the 
Council. The Council is part of a partnership of agencies across the whole of the Borough including, 
Police and Victim Support. 

 There is continued demand for supported and temporary accommodation across the Borough.  Move 
on accommodation for households have become more difficult and the average period of time in 

11 http://www.thesunriseteam.co.uk/ 

Page 48

http://www.thesunriseteam.co.uk/


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 25

temporary accommodation has increased from 12.5 weeks in 2014 to 14.5 weeks in 2016. We need to 
reduce this time to ensure temporary accommodation is accessed only for a short period. 

 The use of B&B type accommodation to meet short term provision has increased over the last 2 
years. The trend continues to increase, which is a result of delays in finding secure move on 
properties, to free up temporary accommodation. 

 The Council manages a number of schemes and projects which enable people to resettle or remain in 
their homes including the Discretionary Crisis Fund (DCF) and the Innovation Fund. The DCF 
provides essential white goods and household furniture to those resettling from temporary 
accommodation. Since 2013, 6,302 residents have received assistance from the DCF.  The innovation 
fund contributes towards food banks, and small community projects that assist people with financial 
and debt advice to help them remain in the home and prevent homelessness.  

 The development of housing options in the Private Rented Sector has been a key and essential factor 
in enabling households to find secure and affordable options, particularly in areas where access to 
social housing is limited. The Council works in partnership with the Bond Board, to provide financial 
support to underwrite rent deposits to enable vulnerable people to access accommodation in this 
sector. 

 The Council has formed a multi-agency team to tackle instances where unscrupulous landlords have 
created sub-standard living accommodation, both above and within commercial and retail premises. 
The team’s activities, named as Operation Maverick, have been particularly effective in uncovering 
and dealing with a range of criminal, social and housing issues and offences. 

 Rochdale Council has a statutory duty to ensure that all care leavers are offered suitable 
accommodation when leaving care. Rochdale has 151 cared for young people that are due to move to 
more independent living in 2017/18 and the council has developed a range of options to meet the 
needs.

 The Council provides a permanent site for Gypsies and Travellers providing 27 pitches. In the last 18 
months the number of unauthorised encampments has seen a significant increase. In order to meet 
this increased demand, the Council has piloted the use of short term temporary sites that can be used 
for authorised temporary stopping. A more permanent solution is required for the growing need. 

What do we need to do next?

 Continue to liaise with our Registered Providers and accredited private landlords regarding the 
Sunrise Team and the reporting of child sexual exploitation.

 Continue to support the voluntary sector to help us reduce the numbers of homelessness households 
and rough sleeping in the Borough.

Page 49



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 26

 Engage with all partners to identify resolutions to the challenge created by the withdrawal of housing 
benefit for 18-21 year olds.

 Support households at risk of homelessness as a result of Domestic Abuse through an integrated 
approach.

 Work more proactively with partners to provide secure accommodation more quickly, to free up 
temporary accommodation and eradicate the use of B&B.

 Continue to support vulnerable households that cannot be prevented from becoming homeless and 
provide short term and emergency housing from our Registered Provider partners for those affected. 

 Continue to work closely with the Bond Board to enable vulnerable people to access accommodation 
in the Private Rented Sector.

 Continue to provide suitable accommodation for those children leaving care.

 Work with partners to find innovative ways to provide accommodation for vulnerable households 
through the development of a Housing First model.

 Continue to administer the Discretionary Crisis Fund to assist vulnerable people to sustain their 
tenancies and prevent homelessness.

 Continue to fund community projects from the Innovation Fund to help our most vulnerable residents 
from becoming homeless.

 Review the provision of Gypsy & Traveller sites within the Borough and address the shortfall of 32 
pitches to stop unauthorised encampments.

 Identify potential sites for the needs of the Gypsy & Traveller community in the Borough.

 Continue to play an active role in ‘Operation Maverick’.

Priority 5: Contribute to health and wellbeing through the 
provision of housing with support 

Ensure alternative housing provision with support is available through effective partnership 
working with health and social care providers, for those residents with specific requirements.

Our goals for 2022

1.Increase accommodation options for older people including Extra 
Care.

2.Increase the provision of accommodation options for those with a 
disability.

Page 50



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 27

3.Ensure people have the choice to live independently within their 
own home.

4.Provide effective housing support to reduce permanent admissions to 
residential care and facilitate timely hospital discharge.

5.Provide innovative housing solutions to those people with a 
specific need.

6.Support the development of the Locality Plan to ensure a strong 
housing input.

7.Reduce the health effects of poor housing conditions.

Where are we now?

 A major strategic challenge for the Council is to ensure a range of appropriate housing, adaptations 
and support is made available for Rochdale’s growing older population. The number of people aged 
65 and over is projected to increase from 32,200 in 2012 to 43,900 by 2028. 

 The 2015 SHMA identified that the majority of older people (64.1%) want to stay in their own home 
with help and support when needed, with the majority of these being owner occupiers. 

 In March 2017 there were 373 applicants on the Council’s Housing Register, who had applied to 
move home and had chosen sheltered or older people’s accommodation as their housing preference. 
Throughout 2016/2017 there were 202 property lets made to sheltered or older person’s 
accommodation via the Housing Register; so demand for social rented accommodation is apparent.

 Rochdale Borough currently has one Extra Care scheme based in Littleborough, providing 41 one 
and two bed properties. There are plans for a further scheme in Langley, Middleton providing 98 
units of one & two bed properties.

 The Council completed 731 Disabled Facilities Grant (DFGs) adaptations since 2012. DFGs are 
provided to assist people with a physical or sensory disability who require an aid of adaptions to 
assist with staying in their own home and living independently.

 Resources for aids and adaptations remain tight, particularly for households in the private sector. 
Alternative sources of funding, such as equity loans, need to be considered to finance remedial 
measures required by older person households. 

Page 51



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 28

 10% of the population in Rochdale Borough have a disability that limits their day to day activities ‘a 
lot’12.  People with a physical or sensory disability require adaptions to their home to enable 
independent living. 

 134 people with a physical disability were registered for rehousing on Rochdale Council’s Housing 
Register in September 2017. Discussions with our Registered Provider and health agency partners 
need to take place regularly, to ensure innovative housing options are available for this client group.

 The Borough currently has 263 service users with a learning disability living in 109 supported living 
group homes at a total cost of £11.8m per annum. The average weekly cost of supported living in the 
Borough is currently £872 per person, per week. Different options and models of accommodation 
and care need to be explored.

 Currently, 37% of the people with a learning disability who live in Supported Living (98 individuals) 
are aged 55 years or over and may require more age specific services in the next 1 to 5 years. 

 Having somewhere safe and warm to live is fundamental to people’s mental health and wellbeing.  
Housing should not only provide shelter, but also a secure and positive environment, that supports 
people as their lives progress. Rochdale Borough has a number of accommodation based schemes to 
support those people with mental health illness, 127 units of supported accommodation and floating 
support is provided to 220 properties across the Borough. 

 Rochdale Council is in the process of developing and finalising a locality plan for Rochdale 
Borough. This plan will set out a vision and actions to improve health and social outcomes across the 
Borough of Rochdale. This plan will link to the overarching Greater Manchester Locality Plan and 
aid the CSR discussion within Central Government. The plan will identify how Rochdale Borough 
and Greater Manchester will address the financial gap and ensure financial and clinical sustainability 
by 2020.

 Rochdale Council are in the process of finalising the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment that will 
provide a wealth of data and information relating to health and an element of this will be housing and 
the products available and required for the future.

 Rochdale Council is a member of ‘Healthy Rochdale Homes’ which is a partnership between the 
Registered Providers, the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group. The aim of the group is to 
use the homes, workforce and strategic powers to help people live longer, happier, healthier lives, 
with fulfilling relationships and optimism for the future

What do we need to do next?

 Develop an Older Person’s Housing Strategy to identify where the provision of accommodation 
including extra care is required.

12 
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/LeadTableView.do?a=7&b=6275213&c=rochdale&d=13&e=61&g=63
44366&i=1001x1003x1032x1004&m=0&r=1&s=1494253094138&enc=1&dsFamilyId=2504 

Page 52

http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/LeadTableView.do?a=7&b=6275213&c=rochdale&d=13&e=61&g=6344366&i=1001x1003x1032x1004&m=0&r=1&s=1494253094138&enc=1&dsFamilyId=2504
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/LeadTableView.do?a=7&b=6275213&c=rochdale&d=13&e=61&g=6344366&i=1001x1003x1032x1004&m=0&r=1&s=1494253094138&enc=1&dsFamilyId=2504


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 29

 Continue to operate the Home Improvement Agency to assist older people or those with a disability.

 Explore options with owner occupiers regarding the release of equity to fund the adaptation of their 
homes to enable independent living.

 Explore options to keep older people in their own accommodation for longer and thus reducing the 
number of people in residential care homes.

 Work with Register Provider partners to review and in some cases re-purpose their sheltered 
accommodation that is no longer fit for purpose.

 Explore opportunities to increase the supply of homes for those residents with a disability.

 Continue to provide supported accommodation for these people with a mental health issue.

 Continue to monitor the demand for accommodation and support for people with a mental health 
issue. 

 Work with housing providers to develop alternative and appropriate accommodation offers within the 
Borough for those people currently in Supported Living.

 Work closely with Adult Care Services to identify opportunities to deliver supported accommodation 
in line with the Council’s strategic priorities.

 Work with neighbouring authorities to address specific disability requirements that are apparent 
within the Boroughs in Greater Manchester.

 Explore housing options for those people living out of the Borough, to eradicate costly out of 
Borough placements.

 Continue to operate Healthy Rochdale Homes.

 Continue to work with health agencies and adult social care to ensure that housing is a key element in 
all future health and wellbeing strategies and polices. 

 Work with health agencies, adult social care and registered providers to reduce the health effects of 
poor housing.

 Develop closer working relationships with hospitals in the Borough to prevent delays in transfer of 
care.

 Work with Health partners to ensure housing is a key element to the developing new locality plan for 
Rochdale Borough.

Page 53



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 30

Figure 7: Hare Hill Extra Care Scheme, Littleborough (Rochdale Boroughwide Housing)

Page 54

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwi284f7ypXVAhUHVxoKHe_cCk4QjRwIBw&url=https://www.thenews.coop/106542/sector/health/rbhs-hare-hill-wins-top-prize-rochdale-borough-design-awards/&psig=AFQjCNFH2_o84E3Z0AZJKaX2QteX4hK-cw&ust=1500561932585644


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 31

8. Process for Monitoring Compliance and Effectiveness 
of the Strategy Document 

Our new five year Housing Strategy is supported by our directorate, service and team plans. The actions and 
priorities are overseen and monitored by Rochdale’s Housing Strategic Partnership.

The delivery of objectives detailed in our Strategy is supported by other local housing-related strategies and 
the action plans.

9. Strategy Governance 

Responsible

Housing Services Manager
Housing Strategy Manager
Homelessness Manager
Housing Project Officers

Accountable Housing Services Manager

Ownership The Strategic Housing Team

Consulted

The Strategic Housing Team
Rochdale Council
Registered Providers Operating in the Borough
Elected Members

Informed

Residents
Local Businesses
Education Providers
Neighbouring Authorities
GMCA
Developers/House Builders
Investors

10. Strategy Review Date 

October 2019

11. References

Further information on the documentation that supports our Housing Strategy, can be found through the 
following links:

Page 55



Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 32

Rochdale’s Place Plan
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/placeplan

Rochdale’s Corporate Plan:
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2016-10-21-Corporate-Plan.pdf 

Rochdale’s Homelessness Strategy:
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2015-11-17-Homelessness-Strategy-2015-106.pdf 

Greater Manchester Housing Strategy
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s870/GMHSfinal.pdf 

Greater Manchester Strategy
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20067/greater_manchester_strategy 

12. Appendices

12.1 Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 56

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/placeplan
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2016-10-21-Corporate-Plan.pdf
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2015-11-17-Homelessness-Strategy-2015-106.pdf
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s870/GMHSfinal.pdf
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20067/greater_manchester_strategy


Housing Strategy
2017-2022

rochdale.gov.uk 33

 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale OL16 1YH

  rochdale.gov.uk

  01706 647474

  council@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 57



Housing Strategy
Equality Impact Assessment

Page 58



Housing Strategy
Equality Impact Assessment

rochdale.gov.uk 1

EIA Initial Screening Template 

Stage 1: Initial Screening

Directorate: Neighbourhoods

Service: Place, Strategic Housing

Officer completing EIA: Caroline Abbott

Other officers involved in completing EIA: Caroline Wolfenden

Date of Assessment: 22.08.2017

Name of policy to be assessed: Housing Strategy 2017 - 2022

Is this a new or revised policy?

New      ☒                    Revised      ☐

What is the purpose of the policy? To provide strategic direction for the Council and partners over the next 5 years in meeting 
statutory duties, delivery of housing services and accelerating residential growth across the Borough. 

The strategy has five key priorities:
1. New homes - Increase the supply of new homes to meet need and aspirations of our residents across the Borough.

2. Making best use of all our homes - Make better use of the existing homes in the Borough including bringing empty properties 
back into use and addressing climate change issues.

3. Develop a range of housing options and pathways to home ownership - Ensuring a range of housing options is available 
across the Borough including pathways to affordable home ownership.

4. Protect those households most at risk - Safeguard and protect our most vulnerable residents to prevent homelessness and 
increase tenancy sustainability.

5. Contribute to health and wellbeing through the provision of housing and support - Ensure alternative housing provision and 
support is available through effective partnership working with health and social care providers for those residents with 
specific requirements.

Are there any other objectives? To contribute to the Corporate Plan priorities relating to People and Place, including: 

‘Safeguarding and protecting vulnerable people and supporting people of all ages to be healthier, confident, and resilient, in control 
and successfully managing their lives. Also enabling communities to thrive and develop.

‘Creating safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, work and invest.’

Who is likely to benefit from the policy (key stakeholders)? 

 Residents of the Borough of Rochdale

Page 59



Housing Strategy
Equality Impact Assessment

rochdale.gov.uk 2

 Rochdale Borough Council
 The Greater Manchester Combined Authority
 Rochdale’s Development Agency
 Registered Housing Providers
 Private Landlords
 Health Services
 Developers and House Builders
 Investors
 Education providers
 Local businesses

Is the policy relevant to equality?

Yes      ☒                    No      ☐

(Answer yes if you think that the policy has equality considerations for example it has the potential to affect groups in different ways. If 
you have answered yes, proceed to question1. If you answered no, move to the sign off section as no further assessment is required)

What information do you have to inform this initial assessment?

The strategy has been informed by the following data sets, legislation, national policy and strategy documents:
 The Human Rights Act 1998
 The Data Protection Act 1998
 The Gender Recognition Act 2004
 The Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004
 The Equality Act 2010
 Public Sector Equality Duty 2011
 Localism Act 2011
 Welfare Reform Act 2012
 Housing & Planning Act 2016
 Homelessness Reduction Bill 2017
 Rochdale Council’s Corporate Plan
 Rochdale Council’s Place Plan
 ONS data
 Land Registry Data
 Right Move – House Price Data
 Statutory information collected and reported to DCLG
 Homelessness Strategy 2017-2020
 Rochdale’s Core Strategy
 Greater Manchester Housing Strategy
 Greater Manchester Spatial Framework
 Greater Manchester Housing Investment Fund
 Greater Manchester Land Commission
 Homes and Communities Agency
 New Homes Bonus
 Welfare Reform – impacts and responses
 Adult care performance monitoring
 Empty Property Team data
 Housing Waiting List Data

(List or attach existing data that will help in identifying the potential impact of this policy for example previous consultation; research 
or practical guidance or any evidence or information that you already have about how this proposal might affect equality in any of the 
areas covered by the protected groups)
What is the potential impact that the policy could have with regard to the protected characteristics?
Research has been undertaken to understand the current opportunities and challenges facing the housing sector. The key issues have 
been reviewed to understand the impact on the 11 protected groups.

Page 60



Housing Strategy
Equality Impact Assessment

rochdale.gov.uk 3

Age
The strategy is not age specific but seeks to ensure that services are accessible to household and
Individuals of all ages which is a positive impact.

Older People – The strategy acknowledges the need to meet older peoples’ needs including increasing extra care provision, options for 
independent living, making sheltered accommodation fit for purpose and operating the Home Improvement Agency.  Research 
suggests that the majority of older people (64.1%) want to stay in their own home with help and support when needed. The strategy 
identifies a need to look at options to keep older people in their own homes for as long as possible through the use of aids and 
adaptions funded either via Disabled Facilities Grants (if eligible) or equity release schemes.

Young people tend to be on lower incomes and therefore struggle to get onto the property ladder. The strategy acknowledges the need 
to have a range of affordable housing options including shared ownership and the help to buy scheme to enable younger first time 
buyers the opportunity to buy their own home.

Young People are also adversely affected by the Welfare Reform changes and this strategy identifies ways in which the issue regarding 
Housing Benefit changes to those young people aged between 18-21 and single people under the age of 35 can be assisted through 
partnership working and the establishment of a sharers scheme to house these young people.

Disability
The strategy recognises the needs of people with a disability including those suffering a mental health illness, those with a physical 
disability and people with learning disabilities, which is a positive impact.

Mental Health- Having somewhere safe and warm to live is fundamental to people’s mental health and wellbeing.  Housing should not 
only provide shelter but also a secure and positive environment that supports people as their lives progress. Rochdale Borough has a 
number of accommodation based schemes to support those people with mental health illness, 127 units of supported accommodation 
and floating support is provided to 220 properties across the Borough. The HomeChoice register in April 2017 had 115 people 
registered with a mental health illness waiting re-housing which is a significant proportion of the people on the waiting list. The 
Council need to ensure that this evident demand is met through pro-active partnership working. Mental Illness is a priority for housing 
at Rochdale Council and therefore will have a positive impact on this protected group.

Physical Disabilities - Rochdale HomeChoice housing register in April 2017 had 115 people with a Physical Disability waiting re-
housing. Discussions with our Registered Provider and health agency partners’ needs to take place regularly to ensure innovative 
housing options are available for this client group. We have identified this group as another priority within the strategy which will have 
a positive impact.

Learning Disabilities – The Borough currently has 263 service users with a learning disability living in 109 supported living group 
homes at a total cost of £11.8m per annum. The average weekly cost of supported living in the Borough is currently £872 per person 
per week. Different options and models of accommodation and care need to be explored and the strategy acknowledges this as a 
priority thus having a positive impact on this protected group.

Gender Reassignment
No impact within this strategy therefore neutral.

Marriage or Civil Partnership
No impact within this strategy therefore neutral.

Pregnancy or Maternity
No impact within this strategy therefore neutral.

Race
Rochdale is ethnically diverse with 21% of the total population being from a black and ethnic minority background. The strategy does 
not identify or separate this group from others in terms of accessing housing options therefore the impact is neutral. We do 
acknowledge that some ethnic groups might have different requirements in terms of design and specification of living space in 
particular the need for large properties for house extended family under the same roof. We ensure that there is a mix of properties 

Page 61



Housing Strategy
Equality Impact Assessment

rochdale.gov.uk 4

including 4 bedroom homes when discussion new housing development with house builders.

Religion or Belief
The strategy does not identify or separate this group from others in terms of accessing housing options but acknowledges that housing 
choice can depend on the location of places of worship, which is a neutral impact in terms of this strategy.

Sex
The population of Rochdale Borough as a whole is evenly split between males and females according to the
Census 2011 data. The strategy does not identify or separate this group but does acknowledge that males and females may experience a 
different situation if they were to become homeless. Homeless men and women are given different priority depending on whether 
children are involved, however is a neutral impact in terms of this strategy.

Sexual Orientation
No impact within this strategy therefore neutral.

Servicing/ex serving members of the armed forces
There are around 14,623 armed forces veterans in Rochdale representing approximately 8.7% of the over 16 population. We know that 
ex armed forces personnel can have different needs hence why the Council acknowledges this group as being protected.  The strategy 
does not reference this group; however the impact is low because the Housing Allocations Policy gives priority to ex-armed personnel. 

Carers
Within the Borough of Rochdale 23,260 people identified themselves as a carer in the 2011 Census. According to the 2011 census 
there are 6,105 people within the Rochdale Borough (2.9% of the total local population) providing 50 or more hours of unpaid care per 
week. This is above regional and national comparators.

Careers are not mentioned within the strategy in any detail. In terms of the Welfare Reform in particular the Bedroom Tax, those 
people with a career are exempt from this change which is a neural impact.

Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact

Impact 
Score (1-

16)

Impact 
priority
(H/M/L)

Neutral 
Impact

Age
☒ ☐ ☐

Disability
☒ ☐ ☐

Gender Reassignment 
☐ ☐ ☒

Marriage or civil partnership 
☐ ☐ ☒

Pregnancy or maternity
☐ ☐ ☒

Page 62



Housing Strategy
Equality Impact Assessment

rochdale.gov.uk 5

Race 
☐ ☐ ☒

Religion or belief
☐ ☐ ☒

Sex
☐ ☐ ☒

Sexual orientation
☐ ☐ ☒

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces
☐ ☒ 4 L ☐

Carers
☐ ☐ ☒

3. Do any of your negative impact scores identify as high priority on the impact table?

Yes      ☐                  No      ☒

If you identify a negative impact as being HIGH PRIORITY you must complete a full EIA (stage 2 onwards)

4. How will you minimise/remove any negative impact that identifies as medium or low?

Serving/ex serving members of the armed forces has been identified as having a negative impact as this group have not been 
mentioned within this strategy. The impact has been rated as low due to this group being given housing priority within the Council’s 
Allocations Policy. 

5. Is a full EIA required?

Yes      ☐                 No      ☒

Lead Officer Signature: Caroline Abbott Date: 22/08/2017

Approver Signature Caroline Wolfenden Date: 22/08/2017

Page 63



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture, 
Cabinet Member for 
Business, Skills & 
Employment, Cabinet 
Member for Housing & 
Environment

Report Author Joanne Brickell
Public/Private Document

Communities, Regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 
2 Performance Update

Executive Summary

1.1 To report progress at the end of Quarters 1 and 2 (1st April – 30th September 
2017) towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy 
Directorate Plan 2017-18 and Neighbourhood Directorate Plan 2017-18.

Recommendation

2.1 Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The committee previously approved the Directorate Plans for 2017-18 for the 
Economy and Neighbourhood Directorates.

3.2 In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress towards targets contained within directorate plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

3.3 It was agreed that due to the summer break coinciding with the end of 
Quarter 1 that progress for both Quarters 1 and 2 would be combined and 
reported at the end of Quarter 2 

3.4 The Quarter 2 progress reports for the Economy Directorate and 
Neighbourhoods Directorate are attached at Appendices 1 and 2. Actions 
within each appendix have been colour coded in accordance with the 
following criteria.

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



3.5 Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 

3.6 Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 

3.7 Green: Action completed by the target date 
3.8 Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track
3.9 The appendices include a commentary against actions that are showing red, 

amber or purple
3.10 Appendix 3 provides information on the Q2 performance of Rochdale 

Development Agency
3.11 Appendix 4 gives a brief summary of the Economy Directorate performance 

in quarter 2.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 Progress

4.2 Performance Overview

90% (9) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2017-18 are not 
yet due for completion but are currently on target.  The remaining action 
Increase the effectiveness and efficiency of the Council assets portfolio 
and make it fit for purpose and sustainable, is an ongoing progress. 
However, within this action the success measure to complete investment 
Strategy and review Councils asset base to deliver increased returns for 
revenue and capital income is now complete (green).

4.3 The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in 
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 2. 

4.4

1

1

GREEN 10%

PURPLE 90%

Economy Directorate Plan: 
Summary of performance against actions

Page 65



4.5 Performance Issues
4.6 None

4.7 Neighbourhood  Directorate Plan 2017-18 Progress

4.8 Performance Overview

4.9 All thirteen actions (100%) included in the Directorate Plan 2017-18 are 
not yet due for completion but are currently on target.  The chart below 
shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan 
targets at the end of Quarter 2. 

4.10

13

PURPLE 100%

4.11 Performance Issues
4.12 None

4.13 Alternatives Considered

4.14 Not applicable.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.1

Consultation

Neighbourhood Directorate Plan: 
Summary of performance against actions

Page 66



7.1 Not Required.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Economy Directorate Plan 2017 - 
18

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 
2017-18

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Joanne Brickell,  
joanne.brickell@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 67



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

   
 

 E17006 Improve the Borough’s Town Centre’s and especially begins 
construction of Rochdale Riverside. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure planning consent for Rochdale Riverside scheme....Commence construction of Rochdale Riverside scheme....New outdoor market 
operational in Rochdale town centre....Town Centre Residential Strategies agreed for Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale....3 year Rochdale Town Centre Action 
Plan agreed... 

 

Following referral of the application to the Secretary of State, planning permission has been granted for the Rochdale Riverside scheme. ..The 
identification of sites for residential development within or around the main town centres in the Borough is taking place as part of the Site 
Allocations plan work.  With landowner interest, major opportunities being explored for Rochdale, Heywood and Middleton town centres.    
....Negotiations are ongoing with final draft contracts, to create a relocated indoor and outdoor market are with STaR Legal. Phase 1 works to the 
former Santander building have been completed; phase 2 works to be tendered July 2017.  Agreed with the Leader an approach to close the 
temporary market; discussions are ongoing with the operator. Planning permission is close to approval, the CPO is complete and Highways 
closures are ongoing. The initial draft of the strategy has been shared with Members. Further work is now underway to complete the first draft 
prior to more formal consultation. 

25/08/17 

The Council submitted a £26m bid for funding to the Government’s Housing Infrastructure Fund to bring forward a number of sites for housing 
within and around Rochdale town centre. This has potential to realise in the long term around 1900 units linked to the completion of the ring road. 
This will be turned into a Housing Strategy for Rochdale town centre. Work is taking place to look at opportunities for Heywood and Middleton 
town centres.....Planning permission granted in June 2017 for the Rochdale Riverside scheme and work is underway to comply with the pre-
commencement planning conditions. Negotiations ongoing with final draft contacts currently with concessionaire for sign off. ..Phase 1 
(remediation work) is complete. Phase 2 (structural work) in progress. Phase 3 (fit out work) detailed design underway with contact to follow 
Phase 2. ....The outdoor market has been relocated to a temporary site on lower Yorkshire Street operating three days a week. The wooden 
cabins are to be removed W/C 9th October. In respect of the permanent site a scheme of servicing agreed with Highways and is subject to 
consultation. There are some issues to be resolved with both the operator and stake holders... 

12/10/17 

 

 

 

E17001 Increase the number of local people into employment (and 
increase employment rate in the Borough)  

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Influence the number of people claiming out of work benefit through.1)    Minimum of 380 people accessing employment through Employment Links 
and. Working Well contracts...2)    100% take up of RBC apprenticeship progression and HGV training schemes..3)    Minimum of 20 front line council and 
partner staff trained to offer first stage jobs and skills support in community venues. Attracting new businesses by developing Council units – minimum 5 per 
annum. Minimum 350 jobs created through RDA support........ 

 

The borough’s employment rate has exceeded the target set (64.3% by March 18). Currently 64.3% of the working age population are now 
employed. The latest data shows the borough had the highest increase (1.1%) in self-employment in GM. Unemployment in the borough fell by 
1.1%, the second largest fall in GM and the gap between the borough and both the Greater Manchester and national rates has narrowed for both 
employment and unemployment. Activities that will have contributed to this improved performance are: the local management by the Councils 
Employment Links Team for the 120 jobs at Kleeneze on Heywood Distribution Park and the high performance of the local work Programme 
contracts run by the Council. The high increase in self-employment needs further investigation to understand if this is within the informal gig 
economy and therefore limited economic benefit.....Industrial units are maintaining occupancy levels in excess of 95%, with any vacancies being 
filled quickly. Managed work space - occupancy has significantly increased in Quarter 1 with Lock 50 and TOPS having in excess of 90% 
occupancy and Globe House having improved its occupancy to more than 70%.....51 new enquiries received and ongoing support to 16 existing 
enquiries in quarter 2. Nine project successes secured in quarter 2 including three inward investors - these projects will create 161 new jobs in 
the borough. .... 

12/10/17 

 

P
age 68



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

The latest data shows the employment rate in the borough has increased by 0.8% (900 residents) This is still significantly below the national and 
north west average and is the lowest in GM by 0.8% (Manchester is second lowest). The number of borough residents claiming out of work 
benefits has fallen but the total is still the second highest in GM after Bolton. ....Industrial units are maintaining occupancy levels in excess of 
95%, with any vacancies being filled quickly. Managed Work Space - occupancy has significantly increased in Quarter 1 with Lock 50 and TOPS 
having in excess of 90% occupancy and Globe House having improved its occupancy to more than 70%.....20 new enquiries received from 
businesses and ongoing support to 21 existing enquiries in Quarter 1.       

25/08/17 

 

 

 

E17002 Increase the value of inward investment and indigenous 
business growth. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Support local business growth and promote inward investment through a targeted marketing campaign. Generate 20 leads aimed towards Target 
Sectors....Co-deliver a portfolio of target companies across the Borough for an Account Management strategy for Local Businesses – target 50 
businesses....Consult with 200 businesses per annum through Place Board Ambassadors scheme/Deliver minimum 4 events per annum....£23m of private 
sector investment generated by assisted projects.... 

 

Proposition documents for these sectors have been written by consultants. Information needs editing for use on the website and in other 
marketing formats. RDA sponsored Place North West Logistics event and RBC CEO was on the panel presenting the case for Rochdale as 
logistics location to 100 professionals in Manchester. Need to review marketing budget to identify funds for using a consultant for this work. 

25/08/17 

RDA continues to work with the Rochdale business advisor and his colleagues from the Growth Hub, to deliver business support and assist local 
businesses and inward investors looking to relocate into the borough. This included assistance with securing funding and financial assistance 
from the council.  In addition the RDA has delivered the first phase of business starter units at Dodgson Street providing new commercial space 
for local businesses with 5 out of the 7 under offer, and plans in place for the next two developments. 

12/10/17 

 

 

 

E17003 Increase the land brought forward for residential & employment 
development (Council and private sector land). 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Consult on Draft Site Allocations Plan Document....Secure planning consent for J19 link road....Secure detailed planning consents for significant 
brownfield sites e.g. Akzo Nobel, British Vita....Bring forward Council sites for disposal or regeneration e.g. Dodgson Street, Former HMR sites....Promote the 
Borough’s portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial sites for reoccupation, refurbishment by:....(1) Securing the reoccupation of former 
ALDI and Tesco units on Stakehill..(2) Target of 2 new build units developed on Kingsway... 

 

An initial consultation on the preparation of the Core Strategy site allocations plan ended on 14th August.  A total of 12 responses were made 
and 30 sites were put forward for assessment.  Further consultation is planned for the Autumn.  The HCA has taken on the former Akzo Nobel 
site and is likely to submit an application to vary the original consent to facilitate implementation of the permission. Although the HCA had 
intended to increase the affordable housing, the government has delayed the proposals for starter homes set out in the White Paper and the HCA 
is therefore unable to bring this forward at the current time.                                             ..Russells has submitted additional information to support 
the planning application. This has been publicised in the local press and re-consultation letters have been issued to residents and consultees. 
The application will be presented to the Planning and Licensing Committee the new year subject to the outcome of the consultation. Working with 
landowners a bid was submitted to the Housing Infrastructure Fund to construct a new link road through the former British Vita site in East 
Middleton.   ....Seven new starter units are under construction at Dodgson Street Rochdale, and despite slippage in the development programme, 
are expected to be completed by mid-October. A number of units are under offer and are expected to be let and occupied before the end of 
October...    ..Stakehill has a number of development opportunities – Tesco, Sainsbury’s and former Culina unit. Rochdale Central was bought by 
PIN in Q1 and has had 2 refurbished buildings. Meeting taken place to deliver building on Bradfearns for local company. Tesco unit on Stakehill 

12/10/17 

P
age 69



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

has commenced redevelopment and is due for completion in late 2017. .. 
Work commenced on the production of a Draft Allocations DPD. Initial consultation regarding the scope of the plan and a ~call for sites~ exercise 
to start in July and end on the 14th August. ....The HCA has taken on the former Akzo Nobel site, which has a detailed consent in place. It is 
likely the HCA may seek to vary the existing consent in the next few months to increase the affordable housing provision to 50% starter homes. 
Outline planning permission granted for British Vita. Application for reserved matters for Phase 1 scheme expected in Autumn 2017. ....Further 
supporting information is due to be submitted to Russell Homes in the coming weeks. Re-consultation will then take place with residents and 
consultees. If this information is not forthcoming, this may delay the presentation of the application to the Planning and Licensing Committee. 
....Seven new starter units are under construction at Dodgson Street Rochdale, and are expected to be completed by the end of August 2017.            
....Continuing to engage with existing Account Managed businesses and add to list through Place Brand initiative...      ..First quarterly business 
networking event is to be held in early July 2017.....Planning applications for Kingsway will be submitted as and when occupiers are signed up 
however Plot D is likely to be the first scheme to go forward for planning once costings are received.....Stakehill has a number of development 
opportunities - Tesco, Sainsbury’s and former Collina unit. Rochdale Central was bought by PIN in Q1 and has a number of refurbishment 
opportunities. Meeting taken place to deliver building on Bradfearns for local company. The Tesco unit on Stakehill has commenced 
development... 

25/08/17 

 

 

 

E17004 Maximise income generation for the Council (capital and 
revenue). 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure 2% growth in overall rental levels by proactive management of Council assets....Minimum of 15 Council assets brought to auction....Identify 
Council assets for disposal to generate capital receipts....Deliver the savings targets by investment in property through the Commercial Investment Fund....Apply 
20% fee increase for processing planning applications ....Achieve 5% increase in Building Control income....Secure additional £1m Business Rate payable 
growth through RDA assisted projects... 

 

The Government is yet to put in place the necessary legislation to allow the 20% fee increase to be applied. Although this was expected in 
Autumn, there remains no confirmed date for Parliament to consider the legislation. Current income from PPAs is £16,939. This is less than 
expected for Q2 and reflects fact that few major applications have been submitted. Although some developers, such as Taylor Wimpey, will 
engage in PPAs, the entering into of a PPA is not a statutory requirement. The service is working to promote the merits for an applicant of 
entering into a PPA to encourage their wider use and maximise additional income. Building control income remains above the 5% target, 
currently standing at approx. 8% up on this time last year. ....Investment portfolio is under review, with a particular emphasis on industrial and 
miscellaneous assets. Two acquisitions have been completed for the combined sum of £9m, in order to achieve a rental return in excess of 6.5%. 
The capital programme has been altered to bring forward £20m from 2018/19 into 2017/18 to facilitate further acquisitions as opportunities arise. 
Additional Legal Assistants are being recruited to provide capacity to prepare sites and to undertake their disposal. A number of sites are being 
prepared for disposal for residential development, including 5 sites on Langley, and land surrounding Tonge Hall, Middleton.  

12/10/17 

The Government is yet to put in place the necessary legislation to allow the 20% fee increase to be applied. It is anticipated this will now come 
into force in the Autumn but there is no confirmed date. The service has secured the Building Regulations work for construction of the Rochdale 
Riverside development.....Investment portfolio is under review, with a particular emphasis on industrial and miscellaneous assets. Two 
acquisitions have been completed for the combined sum of £9m, in order to achieve a rental return in excess of 6.5%. The capital programme 
has been altered to bring forward £20m from 2018/19 into 2017/18 to facilitate further acquisitions as opportunities arise. Additional Legal 
Assistants are being recruited to provide capacity to prepare sites and to undertake their disposal.   ....Building Control income is approximately 
up 10% on this time last year (up to end of period 5) and so currently exceeds the 5% target for the fiscal year by 100%. The service has secured 
the Building Regulations work for construction of the Rochdale Riverside development.      ..                 

25/08/17 

 

 

 

P
age 70



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

E17005 Increase the effectiveness and efficiency of the Council assets 
portfolio and make it fit for purpose and sustainable. 

 31 October  2017   

Objectives: Complete Investment Strategy and review Councils asset base to deliver increased returns for revenue and capital income  
A report was presented to the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 18 July 2017, which gave a comprehensive summary of the 
progress and achievements against the Asset Strategy objectives up to March 2017.  

25/08/17 

The actions in the Asset Strategy continues to be delivered, helping to transform the Councils property management activity.  12/10/17 
 

 

 

E17007 Improve and protect the quality of our built and natural 
environment. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Progress delivery of River Roch (Littleborough – Rochdale) flood alleviation scheme (in partnership with Environment Agency):....1) Support EA to 
complete Business Case and final design....Adopt Supplementary Planning Document for College Bank/Lower Falinge and Rochdale Infirmary sites....10 
positive actions taken to resolve significant breaches of planning/building control regulations to improve condition of derelict/vacant land and building 
construction standards across Borough... 

 

Ground investigations have now been completed by the Environment Agency for the river roch flood alleviation scheme. The EA have been 
meeting with major landowners and project beneficiaries and to develop further designs to support the submission of an outline business case for 
the Roch scheme by the end of October 2017. Various enforcement notices have been served at Collop Gate Farm and The Klondike. An appeal 
against the latter has been received and is awaiting a start date from PINS. Further legal action is being considered.  

12/10/17 

Ongoing partnership working including meeting with major project beneficiaries and landowners, confirmation of funding  strategy, review of 
ground investigation and early design proposals and assistance with preparing the Outline Business Case for the EA to submit in October. A 
scheme consultation ~drop-in~ event was held on 29th June in Wardleworth.....Temporary Stop Notice served at Collop Gate Farm to halt 
unauthorised tipping of waste building materials. Further legal action being considered. ....The preparation of a Supplementary Planning 
Document is a requirement of any bid for Estate Regeneration funding.  Consultation on a Draft SPD expected to take place in early 2018.      

25/08/17 

 

 

 

E17008 Increase the quality and best use of the Borough’s Heritage 
assets. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Complete Middleton THI project to include restoration of Long Street Church and School....Develop viable and sustainable strategies for the repair 
and reuse of the Borough’s heritage assets to include:..(1) Agree long term strategy for re-use of Rochdale Town Hall. (2) Prepare development brief for 
marketing/disposal of land around Tonge Hall for enabling development. (3) Secure grant funding for an agreed schedule of repair works to Hopwood Old 
Hall.(4) Submit Stage 2 HLF Bid for GM Fire Service Museum....Progress the ELR extension to Castleton through:....(1) Adoption of Regeneration Masterplan 
for Heywood Station and Action Plan..(2)  Completion of feasibility study at Castleton station... 

 

Following discussions with The Heritage Lottery Fund regarding the Town Hall funding bid and, subject to Cabinet agreement, the Council will be 
submitted a reduced Phase 1 bid for the project on 1st December 2017.  Following the advice of Historic England, the Council commissioned a 
landscape character study to explore the potential of development taking place sympathetically around the heritage asset with the intention that 
any capital receipt from the sale of the land be put towards the restoration of the Hall. The findings of this study have been agreed with Historic 
England and parcels of land suitable for development identified.  These have reduced the potential scale of development which could be brought 
forward on the site and therefore the capital receipt the Council can reasonably expect for the land which may require gap funding such as a 
grant from Historic England, or other funding, to be identified to fully meet the costs of restoring the Hall.  The land will shortly be marketed for 

12/10/17 

P
age 71



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  5  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

residential development.  There is already developer interest in the site subject to securing the necessary planning consent.   ....Following the 
Stage 1 HLF approval for the relocation of the Rochdale Fire Station Museum into the old building on Maclure Road work is progressing to 
prepare a detailed Stage 2 funding bid.  A consultant team have been appointed and the Council working in partnership with the Museum and the 
Fire Service to submit a detailed bid in February 2018.  ....Following the completion of a condition survey of the building, the Council has met with 
Historic England to discuss the submission of an application for ‘Heritage At Risk~ grant funding to undertake a series of recommended structural 
repairs on Hopwood Old Hall to weather proof the building... 
Unsuccessful HLF bid so plans are being drawn up for alternative funding streams and phased implementation.  Work underway to assess 
programme, fundraising, costs and phasing ahead of Cabinet.....Study for Tonge Hall has been commissioned, draft report is now due and a 
meeting is to be arranged with Historic England In August.....Works at Rochdale Fire Station Museum works are ongoing having commissioned a 
consultant team.....A meeting was held with Peter Barlow (Historic England) and Mark Platt to discuss ~at risk~ funding to take forward structural 
interventions, at Hopwood Hall, addressing the findings of Ramboll report. 

25/08/17 

 

 

 

E17009 Secure tangible benefit to the Borough from GM 
Strategies/policies/funding. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure £10m funding from GM for Rochdale projects....Input to GMCA preparation of Greater Manchester Plan for Homes and Jobs....Prepare 
Rochdale Rail Strategy to support GM Rail Plan....Form partnerships with adjoining Districts to plan delivery of cross boundary development 
opportunities....Prepare a pipeline of transport investment projects to support 2040 Transport Strategy and development of a GM Transport Fund 2....Work with 
Oldham to secure a direct Metrolink service to Manchester Piccadilly....Ensure leading performance in GM for GMCA commissioned Skills for Employment 
programme delivered by Employment Links through:..1) Qualifications.2) Jobs. 

 

(Part 2).The GMCA has recently announced the intention to prepare a revised Draft version of the Spatial Framework for a 12 week consultation 
commencing 12th June.  The responses made to the previous consultation have been published and work is taking place to review these 
alongside the collation of updated evidence to support the GMSF growth assumptions prepare a revised draft GMSF for consultation June 2018.  
This will include an evaluation of sites submitted as part of the consultation process.  The GMCA submitted a bid for funding for the extension of 
the Junction 19 link road scheme in June 2017 with a decision expected before the end of 2017.  

12/10/17 

The following GM economic development programmes are performing as follows. Get Digital Faster (Superfast Broadband) – recently confirmed 
that all of the borough’s priority cabinets (those important to businesses) will be completed by March 18, when the public (LA and ERDF) 
programme ends. Virgin Media starting with Littleborough in January to deliver ultra-fast Fibre to the Premises (FTTP) without public subsidy but 
part of the GMCA Digital Infrastructure Strategy.  Council supporting with local liaison to minimise disruption and ensure local community are kept 
informed and any issues dealt with promptly.....Skills for Employment (updating skills to meet current and future employer demand) – delivered by 
the Councils Employment Links Team. Rochdale residents have gained more qualifications than any other GM district (291 qualifications 
compare to 2nd place Manchester with 189). 130 unemployed residents have started work experience placements and 168 have gained 
employment (2nd highest after Manchester). Employment Links won the top award at the recent Skills for Employment Awards for best 
performing team across Greater Manchester. Working Well (unemployed residents with health conditions into work) – delivered by private 
company, Ingeus with LA, EU and DWP funding.  To date 193 borough residents have been helped into work which is above the targets.....GM 
Business Start-up contract – decision on EU match funding delayed by DCLG. Local contribution identified. Expected November start date but 
with current gap in start-up advice being plugged by Council and Growth Hub... 

12/10/17 

Work continuing to support the GMCA prepares a revised draft GMSF for consultation June 2018.  Northern Gateway masterplan to be 
completed by Autumn 2017.  A £10m bid for NPIF funding was submitted in late June 2017 by the GMCA for the extension of the Junction 19 link 
road scheme with a decision expected before the end of 2017. ....First draft Rail Strategy, completed for consultation internally and with key 
stakeholders. A further draft will follow in Autumn 2017. ....Northern Gateway masterplan being developed for GMSF opportunity sites jointly with 
Oldham and Bury through sharing of staffing and resources. ....Pipeline of schemes being worked up in conjunction with Bury, Oldham and 

25/08/17 

P
age 72



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  6  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

TFGM linked to the GMSF site allocations work. ....A report will be presented to a future GMCA looking at options for the introduction of a 
Rochdale - Piccadilly service. ....Rochdale (delivered by ELP) - highest number of qualifications to date at 141. In second place is Manchester 
with 77. Rochdale is second on job starts at 98 behind Manchester with 104 but Rochdale is highest on Job Outcomes. I.e. those that have 
remained in a first job for at least 13 weeks. This is 123% of Rochdale’s annual target. 

 

 

 

E17010 Deliver high quality, effective services that exceed Council and 
national targets. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Planning Performance above national targets for planning services....Successful implementation of the Councils Asset Strategy...  
Performance in Q1 exceeds the performance targets. 100% major applications (60% target), 92.86% minor applications (65%) target and 92.9% 
other applications (target 80%) determined in time of agreed time period.         ....All council assets have now been identified. Works should be 
completed by the end of the summer to map and to provide data in each asset...    

25/08/17 

Performance in Q2 exceeded the performance targets. 100% major applications (60% target), 98% of Minor applications (target 65%) and 
93.75% Others (target 80%) There were no appeal allowed against Major planning appeals within the quarter and no planning application fee 
refunds. ....All council assets have now been identified. Works to map and to provide data in each asset is well under way. 

12/10/17 

 

 

 
 

   

 

P
age 73



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  4 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

   
 

N17011 Roll out staff recognition programme  30 November 2017   

Objectives: Numbers nominations....Maximised sponsorship. 
Over 400 nominations received from residents, staff, members and partners for staff in relation to ACE staff awards, which exceeded expectations. Very positive 
feedback received. Ace Awards ceremony to take place on 30th November. 

 

 

 

 

N17013 Develop Rochdale asks in relation to GM devolution and ensure 
effective communication around maximisation of opportunities 

 31 December 2017   

Objectives: Increased awareness and influence of devolution across Council 
Work progressing. The Council has appointed a policy adviser to co-ordinate this important piece of work. 

 

 

 

 

N17001 Support the Community Safety Partnership to improve 
community safety in the borough 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Commission services for Domestic Violence and Victim Support (KPI~s TBC)....Disrupt of organised crime and modern slavery....Increase 
participation in anti-social behaviour risk assessment conference (ASBRAC) process....Implementation of recommendations from domestic homicide 
reviews....Addressing issues through allocation of Police and Crime Commissioner funding....Establish new Public Realm Team to include:. Public Realm 
Officers. Town Centre Wardens. HIT Team....Significant increases in FPN~s. 
A strategic assessment to determine priorities and key themes is underway and will be completed in Quarter 4. This will assist the Council, Police and partners 
in developing the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Plan for the next 3 years. 

 

 
 

 

 

N17002 Safeguard and protect vulnerable people and improve 
community cohesion 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Percentage of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well together in their local area (baseline TBC when q4 16/17 figures 
available)....Reduce incidents of Domestic Abuse per 1,000 residents....Increase the number of homelessness preventions compared to 16-17 ....Average length 
of stay of homelessness households in B&B for less than 2 weeks (stat figure 6 weeks).. 
The Council continues to undertake daily tension monitoring, resulting in weekly reports. This allows multi agency partners to intervene and mitigate risks and 
reduce tensions. The Council works closely with a range of groups and community organisations to develop activities which promotes community resilience and 
cohesion. There is a Diversity Calendar which informs key events throughout the year, including recently Hate Crime Awareness week. The Council is also 
working with Foundation for Peace to develop stronger communities through holding difficult conversations and other activity. 
 

 

 

 

 

N17003 Support delivery of housing target  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Regeneration of 3 infill/ brownfield sites in urban areas....64 affordable homes built by year end....Increase no. Empty Homes brought back into use 
as a direct result of intervention by the Empty Property team compared to 16-17 – target 675 in 2017/18... 

 

Regeneration of 3 infill/ brownfield sites in urban areas - Regenda are now progressing with the Ramsay Terrace site, a revised planning 12/10/17 

 

P
age 74



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  4 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

application is due soon. Regenda are also considering the Welfield surgery site as Great Places are no longer interested in the site. Willow Park 
site has now been granted planning permission and work will commence in Q3.......64 affordable homes built by year end: progress so far: Boots 
site – 37 affordable homes, Newbold – 37 affordable homes; The Strand – 16 affordable units. All 3 developments are on site and will complete 
by year end.....Increase number of Empty Homes brought back into use as a direct result of intervention by the Empty Property team compared 
to 16-17 – target 675 in 2017/18 - To end August the team had directly intervened in 388 long term empty properties that had been brought back 
into use.. 

 

 

 

N17004 Improve recycling   31 March 2018   

Objectives: Increase in amount of waste being recycled to achieve a 50% IAA recycling rate....Reduction in amount of waste going to landfill by 681 tonnes or 
1.9%.... 

 

Total recycling figures for Quarter 4 2016-17 (which are the latest figures available) Including waste from Street cleaning, Fly tipping, Bulky waste 
and Parks and Grounds maintenance show an annual Recycling rate of 47.2%.The same figure for 2015-16 Quarter 4 showed an annual 
recycling figure of 40.1% ... 

23/10/17 

 

 

 

N17005 Sustain our parks and access to the countryside  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Maintain current Green Flag status and Increase in number of  parks of ‘Green Flag~ standard from eight to nine  
All eight existing sites retained their Green Flag Award in 2017: Truffet Park, Hare Hill Park, Milnrow Memorial Park, Rochdale Town Centre 
Parks (containing Broadfield Park, Packer Spout & St Chad’s Gardens and Rochdale Memorial Gardens), Middleton Boarshaw Cemetery and 
Queen’s Park. Two new sites won Green Flag Awards at their first attempt: Jubilee Park and Hopwood Park 

12/10/17 

 

 

 

N17006 Improve the cleanliness of our Streets and Open spaces  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Increase in the numbers of Official Green Volunteers from 82 to 100 ....The percentage of land at an acceptable standard...Target 90%....  
Green Volunteers increased from 82 to 103: Use of new promotion outlets to get the message out to a wider audience.......The % of acceptable 
sites was 94.61%   . 
Green Volunteers increased from 82 to 103: Use of new promotion outlets to get the message out to a wider audience. The % of acceptable sites 
was 94.61% 

12/10/17 

 

 

 

N17007 Improve accessibility through Northern Gateway scheme, J19 
Link Road and Gateways 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Highways feasibility work completed to support Northern Gateway scheme....Design of J19 Link Road completed and ready for procurement and 
delivery by end 2021....Key Gateways improved throughout the Borough... 

 

Highways feasibility work completed to support Northern Gateway scheme: We are continuing to work in conjunction with Planning and the 
Northern Gateway Schemes.  An NPIF has submitted for improvement/extension to the J19 link Rd (£13m) – outcome expected in the 
Governments November Autumn statement.....The J19 Link Rd is on programme – Detailed design is on-going with Early Contractor Design 

12/10/17 

P
age 75



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  4 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

Involvement through the SCAPE framework.....Development and improvement of the gateways contuse with the installation of banners and 
design of other features at key locations...... 

 

 

 

N17008 Keep our roads in good condition and clean  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Deliver programme of flood resilience works and develop further flood resilience plans....Deliver annual Highways Capital 
programme....Achieve/maintain a level 3 rating for the ‘DfT Incentive Funding Assessment~ ....More of our streets and public areas to be of a good standard –
..Reduction in % of the Boroughs classified roads where maintenance should be considered. 

 

Deliver programme of flood resilience works and develop further flood resilience plans:  All the sites have been identified and work has 
commenced in determine the cause and nature of the flooding.  This is a critical step of the overall programme and it is expected that this will be 
completed this financial year with delivery the following 2 years of the three year programme.....Deliver annual Highways Capital programme:  
The highways programme is on track with most of the micro asphalt, surface dressing and footway reconstruction completed. Carriageway 
construction along Yorkshire St and Rochdale Rd East has just been completed.....Achieve/maintain a level 3 rating for the ‘DfT Incentive 
Funding Assessment - Data and information is being prepared for submission to the DfT in January to maintain our level 3 rating which we are 
very confident will be maintained. ....More of our streets and public areas to be of a good standard –The current results for 2017/18 have shown 
an overall decrease in the amount of the network that requires repair with the most significant improvement being seen in the unclassified 
network where the amount of roads requiring repair has reduced from 23% to 19% This has been achieved by adopting a preventative 
maintenance approach to the unclassified network where treatments are selected to extend the carriageway life in the most efficient way possible 
whilst also removing defects that affect the network condition score. 

12/10/17 

 

 

 

N17009 Implement customer improvement action plan including 
delivery of the Connected Council Programme phase 2 to enhance 
customer experience 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Percentage of customers satisfied with Council services (baseline data to be made available via Residents Survey)....Percentage of customers 
satisfied with quality of call handled by contact centre....Percentage of customers satisfied that the contact centre adviser was helpful and attentive.. 
In progress. Work underway on implementation of e billing for council tax and business rates. September report regarding Call Centre indicates that 99% of 
customers were satisfied with how calls were handled and 98.5% of callers stated that the call handler was helpful and attentive. Currently over 9,000 people 
signed up to My Account. 

 

 

 

 

N17010 Roll out place-based Public Service Reform initiatives to 
improve outcomes for residents in our high demand neighbourhoods 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Reduced volume of high level/ high cost responses....Numbers of people engaged in College Bank. Numbers of people engaged in Lower Falinge 
programme....Numbers of people engaged in Kirkholt programme....Increased employment from within the cohort....Increased skills levels from within the 
cohort....Improved wellbeing from within the cohort. 
Kirkholt integrated working now business as usual and place-based working in place in College Bank and Lower Fallinge. A particular focus has been on 
working with individuals and families who place a high demand on services. Excellent community involvement and positive feedback from partners on progress. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 76



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  4 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4 
 

  

27 October 2017 
 

  

         

 

N17012 Launch new three-year communications strategy and 2017-18 
plan in support of themes of:  Jobs / employment, Place tourism & 
Childhood obesity 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: To confirm baseline information from Perception Survey. ....Increased media coverage and social media audiences and engagement....Increase 
number of schools who gain the GM healthy eating award and are contributing to reducing child obesity. .. 

 

10 more schools are in line to obtain the GM healthy Eating award, before the end of the financial year. 
Communications Strategy drafted. Action plan for 2017/18 progressing well with range of positive events and promotions completed including 
apprenticeships day, Great Days out in Rochdale Guide, a range of high profile events (including Feelgood Festival, Literature and Ideas 
Festival) and a major campaign regarding childhood obesity. 

23/10/17 

 

 

 
 

   

 

P
age 77



1 
 

Rochdale Development Agency – Investment and Marketing Delivery Plan 2017-18 
 

1. Investment & Marketing 

Key 
Priority 
No 

Work Area 
Action   

Lead  Timing  

     
A. LEAD GENERATION AIMED TOWARDS TARGET SECTORS  

 Development of key 
sectors to produce 
investment leads 

Create sector propositions and sector-based marketing material for manufacturing, logistics, and food 
and drink sectors 

• Copy editor commissioned in September to edit manufacturing and logistics reports that will be 
completed and published in Q3. 

CN Sep 2017 

 

Develop and deliver targeted marketing campaign to promote Rochdale in these three sectors, including 
working with professional advisors  

CN Dec 2017 
 

Research the ICT and business services sectors to identify opportunities for inward investment and to 
develop a strategy for growing these sectors in Rochdale. 

• Need to review marketing budget to identify funds for using a consultant for this work. 

CN Mar 2018 

 

 Work alongside agents 
and other professional 
advisors to promote the 
borough and generate 
new enquiries 

Maintain and develop relationships with property agents and other professional advisors with an 
interest in Rochdale, sharing relevant marketing information with them 

• Regular interaction and contact with property agents in Manchester.  

CN/CH/MW  Mar 2018 

 

Promote Rochdale to property agents and professional advisors at events and through other networking 
opportunities 

• Attended GM Chamber Property lunch. 
• Secured panel slot for RBC CEO at Centre for Cities event in Manchester. 

CN/CH/MW Mar 2018 

 

Work with Pro-Manchester to promote Rochdale to professional advisors 
• Attended AGM lunch in July and other networking events in August and September. 
• Possible joint event with Pro-Manchester in Q4 – to be reviewed as part of Place Brand work. 

CN/CH/MW Dec 2017 

 

 Respond to target 
sector enquiries 

Manage a portfolio of enquiries from businesses in target sectors providing tailored information and 
support to secure new investment projects for Rochdale – target is 100 projects assisted and 30 project 
successes (creating 250 new jobs and safeguarding/relocating 350 jobs)  

• 51 new enquiries received and ongoing support to 16 existing enquiries in Q2. 
• Nine project successes secured in Q2 including three inward investors – these projects will 

create 161 new jobs in the borough.  

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Ensure businesses made aware of local funding opportunities where this support will influence their 
move/expansion  - target is £500,000 of public sector investment on assisted projects 

• Four projects offered financial assistance in Q2 totalling over £300k. 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

P
age 78



2 
 

Develop appropriate economic data to help support company investment decisions 
• Labour market research report commissioned – project inception meeting held end in August, 

final report expected in October. 

CN/MW Sep 2017 

 

B. ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT OF LOCAL BUSINESSES 
  Identify a portfolio of 

top companies across 
the borough  

Maintain a database of leading Rochdale businesses based upon turnover, employment, and sector 
 

CH/CN/MW Mar 2018 

Deliver a ‘call and care’ programme of activity to engage with account managed businesses, to include 
company visits and contact reports – target is to account manage 50 companies 

• Continue to engage with existing Account Managed businesses and add to list through Place 
Brand initiative. 

• Eight account management visits in Q2. 

CH/CN/MW Mar 2018 

 

Link account management activity to the development of the Rochdale Place Brand initiative, and the 
recruitment of supporters and ambassadors, as appropriate 

• Networking event with Google held in early July. 

CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

 Targeted business 
support through the 
Business Growth Hub 
advisor 

Work with the Business Growth Advisor to ensure that Rochdale businesses benefit from the services 
available through the Growth Hub – target 48 companies receiving assistance 

• Joint visits made with advisor where appropriate. 
• Thirteen Rochdale businesses were supported by Growth Hub advisor in Q2.   

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Provide referrals to the Business Growth Hub as appropriate for Rochdale businesses and those looking 
to move to the borough – target is to make 16 referrals 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

Manage and deliver Rochdale manufacturing network events that encourage businesses to share best 
practice and learn from each other – target is four events 

• Working on a new offer to businesses. 

CH Mar 2018 

 

 Closer links to the GM 
group of companies, in 
particular MIDAS and 
the Business Growth 
Hub 

Maintain and develop relationships with selected staff at GM group of companies, including MIDAS, 
sharing relevant marketing and sector information with and obtaining data that supports the case for 
Rochdale as a business location 

• Meetings with MIDAS staff continue – quarterly review meeting held in August.  
• Met with new Head of Advance Manufacturing and account managers. 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with MIDAS staff on sector-based investment enquiries where Rochdale is a location option – 
target is six enquiries 

• Worked with MIDAS on a number of enquiries in Q2, including Heathrow Logistics Hub project. 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with MIDAS staff on account management of significant companies in Rochdale, including joint 
visits and information sharing – target is six joint visits 

• One joint visit held in Q2 – two more booked for Q3. 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

C. MARKETING STRATEGY TO ATTRACT INWARD INVESTORS 
 Prepare and implement 

a new marketing 
Create an overall marketing strategy for promoting Rochdale that links the work on target sectors and 
that takes account of the work of the Rochdale Place Brand initiative 

CN Oct 2017 

P
age 79



3 
 

strategy for businesses 
in our target sectors
  

• Working with newly appointed Place Brand Marketing Group Chair to devise the marketing 
strategy that will focus on inward investment.  

• Project delayed - revised target date is December 2017.  

 

Create a communications plan for the promotion of Rochdale as a business location; to include the use 
of relevant websites and social media 

• PR agency appointed in September – due to present communications plan options to Marketing 
Group in October. 

CN/MW Oct 2017 

 

 Increased usage of 
social media to support 
marketing campaign 

Develop social media channels by generating regular content and building relationships with a growing 
network of followers, using third party suppliers to support the campaign - target is to increase followers 
on twitter by 250 to 600. 

• Monthly meetings with social media provider to share information. 
• At the end of Q2 reached 546 followers on twitter. 

MW/CN/CH Mar 2018 

 

Develop the level of activity on the RDA social media channels to increase the number of people that 
view the RDA content, the amount of interaction on social media, and the number of website referrals. 

• Staff briefing held on the importance of social media. 

MW/CN/CH Mar 2018 

 

 Structured approach to 
press releases and 
positive PR 

Work with businesses to help with their promotion, arranging senior management visits where 
appropriate, and developing good news stories to be used on social media – target is eight stories. 

CH/MW Mar 2018 
 

Work with Rochdale Council’s Communications Team to develop press releases that celebrate the 
success of Rochdale businesses and that feature the Leader of the Council – target is 12 press releases. 

• Five press releases in Q2. 

CH/MW Mar 2018 

 

 Work with the Rochdale 
Place Brand initiative
  

Work with Rochdale Council’s Communications team to deliver the Rochdale Place Brand initiative 
including participation in the Steering Group and Place Board. 

CH/CN Mar 2018 
 

Arrange Place Board meetings providing administrative and secretarial support and managing 
communications with board members 

• Board met in August. 
• Marketing sub group meets monthly. 

CH Mar 2018 

 

Develop and manage the Rochdale Ambassadors programme meeting interested parties, recruiting 
supporters and potential ambassadors, and managing communications with them    

• Ongoing meetings with businesses held. 

CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

Organise and deliver quarterly business networking events in Rochdale on behalf of the Place Board – 
target is four events. 

• Event held with Google in June. 

CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

Organise a business event in Manchester to showcase the Rochdale Place Brand to an audience of 
financial and professional advisors  

• Pro-Manchester have agreed in principle to host an event – timing to be reviewed. 

CH/CN Dec 2017 

 

Work with Zen Internet and other Place Brand partners to develop marketing approaches to promoting 
Rochdale to a national and international audience  

CH/CN Sep 2017 

P
age 80



4 
 

• Marketing sub group meet monthly. 
• PR agency appointed Sept.  

 Work with Rochdale 
Business Awards 
steering group  

Work with the Steering Group to deliver the Rochdale Business Awards in November, providing 
administrative and secretarial support and managing communications with members. 

• Event confirmed for 10th November.  

CH Nov 2017 

 

Organise a launch event in June to attract new sponsors to the event 
• Launch event held 8th June. 
• Over 70 entries received. 

CH Jun 2017 

 

Encourage Ambassadors to support the event, either by way of sponsorship, or be entering their 
business in an appropriate category. 

CH Sep 2017 

Coordinate the judging panels in October. CH Oct 2017 
Provide practical support to the event management team. CH Nov 2017 

D. SUPPORT THE GROWTH OF THE COMMERCIAL PROPERTY MARKET 
 General Maintain regular contact with property agents to ensure that the team receives information and 

intelligence about commercial land and property in Rochdale, ensuring that the EGi property database is 
kept up to date  

• Regular contact with a range of agents about property availability and occupier requirements. 

MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Provide tailored searches for companies that are looking for commercial property in Rochdale – target is 
100 companies provided with property information 

• Emailed details to companies and will continue to monitor their requirements and provide 
ongoing support. 

MW/CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with Rochdale Council to secure occupiers for industrial developments delivered through the 
Asset Development Fund initiative 

• Dodgson Street units added to EGi database and circulated on social media. 
• Continue to provide details to enquirers and refer suitable enquiries to the council estates 

team. 

MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with agents and owners to secure occupiers for units and design and build options on the major 
business parks in the borough including Stakehill Industrial Estate, Heywood Distribution Park, and 
Crown Business Park 

• Regular contact with agents, continue with joint company viewings. 
• Met with Canmoor - asset managers for the new owners of Stakehill.  

MW/CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with partners to commission research into the office market in Rochdale to explore the potential 
for new office development to be brought forward in the borough 

• Need to identify budget requirements for this research and potential funding sources. 

CN Dec 2017 

 

 Kingsway Business Park Work with Wilson Bowden and their agents to promote Kingsway Business Park to potential occupiers as 
a design and build location 

• Seven new enquiries in Q2 added to the general Kingsway schedule. 

MW/CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

P
age 81



5 
 

• Kingsway website relaunched, and social media review underway. 
Work with Wilson Bowden, Standard Life, and their agents to secure an occupier for Kingsway 216 

• Continue to market the unit – regular contact with the agents. 
• Review of marketing approach with owner, developer and agents to be held in early October. 

MW/CN Sep 2017 

 

Work with Ropemaker and their agents to secure occupiers for the four available units at Plot K on 
Kingsway Business Park 

• K40 sold to local textile manufacturing company. 

MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with Rochdale Council, Wilson Bowden and their agents to identify potential occupiers for a 
proposed speculative development scheme on Plot D1 on Kingsway Business Park  

• Lots of interest from local companies looking to expand into units between 5,000-10,000 sq ft.  

MW/CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

2. Business Parks  

Key 
Priority 
No 

Work Area Action  Lead  Timing  

A. To promote and improve a portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial Estates including (but not limited to):   
 
 Kingsway Business Park Work to deliver development across the Business Park in accordance with the overall Strategic 

Objectives of the Kingsway Partnership  
DC/RD/ER Mar 18  

Manage the  construction of a feature wall at the southern end of Sir Isaac Newton Way 
• Work is now complete. 
• Once JD Sports extension has been completed there is a need to agree a suitable location for 

the second wall. 

ER Jun 17 

 

Manage technical specialists to undertake site investigations for Plots V and M    
• Site investigation report now received – no significant ground condition issues identified on 

Plot V. 

RD/ER Sep 17 

 

Secure adoption of the Stanney Brook Corridor and Pond by Rochdale Council   
• Legal transfer documentation has been drafted and is the subject of ongoing detailed 

discussion between the Council and the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA). 

RD Sep 17 

 

Working with the Kingsway Partnership, prepare a response to the compensation claim for the former 
Hartle site    

• Legal meetings are taking place with relevant parties to understand the most appropriate 
strategy for dealing with the Hartle claim. RDA and RBC are not involved in these discussions.  

DC/RD Sep 17 

 

Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to secure funding and planning permission for a small unit 
scheme     

• Scheme has been drawn up and has been costed. 
• Negotiations are ongoing between RBC and Wilson Bowden Development concerning financial 

DC/RD Dec 17 

 

P
age 82



6 
 

aspects of the scheme. 
• Seeking approval to continue to work up the scheme on 24th October. 

Work with Transport for Greater Manchester to secure the continuation of the Kingsway Link bus 
service for 2018/19       

• Funding secured until October 2018.  
• ASDA,  JD Sports and Wilson Bowden Developments have agreed to make financial 

contributions for 2017/18. 
• Invoices have been sent out to ASDA and JD Sports. 

RD/ER Dec 17 

 

Agree an action plan with the Homes and Communities Agency for Dixon Green and Silver Hill Farms, 
and commence implementation     

• HCA have appointed GVA to look at the listed buildings. 
• Draft Heritage Significance Study has been completed, awaiting report from technical 

specialists. 

RD/ER Dec 17 

 

Work with the organiser of the Rochdale Half Marathon to ensure that Kingsway receives positive 
publicity from the event  

• Race took place Sunday 8th October.  
• Over 900 runners took part introducing Kingsway to a potentially new audience.   

RD Dec 17 

 

Work with Kingsway Partnership to deliver a CCTV system to help improve security across the Business 
Park 

• The order for a 12 camera CCTV has been placed with RBH. This will be linked to the central 
control room in Rochdale Town Centre, which is monitored by GM Police. 

• Finalising agreements with a business on site to install a relay station on their building and with 
EoN to draw power from the street lighting columns. 

ER Dec 17 

 

Work with the Kingsway Partnership to prepare and agree a development strategy for Plots V & M   
• Strategy will be informed by the results of the Plot V site investigations. This can move forward 

now the report has been received.  

RD/ER   Mar 18 

 

Work with Kingsway Partnership to secure physical completion of the exterior of the JD Sports Extension 
• Construction work is progressing on programme – scheduled external completion February 

2018. 

RD Mar 18 

 

Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to secure a retail or similar ‘village centre’ use on Plot U   
• WBD are having ongoing discussions with a potential retail occupier.  

RD/ER Mar 18 

 
Work with Kingsway Partnership to submit planning applications for 2 new buildings across the Business 
Park   

• Planning applications will be submitted as and when occupiers are signed up however Plot D is 
likely to be the first scheme to go forward for planning once costings are received.     

• Plot D will have around 10 units. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

P
age 83



7 
 

 Stakehill Industrial 
Estate 

Work with Commercial Estates Group and other landowners and occupiers to secure and enhance the 
economic attractiveness of Stakehill Industrial Estate  
Note: CEG have now sold their interest to Canmoor     

RD/ER Mar 18 

Work with CEG to implement a consistent and coherent signage strategy across the Estate       
• New totem signage installed at the Whitbrook Way entrance to Stakehill in June 2017. 
• Canmoor are reviewing signage across the estate.    

RD Sep 17 

 

Work with partners to deliver an occupier event  
• Business Breakfast took place on 11th July – attended by approximately 25 businesses.     
• Following business breakfast, a Highways Working Group has been set up to look at highways 

issues. Businesses have been invited to attend.  

ER Sep 17 

 

Implement an agreed security solution at the Whitbrook Way entrance to the Stakehill Industrial Estate  
• Proposals for CCTV were presented to businesses at the event on 11th July. Businesses broadly 

supportive.   
• Additional information received from RBH to enable permission to be sought from 4 businesses 

to install the relay stations.  

RD/ER Dec 17 

 

Work with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to implement a CCTV system across the Estate   
• Once approval from the businesses has been received, an order will be placed with RBH.  

ER Dec 17 

 
Work with Rochdale Council and business to develop an agreed vehicle parking solution across the 
Estate, including the potential introduction of yellow lining       

• Proposals for double yellow lines were presented to businesses at the event on 11th July. 
• RBC Highways have agreed some suitable solutions which will be presented to businesses on 

19th Oct. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

 South Heywood Link 
Road / Development 

Work with Partners and Rochdale Council to progress the Link Road Scheme through to a stage where 
it can be commenced on site in 2018/19       

DC/SP/RD/ER Mar 18  

Work with partners and Rochdale Council to ensure an agreed solution to achieve the diversion of the 
National Grid pipeline 

• Agreement reached with Cadent that the gas pipe diversion will be undertaken in summer 2019 
as part of the main contract works. 

• Funding agreed through Cabinet to progress the detailed design work.  

RD/ER Sep 17 

 

Work with partners and Rochdale Council to secure a positive recommendation for the planning 
application for the new link road and associated residential / employment development between the 
M62 and Pilsworth Road 

• Additional information in support of the planning application has been submitted by the Russell 
Homes team and further consultation will take place in October.  

DC/RD/ER Dec 17 

 

Agree heads of terms for the legal agreement between the Council and the developer for the Junction 
19 Link Road scheme to secure funding for the scheme  

• Discussions are ongoing between RBC and Russell Homes. 

DC/RD/SP Dec 17 

 

P
age 84



8 
 

Work with partners to ensure that legal agreements with all landowners necessary to enable the 
development of the road and associated development are signed    

• Russell Homes are leading on negotiations with landowners. 
• All land required to construct the new road is covered by legal option agreements between 

Russell Homes and individual landowners.    
• Legal meeting took place in September to determine the section agreements to agree 

dedication of land for adoption for the highway – these are being drawn up by legal and RH. 

DC/RD/SP Dec 17 

 

Work with external funders to ensure that their information requirements are met     
• Regular monthly meetings held with TfGM. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 
Work with Rochdale Council to ensure the completed design development of the link road 

• RBC Highways are progressing the detailed design of the road which is complete subject to final 
detail for HE on the slip road. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

Work with Rochdale Council to ensure the completion of the tender document for the link road   
• RBC Highways are progressing the tender documentation. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 
B. Proactively encourage new investment in sites and premises by: 
 
 Undertaking Direct 

Development (Asset 
Development Fund)  
 

Manage the Asset Development Fund,  working in partnership with Rochdale Council  DC/LR/SP  Mar 18 
Prepare financially viable direct development schemes for 2 council owned sites across the Borough 

• Market testing in progress for ‘Mossfield’, Heywood and Kelvin Avenue, Middleton. 
LR/SP Sep 17 

 
Commence the construction of the Dodgson Street direct development scheme 

• Construction in progress, due for completion October 2017.  
• 4 units under offer. 

LR/SP Dec 17 

 

Submit a planning application for 1 direct development scheme  
• Technical/Design team for ‘Bradferns’ appointed July 2017. 
• Negotiations underway with an occupier with a requirement of c15,000 sq. ft.  

LR/SP Dec 17 

 

 Commercial Investment  
Fund   

Manage the Commercial Investment Fund, working in partnership with Rochdale Council   DC/LR/SP  Mar 18 
Identify 4 opportunities where the Commercial Investment Fund can be used to the benefit of Rochdale 
Borough 

• 2 Properties have been purchased – Mecca and M&S – with a number of other opportunities 
assessed but dismissed. 

• One recent possibility was withdrawn from the market. 
• Future years’ funding is to be brought forward to 2017/18 to enable further purchases if 

identified. 

LR/SP Mar 18 

 

Complete 2 deals totalling up to £10m of investment  where the Commercial Investment Fund is used 
for the benefit of Rochdale Borough  

LR/SP  Mar 18 

P
age 85



9 
 

• M&S and Mecca, Rochdale acquired for just under £10m.   
 Working with the 

private sector to deliver 
development 
 

Work with the private sector and other partners to identify 3 opportunities for building refurbishment 
and/or new build employment developments  

• Stakehill has a number of development opportunities – Tesco, Sainsbury’s and former Culina 
unit. 

• Rochdale Central was bought by PIN in Q1 and has had 2 refurbished buildings. 
• Meeting taken place to deliver building on Bradfearns for local company.  

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

Work with the private sector and other partners to secure 1 start on site for a refurbishment and/or 
new build employment development  

• Tesco unit on Stakehill has commenced redevelopment and is due for completion in late 2017.  

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

C. Support development along major gateways 
 
 Gateway Developments  Work with RBC Highways to commence construction of the new road at Lincoln Close 

• Lincoln Close scheme is now with Balfour Beatty for detailed design work.  
RD Sep 17 

 
Work with RBC Highways to secure an appropriate vehicular access solution to the Oldham Road/ 
Durham Street development site (former Bradferns)    

• Access will be from the new road at Lincoln Close.    

RD/LR Dec 17 

 

Work with the owners of the Sandbrook Office Park to agree a strategy for the remainder of their site   
 

RD/ER Mar 18 
 

At the Edinburgh Way development  site (former Royle Works), work with Rochdale Council and the site 
owner to agree a development strategy for the site   

 

RD/ER  Mar 18 

 

  

P
age 86



10 
 

3. Town Centres 

Key 
Priority 
No 

Work Area Action  Lead  Timing  

A. Reduce vacancies in Town Centres 
 
 Business Rates 

Reduction scheme and 
for Rochdale, Heywood 
and Middleton  

Continue promotion and implementation of Business Rates Relief scheme and seek to secure the re-
occupation of 6 vacant properties in the town centres. 

• 3 vacant units reoccupied to date. 

LR Mar 18 

 

Monitor vacancy levels including the implications of the business rates revaluation and transitional relief 
on RTC and prepare a report on the success on a quarterly basis.  

• Monitoring of vacancy levels is taking place. 
• Vacancy levels are recorded quarterly.   

LR Mar 18 

 

 Independent retailer 
shop front & support 
scheme 

Continue promotion and implementation of the shopfront & start up grant scheme for independent 
retailers and seek to secure 6 grant approvals 

• 5 applications approved in 2017.  

LR Mar 18 

 

 Rochdale town centre 
vacancies  

Prepare schedule of vacancies in Rochdale town centre with support from TCM and discuss bespoke 
actions with landlords and agents to promote occupation of vacant properties 

• In discussion with agents and property owners. 
• Press releases published by comms. 

LR Mar 18 

 

B. Rochdale Riverside    
 
 Deliver the new  

Rochdale Riverside 
retail and leisure 
development  

Work with Genr8 to secure planning  permission for the scheme and to discharge any planning 
conditions and Section 106 agreements 

• Planning permission granted in June 2017 and work is underway to comply with the pre-
commencement planning conditions. 

GD/ER Aug 17 

 

Confirm and implement the necessary road closure and TRO requirements for the scheme  
• The road closure application has been approved and published by DfT.   
• The TRO requirements for the scheme are being discussed with the preferred contractor.  The 

TRO to restrict the use of Constantine Road is being prioritised. 

GD/ER Aug 17 

 

Undertake marketing and agree terms and conditions of the funding agreement with Genr8 and secure 
Cabinet approval 

• The marketing is complete and Cabinet approval to the preferred funder has been secured. 
• Work has started to agree the terms and conditions of the Funding Agreement with a target 

completion date of the end of October 2017.  

GD Aug 17 

 

P
age 87



11 
 

Work with Genr8 to procure a contractor and complete a build contract for the scheme in accordance 
with the Agreement for Lease  

• A preferred contractor has been selected but has not yet been formally appointed.  The target 
completion date for the contract is the end of October 2017. 

SP Dec 17 

 

Work with Genr8 to secure further occupiers for the scheme  
• M&S, Next and Reel have all formally signed up to the scheme and other potential occupiers 

are in negotiation.   
• It is hoped to make further announcements during October 2017 once legal agreements are 

completed. 

SP/ER Aug 17 

 

Ensure the Council secures good and marketable title to the development site  
• The remaining outstanding title matter is being discussed with the PCT.   

GD/ER May 17 

 
Work with Genr8 to agree the scheme appraisal and cost plan 

• The appraisal will be finalised once the build costs are confirmed with the preferred contractor. 
SP Aug 17 

 
Monitor compliance with  the legal obligations contained in the Agreement for Lease  

• Work is on-going to ensure Council’s obligations under the legal agreement are satisfied. 
GD/ER Mar 18 

 
Manage temporary occupation and maintenance of the Baillie Street properties and work with Genr8 to 
agree long term proposals for the properties and submission of the planning application 

• Two of the properties are currently vacant. The planning application for the long term use of 
the properties has been approved. 

GD/LR Aug 17 

 

Work with Genr8 to establish the proposals for Phase 2 of the scheme   
• Phase 2 options are currently on hold pending progress on Phase 1. 

 SP/ER Mar 18 

 
C. Rochdale Town Centre  
 
 Create a relocated 

indoor and outdoor 
market 
 

Conclude contractual and financial agreements with Quarterbridge 
• Negotiations ongoing with final draft contracts currently with concessionaire for sign off. 

JH May 17 

 
Agree and complete adaptation works to former Santander building to provide an indoor market 

• Phase 1 (remediation work) complete 
• Phase 2 (structural work) in progress 
• Phase 3 (fit out work) detailed design underway with contract to follow Phase 2. 

LR Jul 17 

 

Work with Quarterbridge to agree approach to closing temporary market including  consultation with 
existing traders 

• Approach agreed and management transferred from RBC to RDA of temporary site on lower 
Yorkshire Street operating three days a week. 

JH May 17 

 

P
age 88



12 
 

• Market closed and temporarily relocated to lower Yorkshire Street.  The wooden cabins are to 
be removed w/c 9th October. 

Confirm final detailed design and implement the servicing & loading scheme in accordance with an 
agreed programme  

• Scheme agreed with Highways and approved by the leader. 
• TRO out for public consultation and taxi drivers notified via licencing – some concerns but will 

work with the trade body to resolve. 

LR Jul 17 

 

Confirm layout and secure establishment of the outdoor market on The Butts 
• Ongoing discussions with operator. 
• 7 layout options put forward by the operator. Work ongoing to address concerns re exposed 

site and requirement for power to stalls. 

LR  Aug 17 

 

Secure planning permission, highway closure and CPO for the scheme  
• Planning consent approved, CPO completed, highway closures ongoing. 

JH Jun 17 

 
 Baillie Street and lower 

Yorkshire Street paving  
Monitor completion of the scheme & undertake consultation and liaison with businesses   

• Highways agreed approach to allow loading for temporary market – yellow lines were 
completed w/c 2nd October.  

• Interim arrangements for management of bollards has been agreed.  
• Leaflets have been delivered to businesses. 

ER May 17 

 

 Drake Street strategy  Finalise the strategy and Action Plan and seek Member endorsement  
• Discussed with Leader, currently updating and reviewing. 
• HAZ proposal submitted to Historic England to enhance the strategy. Shortlisted and awaiting 

final decision end of October. 

NB June 17 

 

Implementation first phase of projects and initiatives identified in the agreed Action Plan  
• Number 1 Drake Street and Ivesons site projects under development. 

NB Mar 18 

 
 Rochdale town centre 

masterplan & action 
plan  

Confirm and complete the masterplan and associated action plans in consultation with internal 
stakeholders and Members 

• The initial draft of the strategy has been shared with Members. Further work is now underway 
to complete the first draft later in 2017 prior to more formal consultation. 

ER May 17 

 

D. Middleton Town Centre   
 
 Warwick Mill 

Redevelopment 
Work with the owners to prepare a viable regeneration scheme for Warwick Mill and London House, to 
bring the mill back into a productive end use.  

• Owners are still developing a proposal for residential conversion of London House and Warwick 
Mill.   

RD/ER Dec  17 

 

P
age 89



13 
 

E. Rochdale Town Hall  

 Implement the long 
term Town Hall HLF 
strategy 
 

Undertake work needed to progress Heritage Lottery Bid development phase, including development of 
activity plan, designs, cost plan & business plan and the soft market testing of commercial partners 
(subject to HLF approval) 

• Agreed approach to resubmit lower bid on 1st December 2017. 

JH Dec 17 

 

Commence procurement of Design Team 
• TBC once Cabinet approval received. 
• Procurement of consultants able to progress following presentation to informal cabinet. 

JH May 17 

 

Coordinate implementation of the short term improvement works to Rochdale Town Hall including 
engagement with Historic England  

• Ongoing. 

JH Mar 18 

 

Prepare and commence implementation of an alternative strategy for the Town Hall should the HLF bid 
be unsuccessful  

• Alternative strategies identified through options appraisal. 

JH Mar 18 

 

 Town Hall Square & 
Cultural Heritage 
quarter  

Agree scope of works and procure specialist design advice for the Town Hall Square and The Esplanade 
through a design competition   

• Principles and approach agreed and working towards a sign off of the final brief. Landscape 
architects to be appointed through appropriate procurement route to meet timeframe and 
progress project. 

JH/NE Sep 17 

 

Assess feasibility and identify projects for the wider Town Hall Square & Cultural Heritage quarter and 
alignment of the works with Town Hall adaptation  

• Projects identified – awaiting clarification of works to town hall to align works appropriately. 

JH/NE Nov 17 

 

Complete schedule of work and plans for the wider Town Hall Square & Cultural Heritage quarter to 
include programme and implement any work identified in 17/18 

• Outline programme and plans produced. 

JH/NE Dec 17 

 

Coordinate feasibility study for architectural lighting in town centre - Town Hall and key buildings in 
conservation area 

• First phase works underway (John Bright Statue, Memorial Gardens Lighting & Bull Brow). 
• Tender package being developed for wider town centre lighting. 

JH/NE Dec 17 

 

F. Heritage assets  
 
 Middleton Tonge Hall Agree boundary, prepare development brief, secure planning permission and undertake valuation of 

enabling development in dialogue with Historic England 
• Studies produced and positive meetings held with Historic England regarding outline 

development. No objections and developer interest in land. 

NE Mar 18 

 

P
age 90



14 
 

  

Prepare brief for repair works to building in dialogue with Historic England 
• Structural engineer carried out scope of works that are being discussed with Historic England. At 

Risk grant expected to assist stabilising building to allow for repairs in conjunction with wider 
development. 

NE Mar 18 

 

 Rochdale Fire Station 
Museum 

Ensure submission of Heritage Lottery Fund Round 2 funding application bid for the building  
• Consultant team appointed. Plans progressing with HLF mid-point review scheduled in Mid-

November. 

NE Feb 18 

 

Provide project management support for the appointment of consultants to complete surveys, research 
and investigations 

• Ongoing. Work also underway to consider options for wider site possible through the 
acquisition. 

NE Feb 18 

 

 Hopwood Hall Identify funding for essential works needed to protect features of extraordinary significance and to 
continue regular inspections and repairs, in discussion with Historic England  

• Meeting held with Peter Barlow (Historic England) and Mark Platt to discuss ‘at risk funding’ to 
take forward structural interventions addressing finding of Ramboll Report. 

NB May 17 

 

Work with Hopwood DePree and Historic England to prepare a coherent and deliverable programme for 
the restoration and re-use of the building  

• Preparation of Heritage Open Days events.  Hopwood continuing to hold meetings with key 
stakeholders to progress scheme with view to securing small HLF resilient heritage grant. 

NB Aug 17 

 P
age 91



15 
 

RDA KPIs  

Performance Indicators RDA Annual 
Target 

Investment 
Team Only 

Quarterly 
Figure 

Performance 
to Date Commentary  

Number of companies receiving support from 
Business Growth Hub 48 48 13 31 Good progress being made with new clients.  

Number of successful inward investment 
projects  receiving RDA assistance 10 10 3 4 

Team continues to work with several businesses 
whose relocations will happen later in the financial 
year. 

 

Number of local companies 
relocating/expanding with RDA assistance 20 20 6 11 

Team continues to work with several businesses 
whose expansion or relocation will happen later in 
the financial year. 

 

Number of jobs safeguarded/relocated by RDA 
assisted companies  350 350 152 337 

Most of these jobs are from businesses receiving 
financial assistance from the Council.  

Number of new jobs created by RDA assisted 
companies or projects  250 250 161 272 

Most of these jobs are from businesses receiving 
financial assistance from the Council and include 100 
at Footasylum. 

 

Amount of floor space occupied by RDA assisted 
projects (sq ft) 500,000 500,000  323,300 Includes Clelands and Footayslum.  

Total level of public sector investment secured 
or spent on RDA assisted  projects  £3,500,000 £500,000  £534,000 

This is made up of a range of business support grants 
via the Council.  

Total level of private sector investment 
generated by assisted projects £20,000,000 £10,000,000  £11m 

Leveraged in from businesses receiving financial 
support, including £5.4m from Clelands and £1m 
from Marsh. 

 

Number of vacant properties re-occupied with 
support of Town Centre business rates scheme 6 0  3 Interest reduced due to rates revaluation in April.  

P
age 92



16 
 

 

 

Number of grant approvals for the Town Centre 
shopfront & start up grant scheme 6 0  5   

Amount of commercial floor space built with 
RDA support (sq ft) 150,000 0   Report  yearly  

Amount of commercial floor space refurbished 
with RDA support (sq ft) 150,000 0   Report  yearly  

Key Activity Indicators        

Total number of enquiries 200 200 51 84 Level of enquiries picked up in Q2.  

Number of enquiries receiving ongoing 
assistance 100 100 11 33 Team continues to make good progress with clients.  

Number of Rochdale companies account 
managed 50 50 8 12 Need to ramp up the number of visits being made.  

Number of positive news stories issued  20 20 5 7 Summer holidays impacted but will recover in Q3.  

Number of new social media followers 250 250  546 These are twitter followers.   

P
age 93



1 
 

Rochdale Development Agency – Investment and Marketing Delivery Plan 2017-18 
 

1. Investment & Marketing 

Key 
Priority 
No 

Work Area 
Action   

Lead  Timing  

     
A. LEAD GENERATION AIMED TOWARDS TARGET SECTORS  

 Development of key 
sectors to produce 
investment leads 

Create sector propositions and sector-based marketing material for manufacturing, logistics, and food 
and drink sectors 

• Copy editor commissioned in September to edit manufacturing and logistics reports that will be 
completed and published in Q3. 

CN Sep 2017 

 

Develop and deliver targeted marketing campaign to promote Rochdale in these three sectors, including 
working with professional advisors  

CN Dec 2017 
 

Research the ICT and business services sectors to identify opportunities for inward investment and to 
develop a strategy for growing these sectors in Rochdale. 

• Need to review marketing budget to identify funds for using a consultant for this work. 

CN Mar 2018 

 

 Work alongside agents 
and other professional 
advisors to promote the 
borough and generate 
new enquiries 

Maintain and develop relationships with property agents and other professional advisors with an 
interest in Rochdale, sharing relevant marketing information with them 

• Regular interaction and contact with property agents in Manchester.  

CN/CH/MW  Mar 2018 

 

Promote Rochdale to property agents and professional advisors at events and through other networking 
opportunities 

• Attended GM Chamber Property lunch. 
• Secured panel slot for RBC CEO at Centre for Cities event in Manchester. 

CN/CH/MW Mar 2018 

 

Work with Pro-Manchester to promote Rochdale to professional advisors 
• Attended AGM lunch in July and other networking events in August and September. 
• Possible joint event with Pro-Manchester in Q4 – to be reviewed as part of Place Brand work. 

CN/CH/MW Dec 2017 

 

 Respond to target 
sector enquiries 

Manage a portfolio of enquiries from businesses in target sectors providing tailored information and 
support to secure new investment projects for Rochdale – target is 100 projects assisted and 30 project 
successes (creating 250 new jobs and safeguarding/relocating 350 jobs)  

• 51 new enquiries received and ongoing support to 16 existing enquiries in Q2. 
• Nine project successes secured in Q2 including three inward investors – these projects will 

create 161 new jobs in the borough.  

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Ensure businesses made aware of local funding opportunities where this support will influence their 
move/expansion  - target is £500,000 of public sector investment on assisted projects 

• Four projects offered financial assistance in Q2 totalling over £300k. 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

P
age 94



2 
 

Develop appropriate economic data to help support company investment decisions 
• Labour market research report commissioned – project inception meeting held end in August, 

final report expected in October. 

CN/MW Sep 2017 

 

B. ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT OF LOCAL BUSINESSES 
  Identify a portfolio of 

top companies across 
the borough  

Maintain a database of leading Rochdale businesses based upon turnover, employment, and sector 
 

CH/CN/MW Mar 2018 

Deliver a ‘call and care’ programme of activity to engage with account managed businesses, to include 
company visits and contact reports – target is to account manage 50 companies 

• Continue to engage with existing Account Managed businesses and add to list through Place 
Brand initiative. 

• Eight account management visits in Q2. 

CH/CN/MW Mar 2018 

 

Link account management activity to the development of the Rochdale Place Brand initiative, and the 
recruitment of supporters and ambassadors, as appropriate 

• Networking event with Google held in early July. 

CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

 Targeted business 
support through the 
Business Growth Hub 
advisor 

Work with the Business Growth Advisor to ensure that Rochdale businesses benefit from the services 
available through the Growth Hub – target 48 companies receiving assistance 

• Joint visits made with advisor where appropriate. 
• Thirteen Rochdale businesses were supported by Growth Hub advisor in Q2.   

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Provide referrals to the Business Growth Hub as appropriate for Rochdale businesses and those looking 
to move to the borough – target is to make 16 referrals 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

Manage and deliver Rochdale manufacturing network events that encourage businesses to share best 
practice and learn from each other – target is four events 

• Working on a new offer to businesses. 

CH Mar 2018 

 

 Closer links to the GM 
group of companies, in 
particular MIDAS and 
the Business Growth 
Hub 

Maintain and develop relationships with selected staff at GM group of companies, including MIDAS, 
sharing relevant marketing and sector information with and obtaining data that supports the case for 
Rochdale as a business location 

• Meetings with MIDAS staff continue – quarterly review meeting held in August.  
• Met with new Head of Advance Manufacturing and account managers. 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with MIDAS staff on sector-based investment enquiries where Rochdale is a location option – 
target is six enquiries 

• Worked with MIDAS on a number of enquiries in Q2, including Heathrow Logistics Hub project. 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with MIDAS staff on account management of significant companies in Rochdale, including joint 
visits and information sharing – target is six joint visits 

• One joint visit held in Q2 – two more booked for Q3. 

CH/MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

C. MARKETING STRATEGY TO ATTRACT INWARD INVESTORS 
 Prepare and implement 

a new marketing 
Create an overall marketing strategy for promoting Rochdale that links the work on target sectors and 
that takes account of the work of the Rochdale Place Brand initiative 

CN Oct 2017 

P
age 95



3 
 

strategy for businesses 
in our target sectors
  

• Working with newly appointed Place Brand Marketing Group Chair to devise the marketing 
strategy that will focus on inward investment.  

• Project delayed - revised target date is December 2017.  

 

Create a communications plan for the promotion of Rochdale as a business location; to include the use 
of relevant websites and social media 

• PR agency appointed in September – due to present communications plan options to Marketing 
Group in October. 

CN/MW Oct 2017 

 

 Increased usage of 
social media to support 
marketing campaign 

Develop social media channels by generating regular content and building relationships with a growing 
network of followers, using third party suppliers to support the campaign - target is to increase followers 
on twitter by 250 to 600. 

• Monthly meetings with social media provider to share information. 
• At the end of Q2 reached 546 followers on twitter. 

MW/CN/CH Mar 2018 

 

Develop the level of activity on the RDA social media channels to increase the number of people that 
view the RDA content, the amount of interaction on social media, and the number of website referrals. 

• Staff briefing held on the importance of social media. 

MW/CN/CH Mar 2018 

 

 Structured approach to 
press releases and 
positive PR 

Work with businesses to help with their promotion, arranging senior management visits where 
appropriate, and developing good news stories to be used on social media – target is eight stories. 

CH/MW Mar 2018 
 

Work with Rochdale Council’s Communications Team to develop press releases that celebrate the 
success of Rochdale businesses and that feature the Leader of the Council – target is 12 press releases. 

• Five press releases in Q2. 

CH/MW Mar 2018 

 

 Work with the Rochdale 
Place Brand initiative
  

Work with Rochdale Council’s Communications team to deliver the Rochdale Place Brand initiative 
including participation in the Steering Group and Place Board. 

CH/CN Mar 2018 
 

Arrange Place Board meetings providing administrative and secretarial support and managing 
communications with board members 

• Board met in August. 
• Marketing sub group meets monthly. 

CH Mar 2018 

 

Develop and manage the Rochdale Ambassadors programme meeting interested parties, recruiting 
supporters and potential ambassadors, and managing communications with them    

• Ongoing meetings with businesses held. 

CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

Organise and deliver quarterly business networking events in Rochdale on behalf of the Place Board – 
target is four events. 

• Event held with Google in June. 

CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

Organise a business event in Manchester to showcase the Rochdale Place Brand to an audience of 
financial and professional advisors  

• Pro-Manchester have agreed in principle to host an event – timing to be reviewed. 

CH/CN Dec 2017 

 

Work with Zen Internet and other Place Brand partners to develop marketing approaches to promoting 
Rochdale to a national and international audience  

CH/CN Sep 2017 

P
age 96



4 
 

• Marketing sub group meet monthly. 
• PR agency appointed Sept.  

 Work with Rochdale 
Business Awards 
steering group  

Work with the Steering Group to deliver the Rochdale Business Awards in November, providing 
administrative and secretarial support and managing communications with members. 

• Event confirmed for 10th November.  

CH Nov 2017 

 

Organise a launch event in June to attract new sponsors to the event 
• Launch event held 8th June. 
• Over 70 entries received. 

CH Jun 2017 

 

Encourage Ambassadors to support the event, either by way of sponsorship, or be entering their 
business in an appropriate category. 

CH Sep 2017 

Coordinate the judging panels in October. CH Oct 2017 
Provide practical support to the event management team. CH Nov 2017 

D. SUPPORT THE GROWTH OF THE COMMERCIAL PROPERTY MARKET 
 General Maintain regular contact with property agents to ensure that the team receives information and 

intelligence about commercial land and property in Rochdale, ensuring that the EGi property database is 
kept up to date  

• Regular contact with a range of agents about property availability and occupier requirements. 

MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Provide tailored searches for companies that are looking for commercial property in Rochdale – target is 
100 companies provided with property information 

• Emailed details to companies and will continue to monitor their requirements and provide 
ongoing support. 

MW/CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with Rochdale Council to secure occupiers for industrial developments delivered through the 
Asset Development Fund initiative 

• Dodgson Street units added to EGi database and circulated on social media. 
• Continue to provide details to enquirers and refer suitable enquiries to the council estates 

team. 

MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with agents and owners to secure occupiers for units and design and build options on the major 
business parks in the borough including Stakehill Industrial Estate, Heywood Distribution Park, and 
Crown Business Park 

• Regular contact with agents, continue with joint company viewings. 
• Met with Canmoor - asset managers for the new owners of Stakehill.  

MW/CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with partners to commission research into the office market in Rochdale to explore the potential 
for new office development to be brought forward in the borough 

• Need to identify budget requirements for this research and potential funding sources. 

CN Dec 2017 

 

 Kingsway Business Park Work with Wilson Bowden and their agents to promote Kingsway Business Park to potential occupiers as 
a design and build location 

• Seven new enquiries in Q2 added to the general Kingsway schedule. 

MW/CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

P
age 97



5 
 

• Kingsway website relaunched, and social media review underway. 
Work with Wilson Bowden, Standard Life, and their agents to secure an occupier for Kingsway 216 

• Continue to market the unit – regular contact with the agents. 
• Review of marketing approach with owner, developer and agents to be held in early October. 

MW/CN Sep 2017 

 

Work with Ropemaker and their agents to secure occupiers for the four available units at Plot K on 
Kingsway Business Park 

• K40 sold to local textile manufacturing company. 

MW/CN Mar 2018 

 

Work with Rochdale Council, Wilson Bowden and their agents to identify potential occupiers for a 
proposed speculative development scheme on Plot D1 on Kingsway Business Park  

• Lots of interest from local companies looking to expand into units between 5,000-10,000 sq ft.  

MW/CH/CN Mar 2018 

 

2. Business Parks  

Key 
Priority 
No 

Work Area Action  Lead  Timing  

A. To promote and improve a portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial Estates including (but not limited to):   
 
 Kingsway Business Park Work to deliver development across the Business Park in accordance with the overall Strategic 

Objectives of the Kingsway Partnership  
DC/RD/ER Mar 18  

Manage the  construction of a feature wall at the southern end of Sir Isaac Newton Way 
• Work is now complete. 
• Once JD Sports extension has been completed there is a need to agree a suitable location for 

the second wall. 

ER Jun 17 

 

Manage technical specialists to undertake site investigations for Plots V and M    
• Site investigation report now received – no significant ground condition issues identified on 

Plot V. 

RD/ER Sep 17 

 

Secure adoption of the Stanney Brook Corridor and Pond by Rochdale Council   
• Legal transfer documentation has been drafted and is the subject of ongoing detailed 

discussion between the Council and the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA). 

RD Sep 17 

 

Working with the Kingsway Partnership, prepare a response to the compensation claim for the former 
Hartle site    

• Legal meetings are taking place with relevant parties to understand the most appropriate 
strategy for dealing with the Hartle claim. RDA and RBC are not involved in these discussions.  

DC/RD Sep 17 

 

Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to secure funding and planning permission for a small unit 
scheme     

• Scheme has been drawn up and has been costed. 
• Negotiations are ongoing between RBC and Wilson Bowden Development concerning financial 

DC/RD Dec 17 

 

P
age 98



6 
 

aspects of the scheme. 
• Seeking approval to continue to work up the scheme on 24th October. 

Work with Transport for Greater Manchester to secure the continuation of the Kingsway Link bus 
service for 2018/19       

• Funding secured until October 2018.  
• ASDA,  JD Sports and Wilson Bowden Developments have agreed to make financial 

contributions for 2017/18. 
• Invoices have been sent out to ASDA and JD Sports. 

RD/ER Dec 17 

 

Agree an action plan with the Homes and Communities Agency for Dixon Green and Silver Hill Farms, 
and commence implementation     

• HCA have appointed GVA to look at the listed buildings. 
• Draft Heritage Significance Study has been completed, awaiting report from technical 

specialists. 

RD/ER Dec 17 

 

Work with the organiser of the Rochdale Half Marathon to ensure that Kingsway receives positive 
publicity from the event  

• Race took place Sunday 8th October.  
• Over 900 runners took part introducing Kingsway to a potentially new audience.   

RD Dec 17 

 

Work with Kingsway Partnership to deliver a CCTV system to help improve security across the Business 
Park 

• The order for a 12 camera CCTV has been placed with RBH. This will be linked to the central 
control room in Rochdale Town Centre, which is monitored by GM Police. 

• Finalising agreements with a business on site to install a relay station on their building and with 
EoN to draw power from the street lighting columns. 

ER Dec 17 

 

Work with the Kingsway Partnership to prepare and agree a development strategy for Plots V & M   
• Strategy will be informed by the results of the Plot V site investigations. This can move forward 

now the report has been received.  

RD/ER   Mar 18 

 

Work with Kingsway Partnership to secure physical completion of the exterior of the JD Sports Extension 
• Construction work is progressing on programme – scheduled external completion February 

2018. 

RD Mar 18 

 

Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to secure a retail or similar ‘village centre’ use on Plot U   
• WBD are having ongoing discussions with a potential retail occupier.  

RD/ER Mar 18 

 
Work with Kingsway Partnership to submit planning applications for 2 new buildings across the Business 
Park   

• Planning applications will be submitted as and when occupiers are signed up however Plot D is 
likely to be the first scheme to go forward for planning once costings are received.     

• Plot D will have around 10 units. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

P
age 99



7 
 

 Stakehill Industrial 
Estate 

Work with Commercial Estates Group and other landowners and occupiers to secure and enhance the 
economic attractiveness of Stakehill Industrial Estate  
Note: CEG have now sold their interest to Canmoor     

RD/ER Mar 18 

Work with CEG to implement a consistent and coherent signage strategy across the Estate       
• New totem signage installed at the Whitbrook Way entrance to Stakehill in June 2017. 
• Canmoor are reviewing signage across the estate.    

RD Sep 17 

 

Work with partners to deliver an occupier event  
• Business Breakfast took place on 11th July – attended by approximately 25 businesses.     
• Following business breakfast, a Highways Working Group has been set up to look at highways 

issues. Businesses have been invited to attend.  

ER Sep 17 

 

Implement an agreed security solution at the Whitbrook Way entrance to the Stakehill Industrial Estate  
• Proposals for CCTV were presented to businesses at the event on 11th July. Businesses broadly 

supportive.   
• Additional information received from RBH to enable permission to be sought from 4 businesses 

to install the relay stations.  

RD/ER Dec 17 

 

Work with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to implement a CCTV system across the Estate   
• Once approval from the businesses has been received, an order will be placed with RBH.  

ER Dec 17 

 
Work with Rochdale Council and business to develop an agreed vehicle parking solution across the 
Estate, including the potential introduction of yellow lining       

• Proposals for double yellow lines were presented to businesses at the event on 11th July. 
• RBC Highways have agreed some suitable solutions which will be presented to businesses on 

19th Oct. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

 South Heywood Link 
Road / Development 

Work with Partners and Rochdale Council to progress the Link Road Scheme through to a stage where 
it can be commenced on site in 2018/19       

DC/SP/RD/ER Mar 18  

Work with partners and Rochdale Council to ensure an agreed solution to achieve the diversion of the 
National Grid pipeline 

• Agreement reached with Cadent that the gas pipe diversion will be undertaken in summer 2019 
as part of the main contract works. 

• Funding agreed through Cabinet to progress the detailed design work.  

RD/ER Sep 17 

 

Work with partners and Rochdale Council to secure a positive recommendation for the planning 
application for the new link road and associated residential / employment development between the 
M62 and Pilsworth Road 

• Additional information in support of the planning application has been submitted by the Russell 
Homes team and further consultation will take place in October.  

DC/RD/ER Dec 17 

 

Agree heads of terms for the legal agreement between the Council and the developer for the Junction 
19 Link Road scheme to secure funding for the scheme  

• Discussions are ongoing between RBC and Russell Homes. 

DC/RD/SP Dec 17 

 

P
age 100



8 
 

Work with partners to ensure that legal agreements with all landowners necessary to enable the 
development of the road and associated development are signed    

• Russell Homes are leading on negotiations with landowners. 
• All land required to construct the new road is covered by legal option agreements between 

Russell Homes and individual landowners.    
• Legal meeting took place in September to determine the section agreements to agree 

dedication of land for adoption for the highway – these are being drawn up by legal and RH. 

DC/RD/SP Dec 17 

 

Work with external funders to ensure that their information requirements are met     
• Regular monthly meetings held with TfGM. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 
Work with Rochdale Council to ensure the completed design development of the link road 

• RBC Highways are progressing the detailed design of the road which is complete subject to final 
detail for HE on the slip road. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

Work with Rochdale Council to ensure the completion of the tender document for the link road   
• RBC Highways are progressing the tender documentation. 

RD/ER Mar 18 

 
B. Proactively encourage new investment in sites and premises by: 
 
 Undertaking Direct 

Development (Asset 
Development Fund)  
 

Manage the Asset Development Fund,  working in partnership with Rochdale Council  DC/LR/SP  Mar 18 
Prepare financially viable direct development schemes for 2 council owned sites across the Borough 

• Market testing in progress for ‘Mossfield’, Heywood and Kelvin Avenue, Middleton. 
LR/SP Sep 17 

 
Commence the construction of the Dodgson Street direct development scheme 

• Construction in progress, due for completion October 2017.  
• 4 units under offer. 

LR/SP Dec 17 

 

Submit a planning application for 1 direct development scheme  
• Technical/Design team for ‘Bradferns’ appointed July 2017. 
• Negotiations underway with an occupier with a requirement of c15,000 sq. ft.  

LR/SP Dec 17 

 

 Commercial Investment  
Fund   

Manage the Commercial Investment Fund, working in partnership with Rochdale Council   DC/LR/SP  Mar 18 
Identify 4 opportunities where the Commercial Investment Fund can be used to the benefit of Rochdale 
Borough 

• 2 Properties have been purchased – Mecca and M&S – with a number of other opportunities 
assessed but dismissed. 

• One recent possibility was withdrawn from the market. 
• Future years’ funding is to be brought forward to 2017/18 to enable further purchases if 

identified. 

LR/SP Mar 18 

 

Complete 2 deals totalling up to £10m of investment  where the Commercial Investment Fund is used 
for the benefit of Rochdale Borough  

LR/SP  Mar 18 

P
age 101



9 
 

• M&S and Mecca, Rochdale acquired for just under £10m.   
 Working with the 

private sector to deliver 
development 
 

Work with the private sector and other partners to identify 3 opportunities for building refurbishment 
and/or new build employment developments  

• Stakehill has a number of development opportunities – Tesco, Sainsbury’s and former Culina 
unit. 

• Rochdale Central was bought by PIN in Q1 and has had 2 refurbished buildings. 
• Meeting taken place to deliver building on Bradfearns for local company.  

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

Work with the private sector and other partners to secure 1 start on site for a refurbishment and/or 
new build employment development  

• Tesco unit on Stakehill has commenced redevelopment and is due for completion in late 2017.  

RD/ER Mar 18 

 

C. Support development along major gateways 
 
 Gateway Developments  Work with RBC Highways to commence construction of the new road at Lincoln Close 

• Lincoln Close scheme is now with Balfour Beatty for detailed design work.  
RD Sep 17 

 
Work with RBC Highways to secure an appropriate vehicular access solution to the Oldham Road/ 
Durham Street development site (former Bradferns)    

• Access will be from the new road at Lincoln Close.    

RD/LR Dec 17 

 

Work with the owners of the Sandbrook Office Park to agree a strategy for the remainder of their site   
 

RD/ER Mar 18 
 

At the Edinburgh Way development  site (former Royle Works), work with Rochdale Council and the site 
owner to agree a development strategy for the site   

 

RD/ER  Mar 18 

 

  

P
age 102



10 
 

3. Town Centres 

Key 
Priority 
No 

Work Area Action  Lead  Timing  

A. Reduce vacancies in Town Centres 
 
 Business Rates 

Reduction scheme and 
for Rochdale, Heywood 
and Middleton  

Continue promotion and implementation of Business Rates Relief scheme and seek to secure the re-
occupation of 6 vacant properties in the town centres. 

• 3 vacant units reoccupied to date. 

LR Mar 18 

 

Monitor vacancy levels including the implications of the business rates revaluation and transitional relief 
on RTC and prepare a report on the success on a quarterly basis.  

• Monitoring of vacancy levels is taking place. 
• Vacancy levels are recorded quarterly.   

LR Mar 18 

 

 Independent retailer 
shop front & support 
scheme 

Continue promotion and implementation of the shopfront & start up grant scheme for independent 
retailers and seek to secure 6 grant approvals 

• 5 applications approved in 2017.  

LR Mar 18 

 

 Rochdale town centre 
vacancies  

Prepare schedule of vacancies in Rochdale town centre with support from TCM and discuss bespoke 
actions with landlords and agents to promote occupation of vacant properties 

• In discussion with agents and property owners. 
• Press releases published by comms. 

LR Mar 18 

 

B. Rochdale Riverside    
 
 Deliver the new  

Rochdale Riverside 
retail and leisure 
development  

Work with Genr8 to secure planning  permission for the scheme and to discharge any planning 
conditions and Section 106 agreements 

• Planning permission granted in June 2017 and work is underway to comply with the pre-
commencement planning conditions. 

GD/ER Aug 17 

 

Confirm and implement the necessary road closure and TRO requirements for the scheme  
• The road closure application has been approved and published by DfT.   
• The TRO requirements for the scheme are being discussed with the preferred contractor.  The 

TRO to restrict the use of Constantine Road is being prioritised. 

GD/ER Aug 17 

 

Undertake marketing and agree terms and conditions of the funding agreement with Genr8 and secure 
Cabinet approval 

• The marketing is complete and Cabinet approval to the preferred funder has been secured. 
• Work has started to agree the terms and conditions of the Funding Agreement with a target 

completion date of the end of October 2017.  

GD Aug 17 

 

P
age 103



11 
 

Work with Genr8 to procure a contractor and complete a build contract for the scheme in accordance 
with the Agreement for Lease  

• A preferred contractor has been selected but has not yet been formally appointed.  The target 
completion date for the contract is the end of October 2017. 

SP Dec 17 

 

Work with Genr8 to secure further occupiers for the scheme  
• M&S, Next and Reel have all formally signed up to the scheme and other potential occupiers 

are in negotiation.   
• It is hoped to make further announcements during October 2017 once legal agreements are 

completed. 

SP/ER Aug 17 

 

Ensure the Council secures good and marketable title to the development site  
• The remaining outstanding title matter is being discussed with the PCT.   

GD/ER May 17 

 
Work with Genr8 to agree the scheme appraisal and cost plan 

• The appraisal will be finalised once the build costs are confirmed with the preferred contractor. 
SP Aug 17 

 
Monitor compliance with  the legal obligations contained in the Agreement for Lease  

• Work is on-going to ensure Council’s obligations under the legal agreement are satisfied. 
GD/ER Mar 18 

 
Manage temporary occupation and maintenance of the Baillie Street properties and work with Genr8 to 
agree long term proposals for the properties and submission of the planning application 

• Two of the properties are currently vacant. The planning application for the long term use of 
the properties has been approved. 

GD/LR Aug 17 

 

Work with Genr8 to establish the proposals for Phase 2 of the scheme   
• Phase 2 options are currently on hold pending progress on Phase 1. 

 SP/ER Mar 18 

 
C. Rochdale Town Centre  
 
 Create a relocated 

indoor and outdoor 
market 
 

Conclude contractual and financial agreements with Quarterbridge 
• Negotiations ongoing with final draft contracts currently with concessionaire for sign off. 

JH May 17 

 
Agree and complete adaptation works to former Santander building to provide an indoor market 

• Phase 1 (remediation work) complete 
• Phase 2 (structural work) in progress 
• Phase 3 (fit out work) detailed design underway with contract to follow Phase 2. 

LR Jul 17 

 

Work with Quarterbridge to agree approach to closing temporary market including  consultation with 
existing traders 

• Approach agreed and management transferred from RBC to RDA of temporary site on lower 
Yorkshire Street operating three days a week. 

JH May 17 

 

P
age 104



12 
 

• Market closed and temporarily relocated to lower Yorkshire Street.  The wooden cabins are to 
be removed w/c 9th October. 

Confirm final detailed design and implement the servicing & loading scheme in accordance with an 
agreed programme  

• Scheme agreed with Highways and approved by the leader. 
• TRO out for public consultation and taxi drivers notified via licencing – some concerns but will 

work with the trade body to resolve. 

LR Jul 17 

 

Confirm layout and secure establishment of the outdoor market on The Butts 
• Ongoing discussions with operator. 
• 7 layout options put forward by the operator. Work ongoing to address concerns re exposed 

site and requirement for power to stalls. 

LR  Aug 17 

 

Secure planning permission, highway closure and CPO for the scheme  
• Planning consent approved, CPO completed, highway closures ongoing. 

JH Jun 17 

 
 Baillie Street and lower 

Yorkshire Street paving  
Monitor completion of the scheme & undertake consultation and liaison with businesses   

• Highways agreed approach to allow loading for temporary market – yellow lines were 
completed w/c 2nd October.  

• Interim arrangements for management of bollards has been agreed.  
• Leaflets have been delivered to businesses. 

ER May 17 

 

 Drake Street strategy  Finalise the strategy and Action Plan and seek Member endorsement  
• Discussed with Leader, currently updating and reviewing. 
• HAZ proposal submitted to Historic England to enhance the strategy. Shortlisted and awaiting 

final decision end of October. 

NB June 17 

 

Implementation first phase of projects and initiatives identified in the agreed Action Plan  
• Number 1 Drake Street and Ivesons site projects under development. 

NB Mar 18 

 
 Rochdale town centre 

masterplan & action 
plan  

Confirm and complete the masterplan and associated action plans in consultation with internal 
stakeholders and Members 

• The initial draft of the strategy has been shared with Members. Further work is now underway 
to complete the first draft later in 2017 prior to more formal consultation. 

ER May 17 

 

D. Middleton Town Centre   
 
 Warwick Mill 

Redevelopment 
Work with the owners to prepare a viable regeneration scheme for Warwick Mill and London House, to 
bring the mill back into a productive end use.  

• Owners are still developing a proposal for residential conversion of London House and Warwick 
Mill.   

RD/ER Dec  17 

 

P
age 105



13 
 

E. Rochdale Town Hall  

 Implement the long 
term Town Hall HLF 
strategy 
 

Undertake work needed to progress Heritage Lottery Bid development phase, including development of 
activity plan, designs, cost plan & business plan and the soft market testing of commercial partners 
(subject to HLF approval) 

• Agreed approach to resubmit lower bid on 1st December 2017. 

JH Dec 17 

 

Commence procurement of Design Team 
• TBC once Cabinet approval received. 
• Procurement of consultants able to progress following presentation to informal cabinet. 

JH May 17 

 

Coordinate implementation of the short term improvement works to Rochdale Town Hall including 
engagement with Historic England  

• Ongoing. 

JH Mar 18 

 

Prepare and commence implementation of an alternative strategy for the Town Hall should the HLF bid 
be unsuccessful  

• Alternative strategies identified through options appraisal. 

JH Mar 18 

 

 Town Hall Square & 
Cultural Heritage 
quarter  

Agree scope of works and procure specialist design advice for the Town Hall Square and The Esplanade 
through a design competition   

• Principles and approach agreed and working towards a sign off of the final brief. Landscape 
architects to be appointed through appropriate procurement route to meet timeframe and 
progress project. 

JH/NE Sep 17 

 

Assess feasibility and identify projects for the wider Town Hall Square & Cultural Heritage quarter and 
alignment of the works with Town Hall adaptation  

• Projects identified – awaiting clarification of works to town hall to align works appropriately. 

JH/NE Nov 17 

 

Complete schedule of work and plans for the wider Town Hall Square & Cultural Heritage quarter to 
include programme and implement any work identified in 17/18 

• Outline programme and plans produced. 

JH/NE Dec 17 

 

Coordinate feasibility study for architectural lighting in town centre - Town Hall and key buildings in 
conservation area 

• First phase works underway (John Bright Statue, Memorial Gardens Lighting & Bull Brow). 
• Tender package being developed for wider town centre lighting. 

JH/NE Dec 17 

 

F. Heritage assets  
 
 Middleton Tonge Hall Agree boundary, prepare development brief, secure planning permission and undertake valuation of 

enabling development in dialogue with Historic England 
• Studies produced and positive meetings held with Historic England regarding outline 

development. No objections and developer interest in land. 

NE Mar 18 

 

P
age 106



14 
 

  

Prepare brief for repair works to building in dialogue with Historic England 
• Structural engineer carried out scope of works that are being discussed with Historic England. At 

Risk grant expected to assist stabilising building to allow for repairs in conjunction with wider 
development. 

NE Mar 18 

 

 Rochdale Fire Station 
Museum 

Ensure submission of Heritage Lottery Fund Round 2 funding application bid for the building  
• Consultant team appointed. Plans progressing with HLF mid-point review scheduled in Mid-

November. 

NE Feb 18 

 

Provide project management support for the appointment of consultants to complete surveys, research 
and investigations 

• Ongoing. Work also underway to consider options for wider site possible through the 
acquisition. 

NE Feb 18 

 

 Hopwood Hall Identify funding for essential works needed to protect features of extraordinary significance and to 
continue regular inspections and repairs, in discussion with Historic England  

• Meeting held with Peter Barlow (Historic England) and Mark Platt to discuss ‘at risk funding’ to 
take forward structural interventions addressing finding of Ramboll Report. 

NB May 17 

 

Work with Hopwood DePree and Historic England to prepare a coherent and deliverable programme for 
the restoration and re-use of the building  

• Preparation of Heritage Open Days events.  Hopwood continuing to hold meetings with key 
stakeholders to progress scheme with view to securing small HLF resilient heritage grant. 

NB Aug 17 

 P
age 107



15 
 

RDA KPIs  

Performance Indicators RDA Annual 
Target 

Investment 
Team Only 

Quarterly 
Figure 

Performance 
to Date Commentary  

Number of companies receiving support from 
Business Growth Hub 48 48 13 31 Good progress being made with new clients.  

Number of successful inward investment 
projects  receiving RDA assistance 10 10 3 4 

Team continues to work with several businesses 
whose relocations will happen later in the financial 
year. 

 

Number of local companies 
relocating/expanding with RDA assistance 20 20 6 11 

Team continues to work with several businesses 
whose expansion or relocation will happen later in 
the financial year. 

 

Number of jobs safeguarded/relocated by RDA 
assisted companies  350 350 152 337 

Most of these jobs are from businesses receiving 
financial assistance from the Council.  

Number of new jobs created by RDA assisted 
companies or projects  250 250 161 272 

Most of these jobs are from businesses receiving 
financial assistance from the Council and include 100 
at Footasylum. 

 

Amount of floor space occupied by RDA assisted 
projects (sq ft) 500,000 500,000  323,300 Includes Clelands and Footayslum.  

Total level of public sector investment secured 
or spent on RDA assisted  projects  £3,500,000 £500,000  £534,000 

This is made up of a range of business support grants 
via the Council.  

Total level of private sector investment 
generated by assisted projects £20,000,000 £10,000,000  £11m 

Leveraged in from businesses receiving financial 
support, including £5.4m from Clelands and £1m 
from Marsh. 

 

Number of vacant properties re-occupied with 
support of Town Centre business rates scheme 6 0  3 Interest reduced due to rates revaluation in April.  

P
age 108



16 
 

 

 

Number of grant approvals for the Town Centre 
shopfront & start up grant scheme 6 0  5   

Amount of commercial floor space built with 
RDA support (sq ft) 150,000 0   Report  yearly  

Amount of commercial floor space refurbished 
with RDA support (sq ft) 150,000 0   Report  yearly  

Key Activity Indicators        

Total number of enquiries 200 200 51 84 Level of enquiries picked up in Q2.  

Number of enquiries receiving ongoing 
assistance 100 100 11 33 Team continues to make good progress with clients.  

Number of Rochdale companies account 
managed 50 50 8 12 Need to ramp up the number of visits being made.  

Number of positive news stories issued  20 20 5 7 Summer holidays impacted but will recover in Q3.  

Number of new social media followers 250 250  546 These are twitter followers.   

P
age 109



Economy Directorate Q2 Performance Summary 2017/18 

In Rochdale town centre, site investigation works commenced for the Rochdale Riverside 
scheme.  Work is continuing to convert the former Santander building into an indoor market. 

On Kingsway, one of the speculative units was bought by Cleland McIver, a local 
manufacturing company, as part of their growth plans (they retained their existing unit in 
Littleborough), with the creation of 30 new jobs and 30 safeguarded initially 

The borough’s employment rate increased marginally to 64.4%.  The service is supporting 
recruitment for two major investors within the Borough - Bunnings (former B and Q, 
Sandbrook Park), and Kleeneze (Heywood Distribution Park) totalling 240 new jobs. 

The Council’s industrial units are maintaining occupancy levels over 95%.  Occupancy of the 
Council’s managed workspace increased Lock 50 and TOPS over 90% occupancy and 
Globe House having improved its occupancy to more than 70%. Seven new Council starter 
units at Dodgson Street Rochdale have been completed.  A number of units are expected to 
be let and occupied before the end of October. 

The Council’s Property Growth Fund completed two acquisitions for a combined sum of 
£9m, in order to achieve a rental return in excess of 6.5%. The capital programme has been 
altered to bring forward £20m from 2018/19 into 2017/18 to facilitate further acquisitions as 
opportunities arise. Additional Legal Assistants recruited to support this work.  A 20% 
increase to planning fees will, subject to parliamentary approval, come into force before the 
end of the year. 

To increase land brought forward for residential development, the Council submitted bids for 
the Government’s Housing Infrastructure Fund for Rochdale Town Centre (£26m) and for a 
£7.3m link road through the British Vita site in East Middleton.  The outcome of these bids 
are expected before the end of 2017. 

Work on Junction 19 / South Heywood has been intense to try and meet the planning 
requirements and take the scheme to committee in late 2017/early 2018. This includes 
finalising discussions over legal agreements and negotiating contributions to the council 
under their planning obligations. 

 

 

 

Mark Robinson 

Assistant Director Economy  

13.11.17 

Page 110



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2017/2018 

Introduction

The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, 
the principal role of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and 
skills aspects of economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as 
leisure, highways, housing and environmental services etc. that provide the 
opportunities for work and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s 
communities.

Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with 
scheduling reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these 
functions.  The Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can 
request further business to come forward.

In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of 
the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following 
means:-

 
 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

The Committee’s Work Programme is prepared on the basis of known items at this
time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is reflected in
the Work programme.  The following table highlights issues where there is either an
agreement or an anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will
be brought forward as indicated above.    

Page 111

Agenda Item 12



21st June 2017

19th July 2017

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Performance Monitoring  – Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership 

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Final Performance monitoring at the 
end of the 5 year transfer period

Renewable Energy Scrutiny Study Group Update for information

20th September 2017

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership 
Update Update for information

Performance Monitoring 2016/17 Registered 
Providers

Performance management and 
monitoring

Food and Feed Plan 2017/18 Performance management and 
monitoring

Playing Pitch Strategy Scrutiny of proposals

22nd November 2017

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Updates - 
Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Housing Strategy 2017-2020 Scrutiny of proposals
Enforcement Policy Update Scrutiny of proposals
Waste Collection Policy Update Scrutiny of proposals
Adverse  Weather Plan Scrutiny of proposals
Property Investment Strategy Scrutiny of proposals
GMCA Scrutiny Minutes For information/discussion

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2017/2018

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare 
Provision Year End Report 2016/17

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates -
Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes For information/discussion

Page 112



24th January 2018

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals 

Link4Life – Six monthly update report Performance monitoring and 
management

Housing Allocations Scheme & Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Enforcement Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Waste Collection Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Property Investment Strategy Scrutiny of proposals
Directorate Plan Updates -
Neighbourhoods Directorate 
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance monitoring and 
management

Performance Monitoring 2017/18 –
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA Scrutiny Minutes For information/discussion

21st March 2018

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund – six month 
update report

Performance monitoring and 
management

6 monthly Performance Monitoring 
including:
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership

Performance management and 
monitoring

Directorate Plan Update:
Neigbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Annual Performance Review 
GMCA Scrutiny Minutes For information/discussion

Other business to be scheduled

Rochdale Riverside funding
An Informal meeting to be convened as directed 
by the Chair in consultation with the Director of 
Economy.  

Draft Site Allocations Plan Scrutiny of proposals
Homelessness Prevention Scrutiny of proposals
Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority 

Understanding the role of scrutiny within the 
combined authority (to be considered jointly with 
Corporate and Health, Schools and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees)

Enforcement / Public Disorder 
Policy Scrutiny of proposals

Page 113



Item 3 
 
MINUTES OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING HELD ON  
MONDAY 5 JUNE, 2017 AT CHURCHGATE HOUSE, MANCHESTER 

 
 

 Members Present- 
     

BOLTON COUNCIL    Councillor Derek Burrows 
 
BURY COUNCIL    Councillor Tamoor Tariq 

             
OLDHAM COUNCIL   Councillor Barbara Brownridge 

     
ROCHDALE MBC    Councillor Sultan Ali 

           

SALFORD CC    Councillor David Lancaster 
       

STOCKPORT MBC    Councillor Wendy Wild 
             

TRAFFORD COUNCIL   Councillor Laura Evans   
      
WIGAN COUNCIL    Councillor - Nazia Rehman - (Observer) 
 
INDEPENDENT MEMBER   Diane Curry 
 
INDEPENDENT MEMBER   Maqsood Ahmed 

 
Also in attendance- 

  
Andy Burnham    GM Mayor 
Baroness Beverley Hughes Proposed GM Deputy Mayor for Policing and 

Crime 
Eamonn Boylan    GMCA 
Andrew Lightfoot    GMCA 
Liz Treacy     GMCA 
Adam Allen     GMCA 
Steve Annette    GMCA 
Jayne Stephenson    OPCC 
Jeanette Staley    Salford City Council & GM Police & Crime 
Policy Lead 
              

 PCP/01/17 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
  
 Eamonn Boylan, Chief Executive opened the meeting. Nominations having been 

invited for the Chair of the Police and Crime Panel and Councillor Tariq Tamoor having 
been proposed and seconded, and there being no further nominations, Councillor Tariq 
Tamoor was appointed Chair of the Police and Crime Panel for the municipal year 
2017/18.    

 

Page 114

Agenda Item 13



 Councillor Tariq immediately referred to the difficult and troubling times being 
experienced in Manchester and other places, and he invited members and officers 
present to stand briefly in silence to respect the victims of the recent terrorist attacks in 
Manchester and London. 

 
 The Chair also placed on public record the grateful thanks of the Panel to Tony Lloyd 

and Jim Battle for their work as Police and Crime Commissioner & Deputy Police and 
Crime Commissioner  for their efforts to lever in funding with which to support a 
number of key community projects which would continue to bring benefits to Greater 
Manchester for the foreseeable future. 

 
         
           PCP/02/17 APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Nigel Murphy, Councillor Joe Kitchen, 
Richard Paver, GMCA Treasurer, Ian Hopkins, Chief Constable, GMP and Julie 
Connor, GMCA. 
    
PCP/03/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 None were received. 
 
 PCP/04/17  MEMBERSHIP OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL  
 
 RESOLVED/- 
 

To note the membership of the Police and Crime Panel for 2017/18 as follows: 
 

DISTRICT    MEMBER 
 

Bolton    Councillor Derek Burrows  
Bury     Councillor Tamoor Tariq 
Manchester   Councillor Nigel Murphy 
Oldham    Councillor Barbara Brownridge 
Rochdale    Councillor Sultan Ali 
Salford    Councillor David Lancaster 
Stockport    Councillor Wendy Wild 
Tameside    Councillor Joe Kitchen  
Trafford    Councillor Laura Evans  
Wigan    Councillor Nazia Rehman (To be confirmed)   
Independent Co-opted member  Maqsood Ahmed  

            Independent Co-opted member  Diane Curry 
 

 The Chair welcomed Councillor Wendy Wilde (Stockport) Nazia Rehman (Wigan) and 
Laura Evans (Trafford) to their first meeting and expressed the hope that they enjoyed 
the contribution that they would make to the work of the Panel. 
 
PCP/05/17 APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR 
  
The Panel was informed that the GM Mayor had decided to appoint a Deputy Mayor, 
Policing and Crime and as such the Panel had to hold this confirmation hearing at 

Page 115



which the Mayor’s proposed candidate would appear to answer questions relating to 
the appointment. 
 
The Mayor echoed the Chair’s introductory remarks about the difficult times that we 
face as a community, and also his praise for the foundation work laid by Tony Lloyd 
and Jim Battle. He also paid tribute to the Chief Constable and his senior staff in 
relation to their response to the terrorist attack at the Manchester Arena, and to the 
work of all police officers in response to the enquiries following that event and the 
successful policing of key public events in the city in the days following that incident 
that had done so much to give reassurance to the public and to demonstrate that 
Manchester was ‘open for business’. 
 
The Mayor outlined the challenges that now reinforced the need for a national debate 
in relation to police funding and police numbers, which the Chief Constable was 
already on record as saying were “at the bottom end of reasonable” and he stressed 
the importance of Greater Manchester continuing to have a strong voice in that debate, 
and also to address the challenge ahead in terms of an inclusive approach to tackling 
extremism and fostering social inclusion in our society. It was in relation to these very 
challenges that he believed his nomination for Deputy Mayor was critical for Greater 
Manchester, and he felt that there were very few people who could meet the criteria 
that he had set to take that work forward and to continue the hard won reputation that 
Greater Manchester had for credibility and seriousness in the way that we go about our 
work. Baroness Beverley Hughes brought huge experience as a former Member of 
Parliament, Minister-of-State for counter- terrorism and community cohesion in the 
Home Office and former Leader of Trafford MBC, and he had great pleasure in 
proposing her appointment. 
 
Baroness Hughes then answered questions from Panel members to comply with due 
process.   
 
Baroness Hughes indicated that she felt honored to have been asked to take on this 
role and the opportunity to serve Greater Manchester again in a way that she had not 
expected.  She echoed the comments made by others in terms of the work previously 
done by Tony Lloyd and Jim Battle, a rich heritage to be built on going forward to which 
she brought 25 years of experience in public life both as an MP and as a local 
councilor, and a deep knowledge of dealing with the diverse problems coming up from 
local communities.    
 
Baroness Hughes was asked for her views on bringing together diverse views from the 
10 districts, and especially how the issues of hate crime and abuse affecting an area 
like Rochdale would receive the attention they merited.    In response she indicated 
that in her view whilst the devolution architecture was now in place there remained a 
job of work to be done in terms of making that work for everyone in Greater 
Manchester as effectively as possible.  It was important that local people felt that their 
leaders were listening to what they say and that what was being heard was being acted 
upon, and she believed that the devolution model was likely to enable this to happen 
than any Government led strategy could.   Those discussion needed to be open and 
clear; to promote inclusion but also remove any perception that there can be any level 
of tolerance of extreme behavior in any form as we develop a GM approach to the 
problems we undoubtedly face that everyone can have confidence in. There were 
problems in relation to anti-Semitism and Islamophobia, problems that admittedly 
involved special challenges, problems that were talked about a great deal immediately Page 116



following a terrorist incident, problems that needed prevention rather than reaction and 
which were a fundamental part of the way that we relate to our community, and how we 
get them to relate to us. 
 
The terrorist incident at Manchester arena had identified the benefits of closer 
coordination of ‘blue light’ services across Greater Manchester, and Baroness Hughes 
was invited to outline how she saw those improvements being achieved. She indicated 
that the changes necessary was clearly on the agenda and that the review of 
responses to that incident by all services would provide the springboard to examine 
options for greater integrated working perhaps on a place-based model of working.  
Further pressed on the importance of those service properly reflecting the communities 
that they serve in employment strategies, not just in bold numerical terms but in terms 
of hierarchical progression, she indicated that she understood the challenges involved, 
especially for young people in terms of transport being a barrier to employment, an 
issue that the Mayor’s pledge to extend concessionary travel to young people as a 
means of breaking down segregation was meant to address. 
 
Reference was made to the work commenced by the previous Police and Crime 
Commissioner on justice reform through the Justice Board, and Baroness Hughes was 
asked if it was her intention to continue that work.   In response she indicated that the 
importance of reducing re-offending was key to the successful working of every aspect 
of the criminal justice system, but it was also important to formulate a holistic picture 
that also embraced those who experience or are affected by crime, so she would 
wholeheartedly continue to take that work forward. 
 
A discussion took place about the responsibility that local businesses had to play in 
terms of ensuring that they did not add to local behavior problems, licensed premises 
and off-licences being cited as specific examples. Baroness Hughes indicated that this 
was an issue where all partners, police, local councils, businesses, needed to work 
together, she cited the ‘purple flag’ approach in Bury, as an example of practice that 
others might replicate, and she suggested that a future meeting of the Panel might 
usefully discuss in depth how we achieve the necessary multi-layered approach to 
dealing with alcohol related behavior in its many forms. 
 
Questions were also posed about cyber-crime and Baroness Hughes indicated that this 
was a crime of our era, a new crime for which new responses were needed, and she 
was pleased to report that development had already commenced at a forensic level to 
first of all gauge the scale of the problem and to begin to formulate a more robust 
response, and she would be happy to report to a future meeting when that work had 
progressed sufficiently. 
 
Invited to give her vision over the three years of her appointment she hoped that in that 
time there would be a marked difference in the way in which all our services would be 
working within local communities and that those communities would see and 
appreciate those changes. A question was posed to her about the use of anti-social 
behaviour powers, and she indicated that those powers had initially been a response to 
people who had felt beleaguered in the face of anti-social or criminal behavior in their 
communities, but she also believed that it was necessary for a discussion to take place 
with this panel and others to get a feel about how the powers were being used and 
whether they were still meeting local needs. This was part of a wider discussion about 
young people and citizenship and the important role of the PCSOs as first point of 
community contact, and she hoped that the next three years would see their role in Page 117



community policing continued, and, if possible, increased.  She recognised a morale 
issue for the Police, staff were under a lot of pressure and thee were community 
concerns about visibility and responsiveness, and it was important that they know that 
we know that, and that it will be part of our campaign for funding and our commitment 
to strong neighbourhood policing and a strong presence in every community 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note the process outlined for the appointment of the Deputy Mayor, Policing and 

Crime. 
 
2. In the light of the Panel’s scrutiny of the Mayor’s proposed appointee, and the 

opportunity afforded to the Panel to engage with her on wide ranging issues, this 
Panel recommends that Baroness Beverley Hughes should be appointed to the 
post of the Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor, Policing and Crime. 
 

 
PCP/06/17 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 
 
 The Chair reported to the group that as the membership of the GM Police and 

Crime Panel has changed substantially, it it now prudent to review the GM Police 
and Crime Panel Structures and to that end the Chair invited all panel members 
to present to him any comment and ideas they may have on the future structure.  
Following this engagement with Members the Chair will meet with relevant 
officers to develop  a new GM Police and Crime Panel structure that will come 
back to the Panel for approval in due course 

 
  
 
 

 

Page 118



Item 4 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 1 of 6 
13 October 2017 

 

 

GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY (GMCA) 
ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH AND SKILLS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
FRIDAY 13 OCTOBER 2PM, BOARDROOM, GMCA, CHURCHGATE 
HOUSE DRAFT 

 
Present: Councillor: Michael Holly (in the chair) 
   
 Councillors: Susan Haworth (Bolton) 

Roy Walker (Bury) 
Ahmed Ali (Manchester) 
Grace Fletcher-Hackwood (Manchester) 
Chris Goodwin (Oldham) 
Michael Holly (Rochdale) 
Cecile Biant (Rochdale)  
Kate Lewis (Salford) 
Mark Hunter (Stockport) 
Elise Wilson (Stockport) 
Yvonne Cartey (Tameside) 
John Holden (Trafford) 
Barry Brotherton (Trafford) 
Charles Rigby (Wigan) 

   
 Councillors in 

attendance: 
Cliff Morris (Leader of Bolton Council) 

   
 Officers: Susan Ford (Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA) 

John Holden (Assistant Director of Research and 
Strategy, GMCA) 
Nicola Ward (Governance and Scrutiny, GMCA) 
Gwynne Williams (Solicitor, GMCA) 
Donna Hall (Chief Executive, Wigan Council) 

   
Apologies: Councillors: Jane Lewis (Bury) 
   
 Officers: Julie Connor, Assistant Director Governance and 

Scrutiny, GMCA. 
   
E10/1
7 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

  
 The Governance Officer asked for nominations for the role of Chair.  It was agreed 

that Councillor Michael Holly be appointed as chair the 2017/18 municipal year. 
 

  
 RESOLVED: That Councillor Michael Holly be appointed as chair for the municipal 

year. 
  
E11/1
7 

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 

  
 The Chair asked for nominations for the role of Vice Chair.  Members discussed the 

need for gender balance and asked for clarity as to whether the Vice Chair had to be 

 

Page 119



Item 4 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 2 of 6 
13 October 2017 

 

an appropriate person.  The committee were advised by the Solicitor that both the 
Chair and Vice Chair need to be eligible to chair the meetings, and therefore should 
be (an appropriate person) of a different political party to the Mayor of Greater 
Manchester as per the legislation.  Members asked that greater consideration be 
given during the appointment process for 2018/19 to ensure that both sexes are 
represented within the opposition parties so that there is the option for considering 
gender balance when appointing the Chair and Vice Chair to the committee. 
 
It was agreed that Councillor Mark Hunter be appointed as Vice Chair for the 2017/18 
municipal year. 

  
 RESOLVED: That Councillor Mark Hunter be appointed as Vice Chair for the 

municipal year. 
  
E12 URGENT BUSINESS 
  
 There was no urgent business introduced by the Chair. 
  
E13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  
 There were no declarations of interest declared at the meeting. 
  
E14 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 8 SEPTEMBER 2017 
  
 The minutes of the meeting held 8 September 2017 were submitted for consideration.  

The Chair reported that he had spoken to Rochdale Council in relation to the GVA 
incompatibility data (minute E6 – 4) but would follow this up with John Holden to 
understand any potential discrepancies as a result of a business location versus a 
business registered address. 
 
The Governance Officer agreed to circulate the data on productivity and information 
on the GM Digital Skills Programme to all members of the committee (minutes E8 – 
b&c). 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. To approve the minutes of the meeting held 8 September 2017. 
  2. That Cllr Holly and John Holden have further discussions 

regarding the GVA discrepancies as appropriate. 
  3. That the Governance Officer circulates the data on productivity 

and information on the GM Digital Skills Programme to all 
members of the committee. 

  
E15 GMCA CULTURAL FUNDING / S48 AGMA GRANTS 
  
 Cliff Morris, GMCA Portfolio Leader for Culture and Donna Hall, Portfolio Lead Chief 

Executive for Culture introduced a report which updated the Scrutiny Committee on 
the progress to date regarding the proposed closure of the AGMA Section 48 grants 
fund and the introduction of a GMCA administered Culture and Social Impact 

Page 120



Item 4 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 3 of 6 
13 October 2017 

 

 Programme. 
 
Donna Hall reported that when asked, Greater Manchester residents cited culture as 
one of the most important factors for choosing to live in the sub-region, and 
furthermore that this was the second biggest growing job sector. 
 
In December 2016 the Joint GMCA and AGMA Executive Board agreed to undertake 
a consultation into the formal closure of the Section 48 grants programme and the 
creation of a new GMCA Culture and Social Impact scheme to begin in April 2018. 
The targeted consultation four consultation events in Wigan, Bolton, Oldham and 
Manchester, in addition to a two part online consultation. Consultees were asked 
about how to make the transition between the schemes, how the new criteria should 
be formed and which outcomes should be considered in addition to GVA (growth 
value added).  The proposals for a new Cultural and Social Impact Fund were well 
received through the consultation. 
 
The GMCA considered the outcomes of the consultation at their meeting on the 29 
September and agreed to open the new GMCA Culture and Social Impact 
Programme for applications in October 2017. Officers have scheduled a series of 
support sessions for groups to attend should they require assistance with their 
application to the new scheme.   
 
Members raised a number of questions, which were noted as follows – 
 
Members agreed with the general direction of the changes to the scheme but were 
concerned that there was only limited engagement through the events.  Officers 
reported that locations were selected on a general geographical spread but assured 
the committee that cultural officers from each local authority were engaged and these 
district officers’ networks were used to ensure a wide engagement across the whole 
of GM.   
 
Members added that it was important to ensure engagement with diverse 
communities in future consultation.  Officers assured that there had been wide 
engagement with all communities, through local and GMCVO (Greater Manchester 
Centre for Voluntary Organisations) networks.  In addition to this, the application form 
also includes a strong socio-economic focus as well as economic criteria. The 
application process also recognises the importance of supporting organisations and 
programmes in the programme supported by the funding.  
 
Members were challenged to consider whether the GMCA’s funding of culture was 
high enough particularly given the wider benefits and social impacts of cultural 
exposure, including a positive impact on health and an increase of community 
cohesion.  However members also recognised that it is difficult to convey the 
message about the value of a strong cultural offering in the current fiscal 
environment. 
 
The GMCA has recently secured £1.5 million of Great Places funding which will fund 
a three year programme to build an evidence base of the cultural and creative assets 
of GM. This work will also include significant community consultation. 
 
Members welcomed the widening of the application criteria to reflect the importance 
of people and place as well as the economic impact of the programme but felt that in 

Page 121



Item 4 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 4 of 6 
13 October 2017 

 

order to expand the impact of the scheme that the amount of available funds would 
have to be increased, as they valued the work of the organisations currently funded. 
Officers recognised the need to ensure that all local authority areas benefitted from 
the approved cultural programme but reminded members that some of the larger 
programmes, although the funded organisations were based in one location, they 
offered a range of delivery in communities across GM. 
 
Donna Hall further informed the committee that sport and leisure remains key to this 
portfolio area and that the GMCA have recently submitted a bit to Sports England for 
£15 million to support ‘GM Get Moving’. 
 
Members asked that the GM Statutory Functions Committee (who oversee this 
funding) give consideration as to how to increase the total amount of funding 
available and ensure that smaller emerging organisations are given improved access 
to the scheme. 
 
Members felt that there needed to be increased awareness of the current cultural 
offer, and that more should be done to promote programmes across communities as 
part of the longer term conversation regarding cultural aspirations.  Officers supported 
this, and commented that the conversation planned through ‘Great Places’ will gather 
useful research to inform a GM Cultural Strategy that will have strong strategic 
alignment with other policy development areas such as transport and economic 
growth.  This will further strengthen each set of local authority ambitions through a 
shared collaborative vision. 
 
Members suggested that there may be opportunities to link similar schemes who 
could work together to offer joint projects.  Officers confirmed that there is work 
underway to map networks and assets across GM and to improve communication 
between similar organisations. 
 
A member asked that future applications to the scheme be asked to provide data 
regarding the impact of their project on all groups (such as those with protected 
characteristics), as it is recognised that the impact needs to reflect the demography of 
GM. 
 
Members of the Committee asked whether the two year funding schemes would have 
any long term impact on the organisations.  Cliff Morris responded that although initial 
funding has only been agreed for two years, that at the next round consideration will 
be given to longer term funding requests under the revised criteria. 
 
A member commented that the GM Music Hub was currently managed by Bolton 
Council, but that offered schemes across the sub region.  They added that it would be 
interesting to see the geographical spread programmes currently funded to help 
identify any gaps. 
 
Members expressed their concern regarding the tight application timetable.  Officers 
recognised this, but explained that this was due to external factors but that the 90 day 
notice period had still been achieved. 
 
The Committee were supportive of the work of the ‘Great Places’ project and would 
welcome the comprehensive evidence base which would be delivered in two years. 
This will give a strong foundation for assessing new projects to ensure that GM 

Page 122



Item 4 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 5 of 6 
13 October 2017 

 

develops and funds a balanced portfolio cultural projects. 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. 

 
 
 

To note the outcome and mitigating actions of the completed 
consultation on a new GMCA Culture and Social Impact 
Programme. 

  2. To recommend to the Statutory Functions Committee that they 
continue to monitor the funded programmes against the 
application criteria and desired outcomes and ensure that the 
scheme is open to as many organisations as possible. 

  
E16 GREATER MANCHESTER STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND 

PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 
  
 John Holden, Assistant Director of Research and Strategy shared a report on behalf 

of the Mayor of Greater Manchester which detailed a draft Implementation Plan for 
the refreshed Greater Manchester Strategy.. 
 
A member asked that the Committee be given early sight of the Performance 
Management Dashboard before it is signed off by the GMCA.  
 
Members asked for clarification  of the term ‘hidden young people’- this was 
explained to be a term used by the GM Council for Voluntary Organisation to describe 
young people who are unemployed and do not currently receive any support from a 
GM organisation.  Further to this, members asked whether there was a relevant 
training organisation to oversee this priority.  It was confirmed that although the 
GMCA are listed as the responsible organisation, that this role was to oversee the 
priority and not to lead on its delivery. 
 
The role of careers advice should continue to feature strongly in the GMS 
Implementation Plan as this was an area of ongoing concern. 
 
Members asked that the Implementation Plan reflects the need to provide support to 
existing businesses as well as supporting new businesses. 
 
A member urged that the actions relating to the Internationalisation Strategy should 
reflect all eight priorities not just highlight a few. 
 
Members felt that the ambitions of the GMS were far reaching, but that this was the 
right level of aspiration needed to ensure GM’s success.  They urged that the 
Implementation Plan’s priorities should make it clear which actions will be achieved in 
the short, medium and long term, as this will ensure that resources can be matched 

Page 123



Item 4 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 6 of 6 
13 October 2017 

 

across the priorities as required. 
 
The committee were informed of the ‘School Readiness Summit’ and ‘GMS Launch’ 
both crucial to the stakeholder engagement of the GMS as it moves forward.  Officers 
further reported on the work of the Ageing Hub and suggested that members may be 
interested to look at this work in more detail at a future meeting. 
 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. To note the draft GMS Implementation Plan. 
  2. To agree that future performance reports be brought to the 

Scrutiny Committee on a six monthly basis. 
  3. That a draft performance dashboard be brought to the Scrutiny 

Committee prior to sign off. 
  4. The Statutory Scrutiny Officer to invite the Mayor and Chief 

Executive to future meetings where their reports are being 
considered. 

  5. That officers take into account the comments of the Scrutiny 
Members when finalising the GM Implementation Plan. 

  
E17 WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH AND SKILLS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 In discussion the following items were suggested. 
 

 Digital Business November 

 Treasury discussions regarding the Autumn Budget November 

 Skills and Jobs in GM – retaining graduates To be agreed. 

 GMSF and its impact on industrial land To be agreed. 

 The impact of Brexit on EU funded programmes in GM To be agreed. 

 Government’s commitment to the Northern Powerhouse To be agreed. 

 GM’s Ageing Hub To be agreed. 

 Manchester Airport / Enterprise Zone and internationalisation December 

 Careers and enterprise network update To be agreed. 

 Mayoral development areas To be agreed. 

 Housing investment To be agreed. 

 Micro and SME businesses To be agreed. 

 Low skills and long term unemployed To be agreed.  

 A fair economy and fair wages To be agreed. 

 Employment Land and the GMSF To be agreed 

  
 It was agreed that officers would develop the work progamme for further 

consideration at the next meeting. 
  
 RESOLVED: That the work programme be updated in light of comments made at 

the meeting and considered at the next meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 1 of 7 
18 October 2017 

 

 

GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY (GMCA) 
HOUSING, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE, 18 OCTOBER 2017 AT 6.00 PM, SCRUTINY ROOM,  
MANCHESTER TOWN HALL  

 
Present: Councillor: Lisa Smart (in the Chair) 
   
 Councillors: Elaine Sherrington (Bolton) 

James Wilson (Manchester)  
Hannah Roberts (Oldham) 
Linda Robinson (Rochdale)  
Robert Sharpe (Salford) 
Michele Barnes (Salford) 
Elise Wilson (Stockport) 
Robert Chilton (Trafford) 
Patricia Holland (Wigan) 
Fred Walker (Wigan) 
Michael Winstanley (Wigan) (Substitute) 

   
 Officers: Julie Connor (Assistant Director, Governance and 

Scrutiny, GMCA), Rod Fawcett (Transport Policy 
Manager, TfGM), Susan Ford  (Statutory Scrutiny 
Officer, GMCA), Chris Findley (GM Planning Lead), 
John Holden (Assistant Director, Research & Strategy, 
GMCA), Simon Nokes (Executive Director, Policy & 
Strategy, GMCA), Jenny Hollamby (Governance and 
Scrutiny, GMCA) and Michael Renshaw (Executive 
Director, TfGM) 

   
Apologies: Councillors: Andrew Morgan (Bolton), Anne Stott (Rochdale) and 

Gillian Peet (Tameside) 
   
   
M9/HPE APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR FOR THE 2017/18  

MUNICIPAL YEAR 
  
 The Assistant Director, Governance and Scrutiny, GMCA asked for nominations 

for the role of Chair. Councillor Elise Wilson proposed Councillor Lisa Smart and 
Councillor Robert Chilton seconded the proposal. It was put to the vote and it was 
agreed that Councillor Lisa Smart be appointed as Chair of the committee for the 
2017/18 municipal year. Councillor Lisa Smart took the role of Chair and thanked 
Members for her appointment. The Chair welcomed all those present. 

  
 The Chair asked for nominations for the role of Vice-Chair. The Chair proposed 

Councillor Robert Chilton and Councillor Winstanley seconded the proposal. 
Councillor Linda Robinson proposed Councillor Anne Stott (not present) and 
Councillor James Wilson seconded the proposal. Councillor Elaine Sherrington 
proposed Councillor Andrew Morgan (not present). However, the proposal was not 
seconded. The Chair put the nominations to the vote. With two votes for Councillor 
Robert Chilton and six votes for Councillor Anne Stott, it was agreed that 
Councillor Anne Stott would be appointed as Vice-Chair of the committee for the 
2017/18 Municipal Year. 

 

Page 125



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 2 of 7 
18 October 2017 

 

  
 RESOLVED: That Councillor Lisa Smart be appointed as Chair and Councillor 

Anne Stott be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Housing, Planning 
and Environment committee for the 2017/18 municipal year. 

  
M10/HPE URGENT BUSINESS, IF ANY, INTRODUCED BY THE CHAIR 
  
 There was no urgent business introduced by the Chair. 
  
M11/HPE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  
 There were no declarations of interest received at the meeting. Members were 

reminded to complete the Register of Interest form sent to them by the 
Governance and Scrutiny officer. 

  
M12/HPE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING DATED  

7 SEPTEMBER 2017 
  
 Members considered the minutes of the last meeting held on 7 September 2017. 
  
 The Chair proposed and Members agreed, that the word ‘endorsed’ be amended 

to ‘noted’ in the recommendations of M5 and M7. 
  
 It was reported that the call in process agreed at the meeting on 7 September 

2017, was approved by the GMCA on 29 September 2017. 
  
 RESOLVED: That the committee approved the minutes of the last meeting on 7 

September 2017 as a correct record subject to word ‘endorsed’ 
being amended to ‘noted’ in the recommendations of M5 and M7. 

  
M13/HPE GREATER MANCHESTER STRATEGY (GMS) IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND 

PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 
  
 Consideration was given to the report of the GM Mayor and the Chief Executive, 

GMCA that provided Members with a draft of the refreshed GMS. 
  
 It was reported that the actions included in the implementation plan that was 

attached to the report, were all to be delivered within existing resources, during the 
next six months. A further two-year implementation plan would be developed and 
delivered from April 2018, and would be brought to the meeting of the committee 
on 17 April 2018.  

  
 The Chair thanked the Assistant Director, Research & Strategy, GMCA and the 

Executive Director, Policy & Strategy, GMCA for presenting the report but 
reminded officers that there was an expectation that portfolio holders be at the 
meeting to present reports and to provide political direction and accountability. 

  
 Members’ questions included: 
  
  Officers were reminded that the committee had ‘noted’ the report on the 

Greater Manchester Strategy at their meeting in September and had not 
‘agreed it’. 

Page 126



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 3 of 7 
18 October 2017 

 

  
  To ask officers to remove duplicate entries from the covering report’s tables 
  
  To update on progress with Smart Ticketing were being addressed.  

Officers explained that smart ticketing was a long term and progressive 
approach to achieving a unified and simpler set of fares and tickets for GM. 
It has two key elements: a technology solution and simplified public 
transport fares. TfGM was making progress to improve the current system 
and is committed to introducing a simpler more convenient and integrated 
approach to travel in GM.  

  
  To include implementation dates, milestones and a traffic light monitoring 

system in the implementation plan to enable the Committee to effectively 
scrutinise progress and hold leads to account for the Strategy’s delivery. It 
was acknowledged that further work was required with organisations who 
were delivering the plan to ensure that milestones and dates were included. 
A further update would be bought to the committee on 17 April 2018. 

  
 The Chair welcomed the report and the early opportunity for Members to 

scrutinise, provide their feedback and comments prior it being agreed by the 
GMCA.  

  
 RESOLVED: That the committee: 
  1. Noted the draft Greater Manchester Strategy (GMS) 

implementation plan. 
 

  2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. 

Asked officers to make the following improvements to the 
implementation strategy: 
 

 Remove duplicate entries included in report’s tables 

 Work with theme leads to ensure that future versions 
of the implementation plan have clear delivery dates 
and milestones included for each of the priority 
actions. 

 
Agreed that future performance reports, and performance 
dashboards be brought to the committee once completed. 

  
M14/HPE BUS SERVICES IN GREATER MANCHESTER 
  
 A presentation on the current and future bus services in GM, was provided by 

TfGM’s Policy Manger and Executive Director.  
  
 The committee’s discussion included the following questions: 
  
  What work was TfGM undertaking on the transfer of risk as part of their 

work examining the potential franchising of bus services in GM?  TfGM’s 
current work includes looking to examine both the risks and benefits of  
alternative options to improve bus services in GM, including exploring bus 
franchising. In relation to this, the authority would carry a range of risks 
related to franchising, although work to date indicates that such risks were 
manageable. It was noted that it is important to recognise that currently the 

Page 127



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 4 of 7 
18 October 2017 

 

public sector already carries significant risks associated with providing 
subsidised bus services, where there are gaps in commercial provision. 
There are also much wider risks to GM’s wider economy if the local 
transport offer doesn’t provide the integrated transport connectivity that 
GM’s residents, businesses and visitors need and expect. Currently there is 
a significant decline in passenger journeys made by bus in GM, reducing by 
around 3 million bus journeys each year, a trend which must be tackled. 

  
  How were new routes being developed to ensure residents could access 

jobs in new employment sites land by public transport? Officers explained 
that the current market model meant that commercial operators typically 
would only establish new services where they could generate sufficient 
guaranteed income. Therefore TfGM works with operators to adapt and 
respond to new needs, such as the development of new employment sites. 
TfGM sometimes supports the provision of new services in emerging areas 
of need to encourage operators to enter the market.  Members were 
concerned that the lack of good public transport may be a barrier to job 
seekers.  
 

 Members were keen to find out more how the GMCA was developing an 
integrated transport offer to enable GM travellers to easily change mode. It 
was mentioned that in the London system around one in three rail or tube 
journeys was preceded by or followed by a bus journey because the 
integrated nature of the public transport network facilitated this.  
 

 What criteria were used to assess supply and demand and how would 
TfGM know what residents wanted from their bus service? TfGM are 
producing an assessment of a potential franchising scheme as well as 
exploring other options for the reform of bus service delivery with operators.  
To inform the development of a franchising scheme TfGM had requested a 
range of information from bus operators including things such as the 
number of journeys run, passenger numbers and fare structures. In addition 
the Bus Services Act required GM to work with neighbouring authorities. A 
public consultation will then be undertaken. However, until DfT provide 
greater clarity around the Bus Services Act secondary regulations, TfGM 
could not commit to a timeframe. The assessment will give a more detailed 
understanding of the local bus market and will enable GM to make an 
informed decision on future reform of the bus market in GM.   
  

 There was a particular need to understand how different options would work 
in the short and long term and how different models would support residents 
to make complex journeys easier to undertake and more affordable. TfGM 
will provide the GM Mayor with the information to make an informed 
decision on the future reform of the bus market in the new year.  
 

 A Member enquired if TfGM was ready and able to deliver a solution, and 
were the appropriate staff and resources available? The Member was 
reassured that TfGM had the right people to deliver the work. 

  
 RESOLVED: That the committee noted the report. 
  

Page 128



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 5 of 7 
18 October 2017 

 

M15/HPE GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK (GMSF) UPDATE 
  
 A presentation by GM Planning lead provided Members with an update on the 

GMSF.  
  
 Since the last meeting, there had been two main developments: 
   
 1. Government had released a consultation document (planning for the right 

homes in the right places), which took forward several proposals from the 
Housing White Paper, on 14 September 2017. A brief outline of the proposal 
was attached at Appendix 1 of the report. 

   
 2. Responses to the consultation on the draft GMSF were released on 28 

September 2017 had been published. 27k responses had been received and 
respondents could see their response on-line. A new landing page had been 
designed in response to problems that some people found accessing the 
consultation portal.  

  
 Discussion included the following points made by members: 
  
  Members welcomed the 10 year approach to calculating housing need 

which could allow GM to use a phased approach to calculating housing 
need in GM. This would also allow GM to take into be more responsive to 
economic changes and the impact of new technologies on housing need. 
However officers explained that under this new methodology objectively 
assessed housing need (OAN) may not provide as much stability as first 
seems because it uses the household forecast which changes every two 
years and the earnings index which changes annually to calculate housing 
need. One solution to this could be to fix the figure once a plan had been 
published for five years and then again once the plan was approved fixed 
for a further five years. There was also a potential contradiction between as 
the ten year figure for OAN and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) which recommends that plans were prepared with a longer time 
horizon ‘preferably 15 years’. 
 

 The Committee were keen to stress the importance of utilising brown field 
sites first and also to avoid the development of sites before appropriate 
infrastructure was in place.  Currently work was being undertaken to 
increase that the number of sites which were well served by infrastructure 
(particularly brownfield land and sites around town centres) in the GMSF. 
 

 Members also wished to know what financial tools might be available to 
incentivise the development of brown field sites.  Government are reluctant 
to support the development of brownfield sites with gap funding, instead 
loan-funding is the preferred mechanism.  There are issues associated with 
deliverability and economic viability associated with developing brown field 
sites and the need for GM to deliver housing. Officers also drew the 
Committee’s attention to the fact that government are planning to introduce 
a housing delivery test whose details are not yet fully known and but there 
may be penalties (whose details are yet to be confirmed) for places who are 
failing to deliver their housing numbers.  

  

Page 129



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 6 of 7 
18 October 2017 

 

  What work had been undertaken to assess the impact of Brexit on housing 
need and the GMSF? GM has assessed the impact of Brexit on growth, but 
we will be considering the new government methodology to determine 
housing need. [Note: this assessment is now available on the website 
https://www.greatermanchester-
ca.gov.uk/info/20004/business_and_economy/73/greater_manchester_fore
casting_model ] 

  
  What work had GM undertaken to fulfil its Duty to Co-operate the areas that 

connected with GM? It was noted that the Duty to Co-operate was not a 
duty to agree. In terms of the GMSF, it was a joint plan in ten Districts and 
conversation and discussions with neighbouring authorities had taken 
place. There may be an additional element of this Duty, called the 
Statement of Common Ground which may be brought in next year.  [Further 
information on work to date can be downloaded on the GMSF consultation 
portal http://gmsf-
consult.objective.co.uk/portal/2016consultation/supp_docs?pointId=147791
3853113 ] 
 

 How could neighbourhood plans be aligned with the GMSF and how would 
this be managed? Neighbourhood plans were introduced after 2010 and 
there are a number under development in GM. The first neighbourhood plan 
to go to referendum stage would be considered this week.  It was noted that 
neighbourhood plans were one part of the plan making system and not a 
mechanism to prevent development. However, this is an emerging area for 
GM about which the committee needed to be kept informed and a short 
background note will be prepared to explain how different plans worked 
together. 

  
 RESOLVED: That the committee: 
  1. Noted the report. 
  2. 

 
3.  

Commented on the issues that the response to the housing 
consultation should cover (minute M15/HPE refers). 
Request a short background note to explain how different 
plans work together. 

  
M16/HPE WORK PROGRAMME 
  
 The Statutory Scrutiny officer, GMCA presented a report that set out the 

committee’s work programme for Members to develop, review and then agree.  
  
 The Chair stressed that forward planning was important for the committee and 

would set the tone for GM. The Chair was very keen on pre-decision scrutiny to 
influence and improve future decisions. Chair requested that presentations be kept 
short and relevant and to enable Members to have ample time to scrutinise issues.  

  
 Members and officers identified the following areas, which would be used 

developed to the work programme by the Statutory Scrutiny officer, GMCA: 
  
  The Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority’s (GMWDA) transition into 

the GMCA and governance arrangements (early 2018).  
  The viability of greenfield sites (possible task and finish group). 

Page 130

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20004/business_and_economy/73/greater_manchester_forecasting_model
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20004/business_and_economy/73/greater_manchester_forecasting_model
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/info/20004/business_and_economy/73/greater_manchester_forecasting_model
http://gmsf-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/2016consultation/supp_docs?pointId=1477913853113
http://gmsf-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/2016consultation/supp_docs?pointId=1477913853113
http://gmsf-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/2016consultation/supp_docs?pointId=1477913853113


_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 7 of 7 
18 October 2017 

 

  Green Summit (Feb/March 2017).  
  The air quality plan (Feb 2018). 
  Updated GMS implementation plan (April 2017) 
  Performance management framework for GMS (April 2017)  
  Update on work on town centres. 
  Homelessness and what work was taking place across the conurbation at a 

strategic level. Clarity around the definition of homelessness and how this 
differed from rough sleeping was also requested as a briefing note. 

  Transport strategy focusing on developing an integrated transport system (Nov 
2017). 

  A deeper dive to investigate particular aspects of the green economy, a 
possible joint task and finish group between scrutiny committees.   

  GMSF focusing on congestion and improving connectivity.  
  Housing affordability (Nov 2017)  
  GM as a Carbon Neutral city region ( December 2017). 
  
 The Statutory Scrutiny officer, GMCA asked and Members agreed that the officer 

be given delegated authority to update and develop the work programme in light of 
Members comments and suggestions made at the meeting and that the chair 
would work with officers to shape the work programme moving in advance of the 
next meeting. 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. That the committee updated the work programme (minute 

M16/HPE refers). 
  2. 

 
 
 
3.  

That delegated authority be given to the Statutory Scrutiny 
officer, GMCA to update and develop the work programme in 
light of Members comments and suggestions made at the 
meeting. 
To produce a briefing note on GM’s work on homelessness, 
which addresses the issue of how homelessness is defined. 

Page 131


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	7 Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local welfare Provision - 6 month performance report
	8 Housing Strategy 2017-2020
	Append. 1 for Housing Strategy 2017-2022
	Append. 2 for Housing Strategy 2017-2022

	9 Communities, Regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Communities, regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Communities, regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 3 for Communities, regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 3 for Communities, regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 4 for Communities, regeneration & Environment Directorate Plans 2017-18 Quarter 2 Performance Update

	12 Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18
	13 GMCA Scrutiny Minutes
	04._2017_10_13_Draft_Economy_Business_Growth_and_Skills_OS_Committee_Minutes
	2017_10_18_FINAL_Housing_Planning__Environment_OS_Committee_Minutes


